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Due 9 Months or More from Date of Issue 

.Massn.chu .. <;ells fnslilute of Technnlo[fy (the "lnstit:ute") may offer from time lo lime its Mulium-Term )/olP.s (Tuxable Serir..~ .A)(the 
"Jlote.~ ''). Th-f'. nit!Zrn!ffn.111 initi.o./ public offer(n~ (Jrict'. of Note.~ outsta1idin.:J may not at any lime e:cceed SI r!S,000,000 or the equilialent 
thereof in. one or rrwre fvrei~n or ,;ompogilc currencies (the "Spuificd l'urrencJJ "). The Cnterest rote on each Note will be eitM-r a fixed 
rate r~sloblished by lhe Institute al lhe dale of i.~sue of such Xote (a "Fi.u,d Rate Xote") or a f!,oating rate (a "Floating Rate Jtote") . .11 
Fixed Hn.te No[(', mny pa.y a llllJel amoun.t r:r1 retpe.ct of both in IP rest and pri11czjml amortized over the life of the Note (an ''Amortizint; Note~). 

Tiit: ,,W;tcN wn.1·titulc uncondilio1ml, rlirrr.l and. general o/ili!}atwnx of the Jiistitull', ranking equally with lhe unse1:ured and 
wi.m/)(lrdinalr~d iru!e/>i,cdnc.~s of lhr. lnstilule. 

The lP.rms of each }lbtt' will include the terms described in lhi.~ O!f1;ring Circ1~lar and in the applicable ?ncin~ Supp/t;nunl hereto, 
pro11il)Ml that l.crms 1:t;nt1t1:11c!d ill lh'3 appli'1;able Pricing Supplem<ml st1persede n.ny i1iconsislenl terms herein. lnll.!re .~l on. each Fi-xed 
&1lc .Mile is payal>le ern:h .fcmuary l mui .!ul!J J ond al matu.rily, interest on each Flon.Unf! Rate Note is payabl<'; on ihe dates set forth 
lwrein. J/morlizin~ Jlot.~s will pay principal and intere:;t semiannually ea.ch January J mul July 1, or quarwrly each Janw.uy 1, J1pril l, 
July I o.11tf Oclol>e,r I, o.iut rLI mMurity. Each Note will mature on any day nine months or mor1; from the date of i.1·szu~. See 
"DESCR!P'l'lOJV OF Tl/E .JVO'f ES." Th: .Miles may he redeemed by the lnsl1:tule pririr to maturity and will be iHslll'.d 1:11 f!J,tly re~frlercd 
form i11 !lenominolion.< of $1,000 (or thl' equirmlenls ther·wf in the Specifi,ed Currencv rounded d.own to the nearest 1,000 u.nits of the 
Sper.ifir:d Currr,nr.y) nr nny omou11t in exc:es.~ thereof which is an intee'ml multiple of li,000 (or 1,000 units of the Specified Currency). 
F:_adt )liifo 111ill l!1' rc[>rfst •il!~d r~ilher /~!J n f:'lnhol .Note (a "GlohCll .Vole'') regislerP._d_ in tfu:. namP.. of lhe 7:1omince nf Tht~ De!!.?gitDry Trusl 
Gomprt!!!f, ltS 1li:posr,ll}.r11 (lite UDt<J>Ostla.ru ")(a "'Book-Entry )/otc"), or by a cerli./icale l~.wrd in clefinrlwe form (a ucerl.1.JtCated Note"). 
Bi;n~ficral infrrestR in Global Noles rcp1·esen.tinsj Book-Entry Jlotes will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only throuith, 
records moi111!tinerl l1y the Deposilr:try's pa.rlicipants. Book-Entry ..Votes will not be r:s.vuable a~ Cerlifiwtr.d }lbtcs excepl under the 
cir1;umst1m1:1~s r!r..,· r.rihai herein wulcr "DESCR!PTJOX OF TH J::: NOTES-Book-Entry Sy,q!tm." 

THE NOTES HAVli NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMEN D.ED ( THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES L4WS AND ARE BEING OFFERED 

P SUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM TH E REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF 
THE SECURITIES A CT AND HA VE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH TH E 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION. 

Price to 
!'ublic(l) 

Agenl•' 
Commis• iou(2) 

Proceed. lo 
l ri.<tiLlito (.1) 

Per .Note . . . . . 100.000% 
$1 €5.000,000 

.] ~5% - . 7.50% 
$156.~50 - $93 7,500 

99.875% - 99.~50% 
$1 24,848,750- $19!1;,06~,500 Total(!;). . .. . 

(1) 
('t) 

(:i) 
m 

UnlP.s.~ otlwrwi.1·e :1/)tci(icil in the u.p1>licol>l'! Pn:cing Supplemenl. Nott-swill be c/j'ered nt 100% of lh11 principal amount thereof 
The !nsWute will pu.y a c:ummisg ion to nn Agent on each Note sold through such .l/'2enl, ranging from .12S% to . 750% of tlw 
Tll'incipai amnml of l'he J/olc (rlr.pendin!f upon the Xot:c: 's maturity), pror1ided tfiat commissions rm:th respect to Nol.es 
1rw.lurimi mn"e than lhi1·ty ycar·R fro m d.nte of is.me will l;e nc~o11:nted., 1/w lnRtitute mu.y also sell )lbt,cs to nn A~ent, a.~ 
/lrind pa7 /or its own ilaounl, al ne(fotfrtted di.~tounts, and fnr resale. to inue.~ lor11 and o/./ier pu.rcha.sers. 
'f'he l'ror·:~1~d:~ to the lnslitufo represent proceeds receCued by the_ Jn,~lilu~e befor_c ':leduction of ~xp~nses pcL!fa.ble by .ihc institu_te. 
Tfu~ 11Jl;u .. ~ er;vnl lo the U.S. dollar amounts iruJ;catcd or the e,q uwolcnt lnaeof m ~ther curreru:u~s, mclu.dmf? compo,nlc 1;urrP.1U:l.I'.~. 

Oj/<~1 ·.s to purchase lhe Jfotes are bein1§ solicited fro m time to time b.'1' }if organ Stanley &- Co. Incorporated 
and BT Securities Corporation (individually, an "Jlfient" and collectively the "Agents"), on behalf of the 
lnst~tutt;',. The .llfjents hauc afjrt:c~d to use th~ir. reaso1_ia~le effor~s to .~olicit purc!iases of suc_h .Notes. The 
Tnsti-tulc may also sell Nofr~s lo an Agent acting as pnnc1pal for its own account ror resale lo investors and 
other purchasers, to he determined by such Agent. No termination date for the Of[_erin€ of the Notes has been 
r.stablished. The Instilule or an ./J.§ent may rejed' any ojfer in whole or in parl. The J.rotes will not be listed 
on any ,rncur1:ti(',s exchanfie, and lnere can be no assurance that the No~es offered hereby will be sold or that 
there wilt be a .~eccndary market for the Notr.s. See 11PL.Jl..N' OF DIST RI BUT ION. n 

wIORl;AN S1'A~"N'LEY & CO. B T SECURITIES CORPORATION 
Jn.corpora tr::tl 

.May 8, l ,9,%' 



No de er, sal sperlJOJl or any other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than 
those contained in this Offering Circular and any Pricing Supplement in connection with the offer contained in this Offering Circular 
and any Pricing Supp1ement and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been 
authorized by lnsftute or by the Agent. The delivery of th.is Offering Circular and any Pricing Supplement at any time does not 
imply that the · nformation herein and in the applic?.ble Pricing Supplement is correct as of any time subsequent lo Uie date hereof 
and thereof. T is Offering Circular and any Pricing Supplement does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any 
jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is no1 qualified 
to do so or to any pe ·,on to which it is u nlawful to make such offer or solicitation. 
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$125,000,000 

MASSACHUSETTS INSTIT UTE OF TECHNOLOGY 

MEDIUM-TERM NOTES 
AXABLE SERIES A) 

iNTRODUCYlON 

This Offering Circular, which includes the front cover and the App ndices hereto , an · any Pricing 
Supplement, provides certain information concerning the offering from time to time by Massachusetts Institu e of 
Technology (the ".Institute ") of its Medium-Tenn Notes (Taxable Ser"es A) (the "Notes") . The aggregate in itial 
public offering price of Notes outstanding may not at any time exCCl"A $ 125 ,000,000 or th equivalen t thereof in 
one or more foreign or composite currencies (the "Speci fi ed Currency"). See ttWPORTANT CURRENCY 
EXCHANGE INF ORMATION." The Notes are to be issued under an Issuing and aying Agency A rccmco t (l c 
"IPAA") dated as of tvfay 8, 1996 between the Institute and Sta e Street Bank and Trus t Comp y, as is uiog and 
paying agent (the "Paying Agent") . See "DESCRJPTI ON OF THE NOTES " herei for a s ripti n of c~rtain 

provisions of the IPAA and lhe Notes . 

CORPORATIO ' BY RE •ERENCE 

The Institute periodically prepares !ts Report of the T reasurer (eac such Report ereinafter referred to as 
a "Treasurer's Report"). Each such Treasurer's Report published subsequ nt to the date hereof o.nc.l any mer ment 
or supplement thereto, when made publicly available prior to the terminatio. of the offering of Note made pu suant 
to tbis Offering Circular, shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in the Offering Circul and any related 
Offering Circular Supplement and to be a part hereof and th r of from the date made pt blicly available. Any 
statement contained in any docurneot so incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by vference shall be deemed 
lo be modified or superseded for purposes of this Offering Circular and any such Offering Cir ular upplement to 

the extent that a statement contained herein or therein or in any subsequently publicly available document which also 
is so incorpora ted or deemed to be incorporated by reference modifies or superse es s ch statemen . Any such 
statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed , except as so modified or supersc<l · , to co stitute a art 
of this Offering Circular or any such Offering Circular Suppleme t. 

The institute will provide without charge upon written or oral r quest by any person to ham this Offering 
Circular is delivered a copy of any or aJI of the docum::;n ts describe.cl which have been so · corp r ted or t: med 
to be .incorporated by reference. Requests for the Offerin Circular should be dir cted to Medium-· en le 

Trading Desk , Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, 1585 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York , NY 100 6 (212) 761 -
2000. Requests for any such document may also be directed to: Massachusetts Instit te of Technology, c/o Office 
of the Treasurer, 238 Main Street, Suite 200, Cambridge , Massachusetts 02 142. 

THE INSTITUTE 

The Institute is a private, nonprofit, coeducational, nonsectarian institution o f higher education charter 
under the Jaws of The Commonwealth of Massachus tts . There are approximately 9, 960 st11dcnts attending tJ1e 

Institute of which approximately 5,329 are fu ll-time graduate students. The lnstitute 's faculty numbers 
approximately 960 members with other academic staff of approxima ely 2,410. The Institute is located on a 145-
acre residential campus fronting the Charles River in Crunbrid.,:e, Mass husetts, opposite Bostou. In addition, the 
Institute owos property in several suburban communities. 

The governing body of the lnstitute is a board of trustees known as the Corpon ion . lts mcmb rs number 
approximately 70 active members and approximately 25 Emeriti members and inclu e leaders o sc ience, 
engineering, industry, education, and pubHc service including a members, ex-officii s , the Chairman, th T easurer 
and the Secretary of the Corporation, the President of the Institute, and the President of the Alumni Association. 
Also included are the following representatives of The Commonw al th of Massachusetts : t e Governor, tht!. Chief 



Justice of the Supreme Judicial Court, and the Commissioner of Educatioa . The Corporation meets four times a 
year with addilional meetings called by the Chairmnn as necessary. 

The Corporation elects the Executive Committee, which bas responsibility for the general administration 
and superintendence of all matters relating to the Institute. · Typical of th se matters are the organizational structure 
of the l.nstitute, faculty and staff appointmeots and salaries, annual budgets, tuition, scope of educational and 
rcse;arcb programs, special contract services for the federal government and other organizaf ns, new plant and 
facilities, and the broad consider tions relaled to providing new funds for ,.Institute purposes. TI1e Executive 
Committee authorizes officers to borrow money on behalf of the Institute in such amounts as the Committee may 
d terminc. 

The Ex utive Commi tee of the Corporation meets monthly, with the exception of July and August , and 
at such other times as n ded. 

Additional information relating to the Institute, including the current members of the Executive Committee, 
is set forth in Appendix A. More detailed information regarding the Institute is set forth in tlw Treasurer 's Report 
for the year ended June 30, 1995 set forth io Appendix B hereto . 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

Proceeds of th1:: Notes will be used to finance or refin cc the acquisition, coostruc ioo and renovation of 
cer tain Institute properties. 

IMPORT ANT CURRENCY E XCHANGE INFORMATION 

Purchasers are required to pay for the Notes in any coin or currency of lhe United States of America which 
at the lime o f paymc.nt is legaJ tender for the payment of public and private debts ("U.S. dollars") or, if so provided 
in the applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined below), the equivalent thereof in one or more foreign currencies 
or composite currencies (the "Specified Currency"), including the European Currency Unit (the "ECU") , and 
payments of principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Notes will be made in U .S. dollars, or if so 
provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement in the Specified Currency. Currently, there are limited facilities in 
tbe United States for the conversion of U .S. dollars into foreign currencies and vice versa. In addition, most banks 
do not currently offer non-U .S. dollar denominated checking or savings account t: cilities in th nited States. 
Accordingly, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or unless alternative arrangements are 
made, payment of principa of, and premium, if any, and interest on Notes in a Specified Currency will be made 
to an accoun · at a bank outside the United States. See "DESCR IPTION OP THE NOTES " and "FORElG. 1 

CURRENCY RISKS." 

If the applicable Pricing Supplement provides for payments of principal of, and premium, if any, and 
interest on, a non-U .S. dollar denominated Note to be made in U.S. dollars, the conversion of the Specified 
Currency into U.S. doll rs will be handled by the exchange rate agent identified in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement (the "Exchange Rate Agent"). The costs of such conversion will be borne by the holder of such a Note 
through deductions from such payments. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES 

The particular terms of the Notes sold pursuant t any pricing supplement (a "Pricing Supplement") will 
be described therein. The terms and conditiow set forth in "Description of No es" will apply to each Note unless 
otherwise speci fied in the pplicable Pricing Supplement and in such Note. The Notes are to be issued under the 
PAA. 

2 



The Notes have not been registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and ar:-e offered 
pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 3(a)(4) of the Securities Act. The IPA is not 
required to be and has not bee l qualified wider the T1·ust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. 

Income on the Noles is not excludable from gross income fo r feder I, state or local income .ax 
purposes. 

If any Note is not to be denominated in U. S. dollars , the applicable Pricing Supplement will specify the 
currency or currencies, i.ncludi.og composite cun·encies such as the ECU , in which th principal , premium, if any, 
and interest, if any, with respect to such Note are to be paid, along with any other terms relating to the non-U.S, 
dollar denomination, including ex hange rat.es for the Speci fied Currency as against the U .S. dollar at elected times 
during the last five years, and any exchange controls affecting such Specified Currency. See "FOREIGN 
CURRENCY RJSKS." 

General 

The Notes will rank pari passu w ith all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Institute. 
The Notes may be issued from time to time in series, each Note con.stituting i ts own series unless otherwise 
indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, provide.cl that the aggregate initial public offering price of Notes 
outstanding is limited to $ 125,000,000 or the equivalent thereof in one or more foreign or composite currencies 
or such g!'eater principal amount as the Institute may from ti me to time authorize. The IPAA does not limit the 
amount of addit ional indebtedness tht> Institute may incur or restrict the Insti tute · s abi li ty to secur'-' such 
indebtedne s. For the purpose of this Offering Circular , (i) the principal amount on the da e of issue of any 
Original issue Discount Note (as defined below) means the Issue Price (as defmed below) of such Note and (ii) the 
principal amount of any Note issued in a foreign currency or composite currency means the U.S. dollar equivalent 
on the date of issue of the Issue Price of such Note. 

The Notes will mature on any day nine months or more from the date of issu , as s t orth in U1c pplicable 
Pricing Supplement. Except as may be provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Notes will be iss .1ed only 
in fully regi tered form. Unl · otherwise provided in the applicable Pri iug Supplement , Notes w ill be 
denominated in Authorized Denominations (as defined below). 

The Notes will be offered on a continuing basis, and each Note will be issued initially as either a Global 
Note or a Definitive Note . Except as set forth hereinafter under "Book-Entry System, " Global Notes wi ll not be 
issuable as Definitive Notes, T he Jaws of some states may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical 
delivery of such securities in defini tive form. Sucb limits and such laws may impair the ability to own, transfer 
or pkdge beneficial interests in Global Securities. See "Book-Entry System" below. 

The Notes may be presented for payment of principal and interest, transfer of the Notes will be registr ble 
and the Notes will be exchangeable at the agency in The City of New York, maintained by the institute for such 
purpose; provided that Global Notes will be exchangeable only in the manner and to the extent set forth hereinafter 
under "Book-Entry System." On the date hereof, the agent for the payment, transfer and exchange of the Notes 
is State Street Bank and Trust Co mp y, acting through its corporate trust office at 61 Broadway, New York, New 
York 10006. 

The applic ble Pricing Supplement will specify the price (the "Issue Price") o f each Note to b sold 
pursuant thereto (unless such Note is to be sold at 100 % of its principal amount), the interest rate or interest rate 
formu! , m tu1ity, currency or composite currency and principal amount and any other tauis whicb . ch Note 
wi ll be issued. 

As used herein, the follo ing terms shall have tbe meanings set forth below: 

"Authorized Denominations" means, unless otherwise provided in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement, (i) with respect to Notes denominated in U.S. dollars, U.S. $1,000 or y amount in ex ess 
thereof which is an integral multiple of U.S. $1,000 and (ii) with respect to Notes denominated in foreign 
or composite cufl'encies , the equi valent of $1,000 (rounded to an integral multipl of 1,000 units of sud 
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Specified Currency), or any amount in excess thereof which is an integral multiple of 1,000 units of such 
Specified Currency, as determined by reference to lbc noon dollar buying rate in New York City for cable 
transfers of such Specified Currency published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (the "Market 

xchange R te") on the Business Day (as defined below) immediately preceding the date of issuance; 
provided, however, that in tbc case of ECU's, the Market Exchange RRl.e shall be the rate of exchange 
dekrmined by the Commission of the European Communities (or any successor thereto) as published in 
the Official Journal of he European Conununities, or any successor publication, on tbc Business Day 
immediately preceding the date of issuance , 

''Business Day" means any day, other than a Sahlrday or Sunday, that is neither a legal holiday 
nor a day on which banking institutions are authorized or requiroo by law or regulation to close in The City 
of New York and (i) with resp ct to LlBOR Notes (as defi ned below), is also a London Banking Day, (ii) 
with respect to Noles denominated in a Specified Currency other than U .S. dollars, Australian dollars or 
ECUs, in the principal financial center of the country of the Specified Currency, (iii) with respecl to Notes 
denominated in Australian dollars , in Sydney and (iv) with respect to Notes denominated in ECUs, that is 
not a oon-ECU clearing day , as determined by the ECU Banking Association in Paris . 

An "Interest Payment Oat~" with respect to any Note shall be a date on which, under U1e terms 
of such Note, regularly scheduled interest shall be payable. 

"London Banking Day" means any day oo wh.icb dealings in deposits in the Index Currency are 
transllcted in the London interbank market. · 

"Original Issue Discount Note" means any Note that provides for an amount less than che principal 
amount thereof to be due and payable upon a declaration of acceleration of the maturity thereof pursuant 
to h IPAA. 

The "Re{!ord Dat " w ith respect to any Interest Payment Date shall be the date 15 calendar days 
prior to su .b Interest Payment Date, wb ther or not such date shall be a Business Day. 

Paym t Currency 

If the applicable Pricing Supplement provides for payments of interest and principal on a non-U.S. dollar 
dc.:nominated Note to be made, at the option of the holder of such Note, in U.S. dollars, conversion of the Specified 
Currency into U.S. dollars will be based on the highest bid quotation in The City of New York received by the 
Exchange R t Agen at approxim tely 11:00 A.M. , New York City time, on the second Business Day preceding 
the applic. b le payment date from throo recognized foreign exchange dealers (one of which may be the Exchange 
Rate Agent) for the purchase by the quo ing dealer of the Specified Currency for U.S. dollars for settlement on such 
payment date in th" aggregate amount of the Specified Cun-ency payable to the holders of Notes and at which the 
ppli ' ble de ler commits to execute a contract. If such bid quotations are not available, payments will be made 

in the Specified Currency. All currency exchange costs will be borne by the holders of Notes by deductions from 
such p:ymen s. 

E cep as set forth below, if the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on, any Note is payable in a 
Specified Currency oth r than U.S. dollars and such Specified Currency is not availailtc to the Institute for making 
payments thereof due to the imposition of exchange controls or other circumstances beyond the control of the 
Institute, th n the institute w ill be entitled to satisfy its obligations to holders of the Notes by making such payments 
in U.S. dollars on the basis of the Market Exchange Rate oo th date of imch payment or, if the Market Exchange 
Rate is not available on such date, as of the most recent practicable date. A.ny payment made under such 
circu mstances in U.S. dollars where the required payment is in a Specified Currency oth 'r than U.S. dollars will 
not constitute an Event of Default. 

Under U1e trc ty i::sl.ablishing the European Community (the "EC"), as amended by the treaty on European 
Union (the "Treaty"), the ECU may, at or before January 1, l.999, and subject to the fulfillment of certAin 
conditi ns, become a currency in its own right , replacing some or all of the cu rrencies of the 15 member states of 
the EC, :md named lbe "Euro" . If, pursuant to the Treaty, some o r all of the currencies of the 15 member states 
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of che EC are replaced by the Euro, the payment of ates denominat in such cun- cies hall be e.ffoct ·ti in 
equivalent Euro detennin d pursuant to implementing legislation. Changes as to th nature or composition of the 
ECU may be nade by the EC in conformi ty with th reaty and EC law , in which event referenc s to ECU in the 
Notes shall thereafter be construed as references to the ECU as so changed . In addition, if the ECU becomes a 
currency in its o wn right in accordan e with the Treaty, all reforences to ECU in the Note sh 11 be construed as 
references to the Euro. 

Tf th pa mcnt on a Note is required to bt: made in ECU and, on a payment c with r~spect to such Note, 
tbe ECU is used neither as the unit of account of the EC nor as a currency in its own right , then all payru nts due 
on such payment date shall be made in equivalent U.S. dollars, determined by the Institute or the Exchange Rate 
Ag(.)nt on the following basis. The component currencies of h ECU for this purpose (the "Components" ) shall 
be Lb~ currency amounts that were components of the ECU as of the last dat on which the ECU was used as the 
unit of accou nt of the EC. The equivaJent o f the ECU in U.S. dollars shall be alculated by aggregating the (J .S. 
dollar equivalents of the Components. The U.S. dollar 1iv lent of each of the Coruponc L'l sh l be determined 
by the Institute or the Exchange Rate Agent on the basis of the most recently availabk Market Exchange ates for 
~uc.h Compon nt s. 

All detenninatious referred to above made by the Institute or its agent all b a 
s! all , in lhe absence of manifest error, be conclusive for a.II purposes and bindin on hol 

Int rest and Principal aymeuts 

sole discretion and 
s of ot . 

lnterest will be payable to the person in whose name the Note is reg 'ste at the close of business on the 
applicable Record Date; provided that the interest payable upon maturity , redemption or repaym nt (whether or not 
tbe date of maturity, redemption or repayment is an Interest Payment Date) will b pay< b e to e person to whom 
principal is payable. The initiaJ interest payment on a Note will be made on the fi rs t Interest Payment Date fall ing 
after the date the Note is issued ; provid d , however, that paym n s of interest (or, · the cas of a A orti.iing 
Note, rincipa and interest) on a Note issued less than 15 lenda days before an Interest Payment Date ill be 
paid on the oexc succeeding Interest Payment Date to the holder of record on the Record Date with reo.pec.t to such 
succ eding Interes t Pay ent Date, unless othetwise spcci .1 d io tbt: applic bl Pricing Su 'plement. See "United 
Stales Federal Taxat ion--U. S. Holdcrs--Original Issue Discount" below. 

U.S . dollar pay ments of interest , otber than inte t p yabl t maturity (or on the I of redcm tion or 
repayment, if a Note is redeemed or repaid by the Institute prior to maturity), will be ma e by check mailed to the 
·d ress of the person enti tled thereto as shown on e Note reg'ster. U. S. doll r ay cot o principal, premium, 
if ny, and interest upon maturily, redemption or repayment will be ma.de in immediateJy available funds against 
presentation and surrender of the Note. Notwithstanding the foregoin., , a) the Depositary, as holder of Glob l 
Notes, shall be enti tled to receive payments of interest by wire transfe r of immedi tely available funds and (b) a 
holder of U.S . $10,000,000 (or the equivalent) or more in aggregate principal amount of Definiti ve Note.~ having 
the same Interest Payment Date shall be entitled to receive payments of interes by wire transfer of immediately 
available fu ds upon written request to the Payin 0 Agent. provi such reques! is rece-ived not later than 15 
calendar days prior to the applicable Inter .st Payment Date. 

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Suppl ment, a b neficial owner of GI b Notes 
dc:::nominated in a Specified Currency electing to receive payments of principal or any pre ' um or interest in a 
currency o l r than U.S. dollars roust notify the participant through which i int rest is h l n or pri r to the 
applicable Record Date, in the case of a payment of interest, and on or prior to the ixteenth day prior to maturi ty, 
in the c se o f principal or premium of such beneficial owner's election to recei ve al l or a portion of such payment 
in a Speci fied Currency. Such participant must notify the Depositary (as defined b low) of such el' tio on or prior 
to the third Business Day afte.r such Record Date. The Depositary will notify the Pay ing Ag nt of such election 
on or prior to the fi fth Business Day after such Record Date. If complete ii s ructions are received by the participan t 
and forwarded by the participant to the D posiw y, and by the Depositary to · Paying Agcul, on r prior to such 
dates, the beneficial owner will receive payments in the Specified Currency by wire transfer of immediately 
available fuuds to an account maintained by the payee wi th a bank located outside b Unite States; olherwise the 
beneficial owner will receive payments in U.S. do l1ars. 
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Certain Notes, including Original Issue Discount Not , may be C·:iusi er o be issu with original issue 
discount, whi :h m st be included in income for United Stat.es federal in ome tax purpo s at a constant ¢. Se.:: 
"Unite<l State~ F eral Ta tion-U.S. Holders--Original rssue Discount" below . Unless oiherwis specified in th 
applicable Pri~ing Su pbment, if the principal of any Original Issue Discount ote is declared lo be due and 
payable i1ru di ely as d scribcd under "Events of Def: ult " below, the mount of principal ue nd payable with 
respect to ucn Note sh ll be limited to the aggre ate principal amount o f such Note multipli by the sum of its 

·sue rice (expn~sse.d as a per~ n ge o f the a regate principal amou t) plus th original issue iscount amortized 
from the date o f issue to !ht~ : tc of cciarat'on , hi h amortizati n shall be calctllated using e "interest method " 
(computed in accordanc with general..ly accepted accounfng principles io effect on the a e o f declar tion) . Special 
o sider ions applicable to any s h Notes will be set forth in th applicable P ricing Supplement. 

·. e Rate Notes 

Ea h Fixed Rate Note will bear interest from the date of issuance at c. annual rate stated on the face 
thereof, i.:x pt as r escrib below und r "Extension of Maturity," u. t il the p rinci l t roof is paid or m de 
available 'Or p~ yr 1.;ut. Unit: 5 o h rwi.se speci fied i t l . appli able Pricing Suppk enl, such interest will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-<l y y of twelve 30-day months. Unl s otherwise speci 1ed in the applic b le 
Pricing Suppkme L, p y cuts of int..,rest on Fi Notes o th r th:u Amortizing No es will be made semi 
rumua ly on ach Janm. )' 1 a July l .d t maturity or upon any arl' r r demptiou or repayment. Unless 
othe1wi~e speci 1 d in t . pp lie: b le Pricing Supplement, payTUent.s of principal interest on nor · :( ng Notes , 
w ·ch are securi t ies on w hic pay ·nts o f principal and inkr • ta 1; ma c in ' ual inst.a. lm ·ots ove the life of the 
security. will be made eith<>r quarterly on each January l, April 1, July l an 
Jamt ry I and July l, as set for h in the applicable ricing Suppkmen , . t ma, 1rity or upon any earlier 

redemption or repayme l. Payments with respect to Amortiz.ing Notes wi .l be appli ii st to inte st d1 c nn.d 
payable thereon and t e to the reduction of the unpaid principal amount thereof. A ble L·ng orth repayment 
information L respe:;ct of each Amortizing Note will be provided co the original p r · er and will be available, 
upon ·q ues , to su s quc t bole ers. 

f f any fnt1;;rcst Pay 1 1t D k~ for any Fixe R t Note falls on a d. y that is not a Busi1 ·ss D y, tb intercs 
payment shall be ruade on the next. ay hat is a Business Day, and no interest on such paymL:nt sha I crne for the 
period from and after 1 crest Payment Date. If the malt ri ty (or at of redemption or repayment) of any Fixed 
Rate Note f lls on ad y tha is not a Busincs.· Day , lhe pay1 ient o int· es principal (:i.od . 1ium, if any) 
wi1J be made on the ne. t succeeding Business Day, and no interes on su b payment shall · ecru for the period from 
a tl afk.r the maturiiy date (or date of redemp tion or repaym 1 t) . 

Inte est p yments for F ixed Rate 0lotes will inciu e a crued int:.~rest from and incl rdi g he da e of issue 
or from antl including the I ·• d e in resp ect of which inte es _. b e , id, as the c e may be, to , b L excl 1 ing , 

the In crest Payment Date o r the dat of maturity or earlier redemption or rep y lent, 11 the c s nay be. The 
inter t rates the lnsti ute will agree to pay on newly issued Fixed Rate Notes are su Jject to hange withou notice 
by the Insti 1te from time to time, but no ~uch change w ill affect any F ixed te o tes the c o ore i sued or that 
the Institu e bas agree to · ssue. 

Floating N 

E ch Floating l t • Nole will r interest from the date of · sst a e un i the princip l thereof is p id or 
1 de available for paym . .:nl at a r te determ.ined by reference to an interesL e basi · or for ula ( the "Base Rate") , 
whic may be adj ust by a Spr d d/or Spr Multiplier leach as define be.low). 'I e !i able Pricing 
S ppl will csignate one or more of the following Bas Rat s a:; i l'c ble to ' ch Floalin Rat Note: (a) 
th CD Rate (a "CD Ra Note"), (b) the Commercial Paper Rate (a "C nm ercial c H. le Nole") , (c) the 
Federal Fu ds R, c (a " "ed >r l · u ds ate Note"). (d) _fBOR (a "LTBOR Note "). (e) tl • Primu R· (a "Pfi c 
Rate Note"), (f) the Te iy Rate (a "Tt s ry R L No ~ "), (g) t e -MT Ra c (a " MT I c Note") or (h) s ch 
other Base R t or interes rate formula as is set forth in such Pricing Suppl men an in such Floating R e Nole. 

The "Incle, I\. lurity" for any Floating Rate Note is the period of mat 1 ity of the i 1s!rnmcnt or o ligalion fr m 
which the Base Rale is calculate an wi be sp i 1ed in the appli able rici Supphnent. 
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Unless otherwise 11pocified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the interest rate on each F oating Rate 
Note will be calcula by reference to the specified Base Rate (i) plus or minus the Spread, if any , and/or (ii) 
multip lied by the Spread Multiplier, if any. The "Spread" is the number of b sis points (one-hundredth of a 
percentage point) specified in the app licable Pricing Supplement to be added to or subtra led fr m che Base Rate 
for such Flo ting Rat Note, and the "Spread Multiplier" is the percentage specified in the applicable Pricing 
Supple tl t to be applie to he Base R te for su b Floating Rate Note. 

As specifi ed in he applicable Pricing Supplement, a Floating Rate Note may also have either or both of 
the follo wing: (i) a maximum limitation , or ceiling, on the rate of interest which may cru during any interest 
period (" Maximum Interest Rate"); and (ii) a minimum limitation, or floor, on tbe rate of interest which may accrue 
during any int ws t period (" Minimum fnterest Rate"). In addi tion to any Maximum lilteresl Rate that may be 
applicable to any Floating Rate Note pursuan t to the above provisions, the interest rate on a Floating Rate Note will 
in no evi; t be higher than the m ximum rate permi tted by New Yor law , as the same may be modified by Unite 
St .tcs law of g0neral applic tioo. Under current New York Jaw, the maximum rate of intere t, subje t to certain 
exceptions , for any loan in an a.mount less than $250,000 is 16 % and for any loan in the amount of $250,000 or 
1 ore bur less th· $2.500,000 is 25 % per annum on a simple interest asis . These limit o not apply to Jo, 1s of 
$2 ,500,000 or mo ·e . 

l Juless o t herw .~0 specified in th pplicable Pricing Supplement, th rate of interest on ach Float'n Rate 
Nole will be rese1 dai y, weckJy , monthly , quarterly, semiannually or annual ly (such period being the "Interest Reset 
Pc:riod" for su h Note, d the first day of e.ach Interest Re-set Period being an "Interest Reset Date "), as speci fied 
in the appl icable ricing Supplement. Unless o therwise specified in the Pricing Supplemenl, the Interest R~set Date 
will be, in the case of Floating Rate Notes which reset daily, each Business Day ; in the case of Floating Rate Notes 
(other th T reasury Rate Not>s) wh.icb reset weekly, the Wednesday of each week; in the case of Treasury Rate 
Noles which ·cse weekly, the T uesday of each week, except as provided below; in the case of F loating Rate Notes 
which reset monthly, the thi rd Wednesday of each month; in the C2se of Floating Rate Notes which reset quarterly, 
the third W ' nes ay of January , April, July and October: in the case of Floating Rate Notes which reset 
semiannually, the thi rd Wednesday of two months of each year, as specified in the applicab e Pricing Supplemen t; 
and in t e c e of Floating Rate Notes which reset annually, the third Wednesday of one moo h of each year, as 
spt;cific in th applicable Pricing upplcmcnt; provided , however, that (a) the interest rat in effect from the date 
of issue to rhe firsr Interest R eset Date with respect to a Floating Rate Note will be the in'tial i terest rate set forth 
in the appli cable Pricing Supple ent (the "Initial Interest Rate") and (b) unless othetwise specified in the applicable 
,)ricing Su pJe, 1ent , tl - · uterest ra te in effect for the ten cal end nys immediately prior to matu · ty, redemptiou 
or repay meri t will bi;: t at in ffect on the tenth calendar d y preceding such maturi ty, redemption or repayment date. 
If ally nt.: e Resc: Dat for · y Floating Rate Note would othetwise be a day at is not ll Busin ss Day, such 
lnteresl l ci et Date shall be pos poned to the next succeeding Business Day, except that in the case of a LlBOR 
Note, i f such Business Day is in the next succeeding calendar month, such Interest Rese Date shall be the 
immvdiatdy prnccdin~ Business Day . 

·. e pt as provided below, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, interest on 
Floating Rate Notes will be payable: (i) in the case of Floating Rate Notes with a daily, w • kly or monthly Interest 
Reset Date, on th third We nesday of ea.ch month or on the third Wednesday of January , April, July and October, 
as sp(~ci fic:d i th - a plicable Pricing Supplement; (ii) in the case of Floating Rat Notes with a quarterly Interest 
Reset D< tc, on the third Wednesday of J anuary, April. July and October; (iii) in the case of Floati g Rate Notes 
witb a semiannual Interest Reset Dat , on the third Wednesday of the two months specified in the applicable P ricing 
Suppl0men ; and (i v) in the case o f Floating Rate Notes wi th an annual Interest Reset Dato, on the third Wednesday 
of the . onlh speci 1 in the applic ble Pricing Supplement. If any Interes t Payment Date for any Flo ting Rate 
Note would ll on a cl : Iha is not a Business Day wi th respect to such Floating Rate Note, su Inte est Payment 
Date will be ostpooed to the follow ing day that is a Business Day wi th respect to such Floating Rn e Note, except 
that , in the case of a L OR Note, if such Business Day js in the next succeeding calendar mont , such lntere.st 
Pay men Date s l be the immediately preceding day that is a Business Day with r'spec t to such LIBOR Note. 
lf th m. turity dat~ o r any urlier redemption or repayment date of a Floating Rate Note would fall on a day that 
is not a Busin "S Day , the payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest will be m d • on the ncx succeeding 
Bu iness Duy, and no in crest on such payment shall accrue for the period from ld aftc s 1ch 1 aturily, redemption 
or re .ym nt dak, . s the case may be. 
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Unless otberwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, interest payments for Floatu g Rate Notes 
shal I be tbe amount of inte~st acc1ued from and including the date of issue or from and including the last date to 
which intere.~ t · s been paid to, but excl ing, tbe Interest Payment Date or maturity dat or date of red mption 

or repayment. 

With resp t to a P oating Rate Note, accrued interest shall be calculated by multiplying the principal 
amount of such Flo ting Ra e Note by an a crued interest factor. Such accni interesl factor wi ll be computed 
by adding the interest factors calculated for ea b day in the period for whicb interest is bc.ing p id . Unl 'S 

otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the interest factor for each such day is computed by 
dividing the interns ate pplic hie to sue day by 360, in the case of CD Rate Notes, Commer ial Paper Rate 
Notes, Federal F unds Rate Notes, UBOR Notes and Prime Rae Notes or by he actual number of days in the ye r, 
in the case of Treasury R te Notes and C MT Rate Notes. All percentages used in or resulting from any calculation 
of Lht: rate of int rest on a Floating Rate Note will be rm nded , if necessary, lo the nearest ne hundred-thousandth 
of a percentage point, with five one-millionths of a pvrcentage point rounded upward , and all doliar amounts used 
in or resulting from su h c.1lcula 'on on Flo ting Rate Notes will be rounded to the nearest cent, with one-half cent 
rounded upward. The interest rate in effec t on any Interest Reset Date will be the applicable rate as reset on such 
date. The interest rare pplicab!e to any other day is the interest rate from the inunediately preceding Interest Reset 
Dak (or, if none, the lruti l Interest Rate) . 

Unless othe ··se s t in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the calculation agent (the "Calculation 
Agent") with respect to ny issue of P ting Rate Note shall be State Street Bank nnd Trust ompany. Upon the 
request of the holder of any Floating Rate Note, the Cale lation Agent will provide the interest rate then in effect 
and, if dcte11nine , the ' nt rt: tr .. te th.twill b<"..come effective on the next Interest Reset Date with rt:spi:;ct to such 
Floating Rate Nole. 

The "Int1::rest Determination Date" per aining to an Interest Reset Date for CD Rate Notes, Commercial 
Paper Rate Notes, Federal Funds Rate No s , CMT R te Notes and Prime ate Notes will be be second Business 
Day next preceding such Jnteres Reset Date. The Interest Determin tion Date pertaining to an interest Reset Date 
for a LlBOR Note will be the second Lond n anking Day preceding such Interest Reset Date. The Interest 
Determination Date pertaining to an Interest Reset Date for a Treasury Rate Note w ill be the day of the week in 
which such Interest e et Date falls on which Treasury bills would normally be auctioued. Treasury bills are 
normally sold at u tion on Monday of each week, unless chat day is a leg I holiday, in which c s the auction is 
normally held on the followmg Tuesday, but such auction may be held on the preceding Friday. If, as the result 
of a I gal holiday, an auction is so held on the preceding Friday, such Friday will be the Interest Determination Date 
pertaining to the interest Reset Date occurring in the next succeeding wee · . If an auction fall n a day that is an 
In erest Reset Date, such nterest Reset Date will be the next following Busioes Day. 

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the "Cale laLion Date, " where applicable, 
pertaining to an Interest Delennination Dale will be the earlier of (i) the tenth calendar ay after such lntercsl 
Determination D t , or, if s 1ch day is o a Busin"ss Day, the next succeeding Busin ·s Day, or (ii) th Business 
Day preceding he applicable Interest Paymeni Date or Maturity Date, as the cas may be. 

interest rates will be determine by !11 Calculation Agcnl as follows: 

CD Rute Notes 

CD R te Notes will bear interest at be interest ra e (calcu a e with reference to the CD Rate and the 
.Spread and/or Spre d Multiplie , if any, and subject to the Minimum Interes a and th Maximum Interest Rate, 
if any) specified in the CD Rate Note and in tbe applicable Pricing Supplement. 

Unless otherwise specified in che applicable Pricing Supplement, "CD Rate" means, with respect to any 
Interest Determination Date, the rate on such date for negotiable certifi.ca es of deposit I aving tbe Jndex Maturity 
designated i the plic ble P rici g Supplemen t s published by the B ard of Governors of the dcral Reserve 
System in "Statistical Release H . 15(519), Selected Interest Rates ," or any successor publi tion of the Board of 
Governors of c Fed ra! Re. e e Sys m ("H. 15(519)") oder the heading "CDs (Seconda1y Market), " or, if not 
so publishcJ by 9 :00 A. M. , New York City time, on the Calculation Date pertaining to such l.nterest Determination 
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Date, the CD Rate will be the rate on such Interest Determination Date for n gotiable ertificates of deposit of the 
lndex Maturity designated in the applic · ble Pricing Suppleme t as published by the Fe eral Reserve Bank of 
New York in its daily statistical release ''Composi te 3:30 P.M. Quotations fo r U.S. Gov rumen Securities" (the 
"Composite Quotations ") under the heading "Certificates of Deposit. •· If such rate is not yet published in either 
H.15(519) or th Composite Quotat ions by 3:00 P.M., New York City tine, on the Calculation Dat pertaining lo 
such luterest De ermination Date, he CD Rate on such interest D~termination Dat wil b' c lculated by the 
Calculation Agent :rnd wi ll be the arithmetic mean of the secondary market offered rates as of 10:00 A.M., New 
York City time, on such lntt:rcst Determination Date for ert ifi at s of eposit in ao . n ount that is representative 
for a single transactlon at that time with a remaining maturity closest lo the Index Maturity esignated in the Pricing 
Supplement of three leading nonba.nk dealers in negotiable U.S. dollar certific.ates of deposit in e City of New 
York selected by the Calculation Agent for negoti ble certificates of deposit of major U ited Sta s money center 
banks; provided , however , lhat if the dealers selected as aforesaid by the Calculation Agent are not quoting as set 
forth above, the CD Rate in effect for the applicable period will be the same as be CD Rate for the immediately 
precedi11g Interest Reset Period (or, if there was no sucb Interest Reset Period, the rate of interest payable on the 
CD Rate Noces for which such CD ltite is being determined shall be the nitial Interest Rate). 

Commercial Paper Rate Notes 

CommerciaJ Papa Ra Not.es will bear int rest at the interest rate (calculated wi lh reforence to the 
Commercial Paper Rate and the Spread and/or Spr ad Multiplier, if any, and subjec to the Minimum Interest Rate 
and the Max1mum Intere ·t Rat , if any) specified in the Commer ial Paper Rate Notes and in the applic hie Pricing 
Supplement. 

Unless otherwise speci fi ed in tbe app licable Pricing Supplement, "Co ercial p, p. ate " means, with 
respect to any Interest Determination Date, the Money Market Yield (as defined below) of the ra on such date for 
commercial paper having the Index Maturi ty specified io the applicable Pricing Supplement, as such rate shal l be 
published i.n H.15(519), under the heading '' Commercial Paper." ln the event ti ts 1 h rate is not publ ished by 9:00 
A.M., New York City time, on the Caiculation Date pertaining to such Interes e ermination Date , then the 
Commercial P p ,r Rate shall be he Money Market Yield of the rate on such Int rest Determination Date for 
commercial paper of the specified Index Maturity as published in Composi e Quot· tions under th heading 
"Commercial Paper. " If by 3:00 P.M .. New York City time, on such Calculation Date such Rate is not yet 
available in either H. 15(519) or Composite Quotations, ti n th onuner al aper ate shall be the Money Market 
Yield of lhe ari thmt:t ic mean of the offered Rate-S as of 11 :00 A. M ., ew York City time , on such Interest 
Determination Date of three leading dealers of commercial paper in The City of . ~ ew York selected by tbc 
Calculation Agent for comm 'rcial paper of the specified Index Maturity, place fo r in ust · · l is uer whose bon<l 
Rating is "AAA, " or the equivalent, from a nationally recognized ra ting agency ; provided. however, that if tbe 
dealers sekcte<l s aforesaid by the Calculation Agent arc not quoling offered r t s a mentioned in th.is ~entence , 

tbe Commercial Papc;\f Rate in effect for the applicable period will be the same as the Commercial Paper Rate for 
the i.mmediatcly preced ing In terest Reset Period (or, if there was no ·uch Interest • es .t e i d , the rate of interest 
payable on the Commercial Paper Rate Notes for which such Commerci I P per Rate is bt:.ing etcrmined shall be 
the lniti:1.l lnterest Rate) . 

"Money Market YidJ" shall be a yield calcul t d in accordan e with the following formula: 

Money Market Yield = DX 360 x JOO 
360 - (D x M) 

where "D '' refers to the app li cable per annum rate for commer ial paper g otcd on a bank discount b sis and 
expressed as a decimal, • d "M" refers to the ac 1al numb r of days for which interest is being calcul ted . 

Federal Funds Rare Notes 

Federal Funds Rat Notes ill bear int rest at the interest Rate (calcul ted with reference to the Federal 
Funds Rate and the Spread and/or Spread Multiplier, if any, and subject to the !vlinimum lntcn:st Rate and the 
Maximu m interest Rate, if any) specified in tbe Federal Fund _ Rate Notes and in the applicable Pri cing Supplement. 
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Uute.ss oth rwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the "Federal unds ate" means, with 
respect to any Inten~~t Determination Date, the rate on such date for Federal funds s publish r in H .1 5(51 9) under 
the he ding "Federal Funds (Effective),• or, if not so published by 9:00 A.M., New York City time, on the 
Calculation Date pertaining lo such Interest Determination Date, the Federal J<unds R t will be the r te on sue 
Interest D termination Date as published in the Composite Quotations under the heading " 'ederal . • nds/Ef cctivc 
R te. " If such rate is not yet published in either H.15(519) or the Composite Quotations by 3:00 P.M ., New York 
City time, on the Calculation Date pertaining to such Interest Determination Date, the Federal Pu s Rate for uch 
Interest Detenninaf on Date will be calculated by the Calculation Agent and will be the arithmetic mean of e rates 
for the last tr nsaction in overnight Federal funds , as of 9:00 A.M., New York Ciry tit e, on such Interest 
Dewrrnin tion Date, arranged by three leading brokers of Federal funds transactions in The ity of New York 
selected by the Calculation Agent; provided, however, that if tbe brokers se!ec ed s aforesai by the Calcula ion 
Agent are not quotin as set forth above, ihe Federal Funds Rale in effect for th pplicab!e pe ·o wiU be th· imm 

as tbe Federal Funds Rate for the immediately preceding Interest Res t Period (or, if there was no sucl In c rnsl 
Reset Period, the at of interest payable on the Federal Funds Rate Notes for which such Federal Fu 1ds Rare is 
b1;ing e erminell shall be the Initi 1 Interest Rate). 

LIBOR Notes 

LIBOR Notes will bear interest at tbe interest rate (calculated with reference to LlBOR and the Spread 
nnd/or Spread Multipl ier, if any, and subject to the Minimum Int r ·t Rate and ihe Maximum Inte sl .ate, if· ny) 
specified in he UBO No es and in th applicable Pricing Supplem nt . 

Unless otherwise speci fied in the applicable Pricing Supplemen , "LIBOR" for each lntercst De cnnina ion 
Date will be determined by the Calculation Agent as follows: 

(i) As of the Interest Determination Date, LlBOR wil be either: (a) if "LlBOR Reute," is 
specified in he applicable Pricing Supplement, the arithmetic mean of the offered rat . unless the spxified 
Designat d LIBOR P g (as defined below) by its tenns provi "cs only for a single rate , in w icl " se uch 
si .gle rate shall be used) for deposits in the Index Currency h ving the Index M turily ·signated int c 
app icable Pricing Supplement, commencing on the second London Banking Day immet i tdy follow 'ng 
such lntere De ermina ion Date, that appear on he Desi ated LIBOR P ge as of 11:00 J\. M., London 
time, on that Interest Determination Date, if at least two such offered rates appear (unks , a ' aforesaid, 
only a single .e is required) on such Designated LIBOR Pag~, or (b) if "LIBOR Telerate '' i:> spc ified 
in the pplicab le Pricing Supplement, the rate for deposits io the 1ndex Currency ha ing th~ ln<lc · M rity 
designated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, commencing on the secon London Bru · ing Day 
immediately followi g such Interest Det rmination Date, that appears on the Designated LI.BO 
of 11 :00 A. M., London time, on tbat Interest Determin ion Date. If fewer than wo of en: r , appe. r 
(if "LIBOR Reuters" is sp citied in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or no r te appe. s (if "LB R 
T lcrate" is speci fied in he applicable Pricing Supplement) , L BOR in re pect o thi.: r.: ated Intc est 
Determination Date wili be determined as if the parties had specified the r tc described in c ause (ii) b ow. 

(ii) Wi th respect to an Interest Determination Date on which ewer than two o c eJ r. t~s 
a pear (if "LIBOR Reuters" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or no appears (if 
"U BOR Telerate" is specified in the app lic ble P ricing Supplemen ), the Cah!lation Agent wi ll n.:quc t 

tb.e principal London o ffices of each of four major reference banks in he n on .interbank market , as 
selected by the Calculation Agent, to provide the Cal~ulation Agent witb its offered q ta ion for deposits 
in tht; Index Currency for the period of the Index Maturity signa c: in the applicable ricing uppkm nt , 
commencing on the second London Banking Day immediately following s ch Int rest Det iu Lio Date, 
to prime banks in the London interbank market at approximately 11 :00 A.~ . , London tin , on uch 
Interest Dete mination Date and in · principal amount of not I .ss than $ 1,000,000 (or the c uivul ·1 tin the 
Index Currency , if the Index Currency is not the U .S. dollar) that is repre-cntative of a single trans -tion 
in uch Index Currency in such m rket at such time. If at least two such quotations are provi , , LIBOR 
determined on such Interest Determination Oat w ill be the arithmetic mean of s ch quotations . If fewer 
than two quotations are provided, LrBOR determin on such Interest Detcnnination Date will be the 
ari thmetic mean of the rates quoted at approximately 11:00 A.M . (or such o her time sp ~ jfi in the 
appl icable P ricing Supplement) , in the applicable principal finar cial n ter for the country of the Jndex 
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Currency on s 1ch Interest D::: erm!nation D te , by three major banks in such principal fman ial center 
selecte-0 by the Calcula io Agent for Joa s in tbc ludex CUrr ncy to cading Europ banks, having the 
Ind ·x 1 aluri ty le i at d in the appl icable Pricing Supplement and in a principal mount of not less than 
$1 ,000,000 commencing on the second London Banking D y immediate y fo Uowing such Interest 
Determination D te (or !he equ!valent in tbe Index Currency, if the Index ,urrency is not the U .S. dollar) 
that is representative for a sing le transaction in such Index Cu1Tc cy in s ch arket at Sil im ; provide , 
however, t if the banks so selected by the Calculation Agent are not quoti ng as mentioned i11 tbic 

scnlcnce, f IBOR in ef ect for the applicable period ill be the same as LlBO fo r th i: immediately 
preceding lntercst Reset Period (or, if there was no such Interest Reset Period , the rale of interest payab e 
on the L BOR Notes for which such UBOR is bei 1g d"":te.rmined shall be t e. Initial Interest Rate) . 

"Index Currency" means the currency (including composite curren ies) specified in the app licab e Pricing 
Sl ppk.ment as the currency for wh ich LlBOR s all be a I d . lf no sue curruncy is speci .I' in th applic blc 
Pri ing Suppleml.llll. th1: lnde.x Currency shall be U.S. dollars. 

"Dtlsigoatcd LIBOR P<lg " n.ean;; eith r (a) if "LIBOR Ret ters" is esignated iu the a pl"c bl Pricing 
Supplement, the display n the eukr lvloni tor Money Rates Serv ·ce for the purpose of displaying t e London 
in terbank r. es of major nnks for h- appliciible Index Currency, or (b) if "LIB R Tel r-tc '' is esignated in Lhe 
applicable P ricing Sup lement, the isplay on the Dow Jones Tder te Ser/cc 'Or the purpose of displaying lht~ 
London interbank rates of ajor banks for the applicable Index Curr ncy. If neither LlBO R u rs nor LlBOR 
Telerate is specift d in the . pplicable Pricin_ Suppl ment, LIBOR for lhe applicable l ex C trren y will be 
determi.ned s if LIBOR Telcrale (and , if the U .S. dollar is the Index. Curren y , Page 3750) hn<l b .en specifi~d . 

Prime R .r ·· Notes 

Pri Rate Notes wi ll be. r inte s at the in ~rest ate (cr!lcula.t with referenc lo the Prime t and th 
S read an /or Spr..:· Mu f lier, if y, nd subje t Lott Mini1 m tcr ~ t R c and the Ma, im lnteres! Rat ·. 
if any) speci fied in the Prime fu>_te Notes and in the applicable Pricin"' ~ u_ plemcnt.. 

UnJ ss o he. ·i se sp • ·ifi <l u th applicable Pricing upplemeot, "Pri me Rate" m am , wit resp.:ct lo any 
Interest Determination Date , the rate se forth in H, 15(519) for mlCb. ate opposite e c pfo . "Ba.ilk Prime Loan . n 

If such rate is not yet publisbc by 9:00 A. M., New York City imc, on the ,alcu a ion Date pcrta1ni.ng to such 
Interest D~termination D te, th Prime . ate for sucl lnter st Determina ion Date will be th aritiune ic n an of 
the rates of intere.<it publicly announced by each bank named on the Reuters Ser en USPRIME 1 (as efine<l below) 
as su ·h ba k's prime rattl or bas lending rate as in effect for :m h Int rest Determination Date as iot..:d on th 
Reuters Screen USPRlME l on such Interest Determination Date, or, if fewer than four such t<.::s appear on the 
Reuters Screen USPRlME i for sud In erest Dete mina ion a! , th r "· shall be he arilh e i mean [the p imc 
rates quot on the basis of the actual n irnber of days in the year divided by 360 as of the close of business on such 
Interes Determination D c by at least two o f e three major money center banks in The City of e Yor selected 
by the Calcu!ati n Agent fro m which quo ions are requested . If f er than two uotations arc provided, the Prime 
Rate s all be calculated by tbe Calculation Agent d shall be d te1'mined as the ithmetic mean on the bas is of 
the prime r es in TI1e City of New York by the approp iate number of substitute ank or trnst companies 
organiz.ed an doi ng busin 'SS un er t laws of ht:: nit d t tes, or y Stat thereo f, in c h ase having total 
equity capital of al e. s U.S. $500 million and being subjec to supervisi n or examination by ederal or sta e 
authority, s·!ccted by the Ca ·uiation Agent to quo e such rate or raks; provicl , wever, that if the banks or trn ·t 
companies selcc ed as afor s· · d by he Calculation Agent are not quotLng as set fo rth above, th "Prime Rate" io 
effect for the appli able period will be the sam as the Prime Rate for the immediately preceding Interest Reset 
Period (or, if there was no such Inter st Reser Period, the rate of inte est payable on th Prime R. e Noles for 
which such Prim Rate is being determined hall be the Initial Interest Rate). "Reuters Screen SPRI.ME I" means 
the display designated as Page "USPRIME l" on the Reut r Monitor Money ates Servic s (or such other p ge 
as may replace the USPRIME I on that service for the purposi:: of displaying prime rates or bas1:: ending rates of 
mi0or lJnited States banks). 
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Treasury Rme Notes 

Treasury Rate Notes will bear interest at the interest rate (calculated wicb reference to the Treasury Rat.e 
and th Spread and/or Spre.d Multiplior, if any , and subject to the Minimum Interest Rae and the Max·mum 

1terest Rate, if any) specified in the Treasury Rate Notes and in the applicable Pricing Supplement. 

Uni s otherwise specified in the pplicable Pricing Supplement, the "Treasury Rat " means, with respect 
to any Interest Determination Da e, the rate for the auction held on such date of direct obligations of the Uni ted 
S ates ("Treasury Bills") having the; Index Maturity designated in the applicable Pricing Supplemen , as published 
in H .15(519) un er the heading ''Treasury Bills - auction average (i nvestmen t)" or, if not so published by 9 :00 
A.M . , New York City time, on the Calculation Date pertaining to such Interest Determination Date, he auction 
average rate on such Tote ·est Delermina ion D {expressed as a bond equival ot , oa the basis of a y Jar of 365 or 
366 d ys, as app!ic ble, and ·pp lied on a daily basis) as otherwise announced by the United St tes epartment of 
the Treas ry. In the event th the n~sults of the au tion of Treasury Bills having the Index Maturi ty designated 
in the ppl icable Pricing Supplement are not published or repo ted as provided above by 3:00 P. M . . New York Cily 
time, oo such Calculation Date or if no such auction is held on such Interest Determination D te, hen the Treasu ry 
Rate shall be calculated by the Cale lation Agent and shall be a yield to maturi ty (expressed as a bond equ.ivalen t, 
on the basis of a year of 65 or 366 <lays, as pplicab!e, and applied on a daily basis) calculated sing th ari thmcrc 
me3ll of the secondary market b i rates , as of approximately 3 :30 P.M . , New York City time, on such interest 
Detennin f n Date , of three I ding primary United Stat government securities dealers selected by he C. culation 
Agent for the issu of Tr asury Bills wi th a remaining maturi ty closest to the dcx Matu "ty design le i.o the 
appli able Pric.ng upplemeut; provided , however, thst if the dealers selected as afor said by the Cslcuhtion Agent 
are not guoti g bid rat s as me ioncd in thi · senknce, the T reasury Rate fo r such Interest Rese ate will be the 
same as the Treasury a c for the immed·ate y preceding Interes Reset Peiiod (or , if there was no such .lotercs.t 
Rese Period . the rate of int r st payable on the Trc s ry Rate Notes for which the T reasnry Rate is bei ng 
determin· shall be; th t! Initial Int~ est Rate} . 

CMT R .ue Nores· 

CMT Rat, Notes will bear interest at the interest rate (calcu lated with reference to the CMT Rate and the 
Sp rca and/or Spre d Multipli r, if any, and subject to the Minimum lntere R te d the M i m lnte o:; R te, 
if any) specified in the CMT Rate Notes and in the appl icable P ricing Supplement. 

U 11 .:s ot 1erwise indicated in au applic ble Pricing Supplement, "CMT Rate" means, with r · pcct to any 
loterest Determination Date, the rate displayed on the Designated CMT Telerate Page (as defined below) under the 
caption " ... Treasury Constant M turities . . . Federal Reserve Boar Release H .15 .. . Mondays Approximately 3:45 
P .M ., " under the column for the Designaled CMT Maturity Index (as efined below) for (i) if thv Designated CMT 
Telerate Page is 7055 , the rate on s ch In erest Determination Date and (ii) if tl1e Designated CMT Telerate Page 
is 7052 . the wc;e or the month, s ppl ic.able, ended immediately preceding the week in which the rel. ted Inter-st 
Determination Date occurs. If such r e is no longer displayed on t ie relevant page, or if not displayed by 3:00 
P.M., New York City time, on er lat d Calculation Date . then the CMT Rate for such Interest Determination 
D:i. c will be s ch · · asury Constant Maturity rate for the Designated CMT Maturi ty Index as p iblisbed in ihc 
re evant H. 15(519). lf such rn.te is no longer published, or, if no published by 3 :00 P.M., New York City lime, 
on the relat ·· Calcula ion Date, then the CMT Rate for s ch Interest Determination Date wiU be such Treasury 
Constant Ma 1rily rat-. for be D i ated CMT Maturity Ind x (or other Uni ed States Treasury rate fo r the 
Designated CMT turi ty Inde. ) for the Interest De ermination Date with respect to such Interest Reset Date: as 
may rhen be published by either the Board of Governors of lbe Federal Reserve Syste or he United St, tes 
Department of the Treasury th t th Calculation Agent determin s to be comparable to the rat . formerly displayed 
on the Designated CMT elerate Page nd published in the rel van! H. 15(519). If such information is not provi 
by 3 :00 P. M . , New York City time, on the related alculation Date, then the CMT ate for the In er..:st 
Determination Dale will be calculated by the Calculation Agent and w ill be a yield to maturity , based on the 
ari th.mo.;ti c me,; of the s~on ary market closi ng offer side prices as of approximately 3:30 P.M., New York City 
time on the tn erest D~t.em1in lion Dat reported , according to their written records, by three leading primary United 
States gove rn n ecuriti (~S e lers (each, a "Reference Dea er ") in The City of New York (which may include 
tbe Ag<.:nts or t! ir affiliates) selected by the Cale lati on Agent (from five such Refer n Denk.rs elected by the 
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Calculation Agent, after consultation with the Institute, and eliminating the highest quotation (or, in the event of 
equality, one of the highest) and the lowest quotation (or, in the event of equality, one of the lowest)), for the most 
recently issued direct noncaUable fixed rate obligutions of the Un.ites States ("Treasury not s") with an original 
maturity of approximately the Designated CMT Maturity Index and remaining term to maturity of not less than such 
Designated CMT Maiurity Index minus one. year. If the Calculation Agent cannot obtain three such Treasury notes 
quotations, the CMT Rate for such Interest D termination Date will be calculated by Lhe alculalion Agent and will 
be a yield to maturity based on the arithmetic mean of the secondacy market offer side prices as of approximately 
3:30 P .M., New York City time, on the Interest Determination Date of three Refer nee Dealers in The City of ew 
York (from five such Reference Dealers selected by the Calculation Agent and elirn.inating thv highest quotat ion (or, 
in the event of equality, one of the highest) and the lowest quotation (or, in the event of equality, one of the 
lowest)), for Treasury notes with ao original maturity of the number of years that is the next highest to the 
Designated CMT Maturity Index and a remaining term to maturity closest to the Designated CMT Maturity 1ndex 
and in an amount of at least $100,000,000. If three or four (and not five) of such Reference Dealers ar quoting 
as described above, then the CMT Rate will be based on the arithmetic mean of the offer pric s obtained and neither 
the highest nor the lowest of such quotes will be eliminated; provided however, that if fewer than three Reference 
Dealers selected by the Calculation Agent are quoting as described herein, the CM Rate for such Interns eset 
Date will be the same as the CMT Rate for the immediately preceding Inter st Reset Period (or, if there was no 
such Interest Reset Period, the ra te of interest payable on the CMT Rate Notes for which the CMT Rate is being 
d~termined shall be the Initial Interest Rate). If two Treasury notes with an original IDAturity as descri bed in th~ 
second preceding sentence have rem<'ining terms to maturity equally close to the Designated CMT Ma urity Index, 
the quotes for the Treasury note with the shorter remaining term to maturity will be used. 

"Designated CMT Telerate Page" means the display on the Dow Jones Telerate Service on the page 
designated in an applicable Pricing Supplement (or any other page as may replace uch page on that service for the 
purpose of displaying Treasury Constant Maturities as reported in H . 15(519)), for the purpose of displaying 
Treasury Constant Maturities as reported in H.15(519). If no such page is specified in the applicable Pricing 
Supplcmcai, the Designated CMT Telerate Page shall be 7052, for th most recent we k . 

"Designated CMT Maturity Index" shall be the original period to maturi ty of the U.S. Treasury :; unties 
(either l, 2, 3, 5, 7 , 10, 20 or 30 years) specified in n applicable Pricing Supplement with respect to which the 
CMT Rate will be calculated . If no such maturity is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the De~ignate 

CMT Mat rity Index shall be two years . 

Renewable Notes 

The Insti tute may also issue from time to time variable rate ren wable not01; (the "Renewabi Notes ") th< t 
will bear interest at the interest rate (calculated with reference to a Base Rate an the Spread and/or Spread 
Multiplier, if any, and subject to the Minimum Interest Rate and the Maximum Interest Rate , i f any) sp cificd io 
the Renewable Notes and in the applicable Pricing Supplement. 

The Renewable Noles will mature on an Interest Payment Date as specifie in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement (the "Initial Maturity Date"), unless the maturity of all or any portion of the principal amount thereof 
is extended in accordance with the procedures described below. On the Interest Payment Dates in January an July 
in each year (uu.les.s different lnterest Payment Dates are specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) (each such 
Interest Payment Date , an "Election Daie"), the maturity of the Renewable Notes will be extended to the Tnterest 
Payment Date occurring twelve months after such Election Date, unless the holder thereof elects to terminate the 
automatic extension of the maturity of the Renewable Notes or of any portion thereof having a principal amoun t of 
$1 ,000 or any multiple of $1 ,000 in excess !hereof by delivering a notice of such effect to the Paying Agent not 
less than nor more than a number of days to be specified in the applicable Pricing Suppl men prior to such Election 
Date. Such option may be exercised with respect to Jess than the entire principal amount of the Renewable Notes; 
provided tbat the principal amount for which such option is not exercised is at least $ 1,000 or any largl!r ainoun l 
that is an integral multiple of $1,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maturity of the Renewable Notes may 
cot be extended beyond the Final Maturity Date, as specified in the appl icable Pricing Supplement (the "Final 
Maturity Date "). If the holder elocts to terminate the automatic extension of the maturity of any portion of the 
princ ipal amount of the Renewable Notes and such election is not revoked as described below, such portion will 
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become due and payable on tbe Interest Payment Date falling six months (unless another period is specified in the 
app icable Prici.ng Supplement) after the Election Date prior to which the holder made such ele.ction . 

An election to terminate th automatic eittension of maturi ty may be revoked a to any portico of the 
R~newable Not having a principal amount of $1,000 or any multiple of $1 ,000 in excess thereof by delivering 
a notice to s 1ch effect to the Paying Agent on any day following the effective date of the election to terminate the 
autom ti ex tens· on of maturity and prior to the date 15 days before the date on whic such port ion would otherwise 
m ture. Such a revocation may be made for less than the entire principal amount of the Ren wable Notes for wbicb 
tbe , u omatic extension of maturity bas been terminated; provided that the principal amount of the Renewable Notes 
for which the automatic extension of maturity has been terminat and for which sue a revocation has not been 
made is at least $1 ,000 or any larger amount that is an integral multiple of $1,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
a rev c tion may not be made during tbe period from and including a ecord Date to but. excluding the immediately 
succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

An election to terminate th"' automatic extension of the maturity o f th Renewable Notes, if not revoked 
as described above by the holder making the election or any subsequent holder, will be binding upon such 
subsequent holder. 

Th Renewable Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at the option of the Institute on the Interest 
Paym nt Dates in each ye r specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, commencing with t c Inter st Payment 
Date speci 1ed in the pplicable Pricing Supplement, a a redemption price as staled in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement, together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of red mption. Notwith:;landing anything to the 
contrary in this Offering Circular, unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement. notice of 
rt.::demption will be provided by mailing a notice of such redemption to each holder by fir class mail, postage 
prepaid, at lease 180 days prior to the d te fixed for redemption. 

lndexed Notes 

'The Notes may be issued, from time to time, as otes of which the principal amount payable on a dale 
more tha.11 nine months from the date of original issue (the "Stated Maturity") and/or on which I.he amount of interest 
pay ble on an Interest Payment Da e will be determined by reference to currencie , currency units, commodity 
prices, financial ornon-financial indices or other factors (the "Indexed Notes"), as indicated in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement. Holders of Indexed Notes may receive a principal amo.unt at maturity that is greater than or less than 
the face amount of such Notes depending upon the tluctu tion of the relative value, rate or price of the specified 
in ex . Specific information pertaining to the method for determining the principal amount payable at maturity, a 
historic l comp rison of the rel tive value, n t or price of the speci fied index and the ace amount of the Indexed 
Note and certain addi tional Uni ted States federal tax consid .rations will be cscribed in the applicable Pricing 
Supp ement. 

Extensio of Ma rity , 

The Pricing Supplement relating to a h Note (other than ru1 Amortizing Note) wiil indicate whether the 
fnsti lut has the option to extend the maturity of such Note for one or more periods of one or more whole years 
(e.ach "Extension Period'') up to but not beyond the date (the "Final Maturity Date") set forth in such Pricing 
Supplement. If ·be lnstitu e has such option with respect to any such Note (an "Extendible Note"), the following 
procedures will apply, mless modified as set fonh in the applicable Pricing Supplement. 

Th lnstitute may exercise such option with respect to an Extendible Note by notifying the Paying Agent 
of such exercise at k ast 45 but not more thim 60 days prior to the maturi ty d le originally in effect with respect to 
such Note (the "Original Maturity Date") or, if the maturity date of such Note has air dy b -n ext.ended, prior to 
the maturity date I.hen in effect (an "Extended Maturity Date"). No later than 38 days prior to t e Original Maturity 
Da or an Extended Maturity Date, as the case may be (each, a "Maturi ty Date") , the Paying Agent wi ll m i l to 
the holder of such Note a notice (the "Extension Notice") relating to such Ext nsion Period, by first ~lass mail , 
postage prepaid, setting forth (a) tbe el~tion of the Institute to extend the ma rity of such Note; (b) the new 
Extended Maturity D e; (c) the iateres rat applicable to tbe Ext nsion Period (which, in the case of a Floating 
Rat Note, will be calculated with reference to a Base R te and the Spread and/or Spread Multiplier , if any); and 
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(d) the provisions, if any, for redemption during the Extensioo Period, including the date or dates on which, tbe 
period or periods during which and the price or prices at which such redemption may occur during the Exteosion 
Period. Upon the mailing by the Paying Agenl of an Extension Notice to th holder of an Extendible Note, be 
maturity of such Note shall be extended automatically, and, except as modified by the Extension Notice and as 
described in the next paragraph, such Note will have the same term it had p1ior to t c mailing of such Extension 
Notice. 

Notwithstanding he forego ing, not later than 10:00 A.M., New York City Lime, on the tw nticth calendar 
day prior to the Maturity Date then in effe<:t for an Extendible Note (or, if such day is not a Business Day, not later 
than 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on the immediately succeeding Business Day), h Institu e may, at its 
option, revoke the interest rate provided for in the Extension Notice and es blish a higher interest rate (or, in the 
case of a Floating Rate Note, a higher Spread and/or Spi:ead Multiplier, if auy) for the Extension Period by causing 
the Paying Agent to send notice of sucb higher interest rate (or, in th case of a Floating Rate Note, a higher Spread 
and/or Spread Multiplier, if auy) to the holder of such Note by firs t class mail , postage prepaid, or by such other 
means as shal l be agreed between the Institute and the Paying Agent. Such notice shall be irrevocable. All 
Extendible Notes with respect to which the Maturity Date is extended in accordance with an Extension Notice will 
bear such higher interest rate (or, in the case of a Floating Rate Note, a higher Spread and/or Spread Multiplier. 
if any) for the Extension Period, whether or not tendere for repayment. 

If the Institute elects lo extend the maturity of an Extendible Note, the holder of such Note will have the 
option to require the Institute to repay such Note on the Maturity Date then in effect at a price C<[Ual to the principal 
amount thereof plus any accrued and unpaid interest to such date . In order for an Extendibl Note to be repaid on 
such Maturity Date, the holder thereof must follow the procedures set forth below under "Repayment at the 
Noteholdc:rs' Option; Repurchase" for optional r payment, except hat the period for delivery of such Note or 
notification to the Paying Agent shall be at least 25 but not more than 35 days prior to the Maturi ty Date then in 
effecc and except that a holder who has tendered an Extendible Note for repayment pursuant to an Extension Notice 
ruay, by written notice to the Paying Agen t, revoke any such t nder for repay ment until 3:00 P. M. , New Yor City 
time, on the twentieth calendar day prior to the Maturity Date then in effect (or, if such day is not a Business Day, 
until 3 :00 P. M., New York City time, on the immediately succeeding Business Day). 

Book-Entry System 

Upon issuance, all Fixed Rate Global Notes having the sam Issue Date, interest rate, if any, amortization 
schedule, if any , maturity date and other terms, if any, will be represented by one or more Global Securities, and 
all Floating Rat Global Notes having fae same Issue Date, Initial Interest Rate , Bas Rate, Interest Resd Period, 
Interest Payment Dates , Index Maturi ty, Spread and/or Spread Multiplier, if any, Minimum Interest Rate, if any. 
Maximum Interest Rate, if any, maturity date and other terms , if any, w ill be represented by one or more Global 
Securities. All Noles will be regist red in the name of a nominee of The Depository Trust Company, as depositary 
(the "Depositary") (a "Book·Entry Note"), or, to the extent indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, 
definitive, certificated Notes ("Certificated Notes "). Unless and until a Global Note is exchao.,,ed in whole for 
Certificaled Notes, a Global Note may not be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary for such Global Note 
lo a nominee of such Depositary or by a nominee of such Deposi tary to such Depositary or another nominee o f such 
Depositary or by such Doposit.ary or any such nominee to a successor of such Depositary or a nominee of such 
successor. Certificated Notes will act be exchangeable for Book-Entry Notes and , except under the circumstances 
described below, Book·Entry Notes will not be exchangeable for Certificated Notes and will not oth\'.-JWise be 
issllllb!e as Certificated Noles . 

The Depositary is a limi ted-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law. a member 
of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York niform Commercial 
Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). The Depositary holds securit ies of ils participants and facilitate th 
clearance and seHleroeat of securities transactions among such participants in such se::uri ties through electronic book­
entry changes in accounts of such participants thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities 
certificates . Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks , trust companies, cl aring corporations and 
certain other organizations some of whom (and/or their represenU!tives) own the Depositary . Access to the 

15 



Deposi t ry system is lso avail ble to others such as bank , brokers, dealers and trust companies that c ear through 
or maint. i. 1 a custodial relationship with a participant, eithe directly or indirectly . 

Upon iss ance of a Glob I Note, the Depositary for such Global Note will credit, on its book-eotl)' 
regi stration and transfer system, th . respective principal amounts of the Notes represented by such Global Note to 
the accounts of persons that have accounts with such Depositary (';participants") . The accounts to be credited shall 
he del;ign te by y underwriters or agents participating in he distribution of such Notes. Ownership of beneficial 
interests in a Global Note will be limited to participants or persons that may hold interests through participants. 
Ownership of beneficial interests in such Global Note will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be 
effected nly thro 1gh, records maintained by the Depositary for such Global Note (with respect to interests of 
participants) or by participants or persons that hold th.rough participants (with respect to interests of persons other 
l <m parf cip•mts). 

So long as the Depositary for a Global Note, or its nominee , is the registered owner of such Global Note, 
such Depositary or s ch n mine.e , as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holders of the Notes 
represen ed by such Global Note for all purposes under the IPAA. Except as set forth below, owners of beneficial 
interests in a Global Note will not be entitled to have the Notes represented by such Global Note registe red in their 
names , will not receive or be entitl ed to r eive physical delive.ry of such Notes in defmiti ve form and will not be 
considered the ow ers or holders thereof uuder the Notes. 

Principal of, and premium, if any, and interest pay ments on Notes represented by a Global Note registered 
in tbc mime of a Depositary or its no minee w ill be made to such Depositary or its nominee , as the case may be, 
as the reg ister d owner of such Global Note. Neither the lnstitl tenor the Paying Agent will have any responsibility 
or liabi li ty to participa ts , to indirect participants or to any beneficial owner w i h respect to (i) the accuracy of any 
reco rds main1ained hy the Depositary , any participant , or any indirec participant; (ii) the payment by the Depositary 
or · iy particip? 1 or indir~t participant of any amoun t with re.spect to the principal or purchase to participants, 
indirect parti.:i pant.<; or beneficial owners; or (iii) any consent given or other action taken by the Depositary or its 
nom1n - ·~ lb notcholdcr. 

·n1c Jn. itute expects that the Depositary for any Not s represented by a Global Note, upon receipt of any 
payment of p incipal , premiun , i f y, or int rl!St , will imm diately ere i pa1iicipauts ' accoun s w ith p yments in 
amounts proportionate to i eir respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of such Global Note as shown 
on the records of such Deposi t ry . The In;;titute also expec that payments by par icipan ts to owners of beneficial 
.iate rests m s ch Global Note hdd through ~uch p rti cipants will be governed by standing instnictions and customary 
p actices, as is now the case with the securities held for the accounts of customers registered in "street names" and 
w ill he lhi:. responsi bili ty of such par ·cip ts . 

If (i) he Depositary is at any time 1nwilli.ng or unable to continue as Depositary or the Depositary ceases 
to be a d • ring a ency register d under che Exchange Act and a successor Depositary is not appointed by the 
Institute wi th. 90 days, (ii) tbe In, titute executes and delivers to the Paying Agent ao order to the effect that the 
Giobal Not shall bt. transfen ble and exchange bib for Certificated Notes or (iii) an Event of Default bas occurre<l 
an is continuing with r~sp' t to the Notes, the Gl obal N tes w ill be transferable or ex bangcable for Notes in 
de mi ti e orm of like tenor and o an equal aggregate principal amo unt [n authorized denominations . Such Notes 
in defini ti ve form shall be regi st~red in such name or names . s the Depos·tary shall instruct the Pay ing Agent. It 
is expected that such ·astru ti ons may be bas upon directions received by the Depositary from persons that have 
accounts with the Depositary with respect to ownership of benefic ial interests in such Global Notes. 

Un ess otherwise noted, the informatioa contained in the preceding paragraphs of this subsection "Book~ 
Entry System" has been extrac ed from a report prepared by the Depositary . The Institute and the Paying Agent 

ak 0 o re r~sentations as to the completeness or the ccuracy of such information or as to the absence of material 
a !verse ch~.nges in such information subsequent to the date hereo f. 
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Optional Redemption 

The Pricing Supplement will ind icate that the Notes cannot be redeemed prior to maturity or will indicate 
the terms on which the Notes will be redeemable at the option of the Institute. Notice of redemption will be 
prov ided by mailing a notice of such r demption to each holder by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days 
and not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to ' the respective address of each holder as tbat 
address appears upon the books maintained by the Paying Agent. Unless otherv>'ise provided in the ppl icable 
Pricing Supplement, the Notes, except for Amortizing Notes, will not be subject to any si nking fuod. 

epayment at the Noteholders ' Option; Repurchase 

If applicable, the Pricing Supplement relating to each Note w ill indicate that the Note will be repayable at 
the option of the bolder on a date or dates specified prior to its maturi ty date and , unless otherwise speci fied in such 
Pricing Supplement, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, togeth r with accrued interest to the 
date of repayment, unless such Note was issued with original issue discount, in whi h case the Pricin"' • upplement 
will specify the amoun t payable upon such repayment. 

In order for such a Note to be repaid, the Paying Agent must receive at least 30 days but not more than 
60 days prior to the repayment date (i) foe Note with the fo rm entitled "Option to Elect Repayment " on th• reverse 
of the Note duly completed or (ii) a telegram, telex, facs imile transmission or a letter from a m~mber of a national 
securities exchange, or the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (the "NASD ") or a commercial b nk 
or trust company in the United States setting forth the name of the holder of the Note, the princip< I amount of the 
Note, the principal amount of the Note robe repaid, the certificate number or a description of the tenor and t rms 
of the Note, a statement that the option to elect repayment is being exercised thereby and a guarnnt e U1at the Note 
to be repaid , together with the duly completccl form ent itled "Option to Elect Repayment" on th· revers , of th ~ 
Note, will be received by the Paying Agent not later than the fifth Business Day after he date of such t le ram, 
telex , facsimile transmission or letter, prov ided , however, that such tele ram, telex, a simile raosmission or lc.l er 
shall only be effective if such Note and form duly completed are received by the Paying Agen t by such fifth 
Business Day. Except in the case of Renewable Notes or Extendible Notes, and unless otherwise pecified in the 
applicable Pricin0 Supplement, exercise of the repayment option by the holder of a Note will be irrevocable. T he 
repayment option may be exercised by the holder of a Note for less than the entii:e principal amount of the Note 
but, in that event, the principal amount of the Note remaining outstandi ng after repayment must be a A 1tho ·z 
Denomination . 

If a Note is represented by a Global Security, the Depositary 's nominee will b the holder of sueh Note 
and therefore will be the only entity that can exercise a right to repayment. In ord r to ensure that the Depositary 's 
nominee w ill timely exercise a right to repay ment with respect to a particular Note, the beneficial ownc of such 
Note must instruct the broker or other direct or indirect participant through which it holds 1 inte~t in such No 
to notify the Depositary of iis desire to exercise a right to repayment. Differ nt firms have different deadlines for 
accepting instructions from their customers and, accordingly , each beneficial owner should consul.I ti broker or 
other di rect or indirect participant through which it holds an interest in a Note in order to ascertain the deadline by 
which such an instruction must be given in order for timely notice to be delivered to the Depositary. 

The Institute may purchase Notes at any price in the open market or otherwise. Notes so purchased by 
the Institute may, at the discretion of the Ins i tute, be held or resold or surrender o the Paying Agent for 
cancellation. 

Repayment of Monies 

Any monies held by the Paying Agent io trust for th~ payment of principal, premium, if any, or i crest 
in respect of Notes after the expiration of one year following the date on which such principal .. p remium, if any, 
or interest has become due and payable shall be retwned to the Insti tute and any holder of such Noles shall 
thereafter look, as an nusecured general creditor, only to the Insti tute for the payment thereof an all liability of 
the Paying Ag 'nt with respect to such tiust monies shall tbereafter cease. 
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Certain Covenants 

The Insti tute represents in the !PAA that it is an organization: (i) organized and operated exclu.siYely for 
educational or charitable purposes and not for pecuniary profit and (ii) no part of the net earnings of which inures 
lo the bcnefil of any person, private stockholder or indiv idual, all within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended, and agretiS that it will not perform any act or enter into any agreement which will adversely affect :such 
!itatus. 

The Inslitute also represents in the IPAA that: (i) it is an organization described in Sectioa 501 (c)(3) of the 
rmeroal Revenue Code of 1986, as amend d (the "Code") or corresponding provisions of prior law; (ii) it has 
received a letter or other notification from the Internal Revenue Service to that effect; (iii) such Jetter or other 
notification has noc bee mod ifi ed, limited or revoked; (iv) it is in compliance with alJ lerms, conditions and 
limi tations, if any, contained in such letter or other notification; (v) the fac sand circumstances which form the basis 
of such letter or other notification as represented to the Internal Revenue Service continue to exist; and (vi) it is 
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 50 I (a) of the Code. The lnstilutt: agrees that it sh11ll not perform 
any act or enter into any agreement which sball adversely affect such federal income tax status and shall conduct 
its operations in a manner which will conform to the s tandards necessary to qualify the I.nstitu e as an educational 
organization within tbe meaning of Section 50J(c)(3) of the ode or any successor provision of federal incorn~ tax 
law. 

The Institute covenants pursuant to the IPAA that it will maintain its corporate ex.1st nee, will continue to 
operate as an institu tion for higher education and research, will obtain, maintain and kee.p in full force. and effect 
such governmental approvals, consents , licenses , permits and accredita ions as may be nece sary for the continued 
operation of the Institute a.s an institution for higher education provid ing such programs of instruction as it may from 
time to time determine, will not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substanti al ly all of its assets and will not 
consoli te with or merge int another corporation or permit one or more corpor tions to conso!ida e witb or merge 
into it, except that the Institute may (i) sell or otbetvJ ise transfer all or substantially all of its assets to, or consolidate 
with or merge in o, another organization or corporation which qualifies under Sec ion 501 (c)(3) of t c Code or imy 
successor provision of federal incom tax law , or (ii) permit one or more corporations or any other o rganizalion 
to consolidate with or merge into it, or (iii) acquire all or substantially ail of the assets of one or more corporations 
or aoy other organizat ion: provided, however that (a) the st rvi ving , resulting or transferee corpor tion, as the case 
may be, is incorporated under tbe laws of any state of the nited St.ates, is quali fied under ection 50l(c)(3) of the 
Code or any successor provision of federal income tax law and assumes in writing all of the obligations of anJ 
restrictions oo the Institute under the !PAA and the Notes and (b) after giving effect lo such sale, transfer, 
consolidation or merger, no Event of Default (as defined below) shall have occurred and be continuing . 

Eve 1ts of Def aull 

Under the JPAA, the following will be Events of Default wit re >ect to any series of the Notes: (a) the 
Institute shall default in the timely payment of any principal due on any Note of such series, ei ther at maturity, Hpon 
any redemption. by clcdanuion or ocherwisc; (b) the Institute shall def It for thirty days in ti e paymen{ of any 
interest due on any Nok of such series; (c) the Institute sh JI de ult in the due and punctu I pi::r formance of any 
otber covenant contained in the IPAA or the Notes of such series and such d fault continues for sixty days after 
written notice requiring the s me to be remedied shall have been given to the Institute by the hoider of any Note 
of such s~ries; (d) the Institute shall defau t witb respect to any obligations (other than non-recourse oblig tions or 
the Notes of s c series) of, or guaranteed or assumed by, the Institute for borrowed money or evidenced by bonds, 
debentures, notes or other similar instruments ("lndebte a ss ") which dcfaul re ults in the a celer !ion of 
Indebtedness in an amount in excess of $25,000,000 without such Indebtedness having been discharged or such 
acceleration having been cured, waived, rescinded or annulled for a period of thirty days afte.r writt n notice thereof 
to the lnstitute by the holder of any Note of such s ries; provided, however, that if sucb failure, default or 
acceleration shall be cured, waived, rescinded or annulled, then the Event of Default by reason thereof sh.aJl be 
deemed likewise to have been thereupon cured; (c) a court or govemment I authority of compe entjurisdiction shall 
enter an order appointing a custod ian , receiver, truste or oth r officer with similar powers with respect to the 
Institute or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or an order for relie shall be entered in any ca.'ie 
or proceeding for liquidation or reorgani tion or o h rw is to tak advantage of any b nkruptcy or in ' olvcncy lnws 
of any jurisc!icf.ion, or on.lering the dissolution. winding-up or liquidation of tbe lnstirute, or any petition for any 
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such relief shall be file<l against the institute and such petition shall not be dismissed wi thin ninety days; (f) the 
charter of he lnstitute shall be suspended or revoked; (g) a petition or order shall be fil ed by any governmental 

uthority having jurisdiction over the lnstitut to dissolve the Institute; (h) a p tition shall be fi led with a court 
having jurisdiction for an order directing the sale , disposition or distribution of all or substantially all of the property 
belonging to he Institute which peti tion shall remain undismissed or unstayed for an aggregate of ninety days, or 
(i) an order of a court having j urisdiction shall be made directing the sale, disposition or distribution of all or 
substantially all of the property belonging to the Institu te, which order shall remain undismissed or unstayed for an 
aggregak of thirty days. 

1n cas an Event of Default with respe.ct to the Notes of ny series sha.11 have oc ·urred and be continuing , 
the holder of any Note of such series then outstanding, by notice in writing to the lnsti te, may declare the principal 
amount (or the applicable a.mount specified in any Original Issue Discount Note) of such Note and the interest 
accrued th reon to be due and payable munediately and the Paying Agent or the holders of not less than 25% io 
aggregate principal amount (or the applicable amount specified in any Original Issue Discou t Note) of Notes of 
such s ritls then ou standing may declare the principal amount (or the applicable amount specified in any Original 
Issue Discount Note) of ·ii i Notes of such series and the interest accrued thereon to be du and payable immediately. 
The Paying Agent will notify holders of Notes of any series of any continuing Event of Default known to it with.in 
90 days after the occurrence thereof. 

At any time afte an acceleration of a Note, but before a judgment or decree for payment of money due 
has been ubtaine<l , lb~ holder of such No e may rescind any acceleration and its con.sequences , if all payments due 
on such Nole (other than those due as a result of acceleration) have beon made, or an ·mount sufficient to make 
all such payments has been deposited with the Paying Agent and all Events of Default have been remedied or waived 
by ~uch holder. Any Eve of Default with respect to a No~ may b waived by ti e holder of such Note. At any 
time after acceleration of all Notes of any series, but b .fore a judg ment or decree for payment of money due has 
been obtained, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or the applicable amount specified in any 
Original Issue Discount Note) of the then outstanding Notes of such seri~s ma.y rescind any acceleration and its 
consequences, if all payments due on the Not s of su h ser ies (other than those due as a result of acceleration) have 
b n made , or an amount suf 1cient to make such payments has been-deposited with the Paying Agent and all Events 
of Default have been rem died or waived by such holders. 

Defeasan · • 

The Institute may discharge certain obligations to holders of Notes issued under the IPAA wh.ich have not 
already bl!Cn delivered to th Paying Agent for c cellation and which bave either become due and payable or are 
by their terms due and payable wi hin one year (or scheduled for reuemption within one year) by irrevocably 
depositing with the Paying Agent cash, or, in the case of Notes payable only in U.S. dollars , U.S. Government 
Obligations (as J efrned in the !PAA) or a combination thereo as trust funds in an amount certifo:d to be sufficient 
to pay at maturity or upon reJemption tbe principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Notes. 

The Insti tute may also d ischarge any and all of its obligations to holden; of outstanding Notes issued under 
the IP AA at any time by irrevocably depositing with the Paying Agent cash, or, in the case of Notes payable only 
in U.S. dollars , U.S. Goveromen Obligations or a combination thereof · s trust fu nds in ao amount c rtified to be 
sufficient to pay at mat11ri ty or upon redemption the principal of, p remium, if any, and interest on all outstanding 
Note.<; issued under the IP AA, but may not thereby avoid its duty to register the transfer or exchange of sur.;h Notes, 
to replace any tempnrary, mutilated , destroyed, Jost, or stolen Note, or to maintain an office or agency in respect 
of such Notes . A trust to effe.ct defeasance under this paragraph may be established only if, among other things, 
the Institute de.l ivers to the Paying Agent an opinion of counsel to the dfect that the holders of such Notes will not 
recogniw incom , gain or loss for federal income tax. purposes as a resu lt of such defeasance and that <lefoasancc 
will not otherw.ise al ter such holders ' federal income tax treatment of principal and interest payment on such Notes; 
such opinion cou d not be delivered under curr nt law and , therefore, mus be based on a ruling o f tbe Internal 
Revenue Servi<.;e or a change in federal income tax law occurring after the date oft.he TPAA. 

T e Institute may be rde.a.s d with respect to then outstanding Notes issued under the JPAA from certain 
covenants described above regarding the Securities Act and tax status of the Institute and maintenance of corporate 
existence of ht'> Institu , without c eating an Event of Default by depositing irrevocably with he Pay ing Agent cash, 
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or, in the case of Notes payable only in U.S. dollars, U .S . Government Obligations or a combination thereof as trust 
funds in n amount ccr ified to be sufficient to pay at maturity or upon redemption the principal of, premium, if 
any, and in ere.st o all outstanding Notes issued under the IPAA (''Covenant Defeasance"). A trust to effect 
Cov ·nant Defo sance m,y be es ablished onJy if, among other thing, tbe £nstitute delivers to the Paying Agent an 
opinion of counsel to the effect that the holders of such Notes will ool recognize income, gain or loss for federa l 
income tax purposes as a result of such Covenant Defeasaoce and that such Covenant Defeasance will not otherwise 
alter such holders' federal income tax treatment of principal and interest payments on such Notes. 

Modification f IPAA and Notes 

Modification and amendments of the IPAA and the Notes may be i:nade by the Institute and the Paying 
Agent without the consent uf holders of tbe Notes for the purposes set forth in the IPAA, including (i) to evidence 
the sue ession of a corpor ti on to the Institute in accordance with the terms of the IPAA. (ii) to add to the covenants 
of the Institute for the benefit of the holders of the Notes or surrender rights or powers of the Institute thereunder, 
(iii) to evidence and provide for the accepULoce of appointment under the IPAA and the Notes by a successor Pay ing 
Agenl, or (iv) to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provision in the lPAA or the Notes wbicli may 
be inconsistent with y other provision therein , or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions 
arising under the l AA or the Notes, provided such action shall not adversely affect tile interests of the holden; of 
the Notes · n any material respect. 

With the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amoun t (or the applicable 
amount specified in any Original Isslle Discount Note) of the Notes then outsta.nding and affected thereby (voting 
llS ont~ class) , the Institute ru1 the Paying Agent may change in any manner the provisions of the TPAA or the 
Notes; or modify in any manner the righ ts of the holders of the Notes; provided tbat no such change shall , williout 
the consent of the holder of each outstanding Note affected thereby, (i) change the stated maturity of the principal 
of or inter on any Note, reduce the principal amount (or tbe applicable amount specified in any Original Issue 
Discount Note) thereof or interest or premium payable thereon, (ii) change any place of payment where, or the coin 
or currency in whic , any Note or any premium or interest thereon is payable, or impair the right to institute suit 
for the enforcement of ny such payment, (iii) reduce tbe percentage in principal amount (or the applicable amount 
specified in any Original Issue Discount Note) of the outstanding Notes the consent of whose holders is required 
for 1 y ~uch change or the consent of whose bolders is required for any waiver of compliance with certain 
provisions uf, or certain defaults and their consequences provided for ln, the IPAA. or (iv) modify the provisions 
of the I PAA or the Noles relating to such changes or waiver of past defaults, except to increase any such percentage 
or to provi that cert. in o ther provisions of the lPAA C<U1.0ot be modified or w;:a.ivcd w ithout lbc consent of the 
holder of eacb Note affected thereby. 

Paying Ag nt 

Und~r the !PAA, the Paying Agent will act solely as the agent of the Instilute and will not assume any 
rel io ship of trust wiUi the i,ciders of tbe Notes except with respect to funds held by it for the payment of principal 
of and i t es . o th<:: Notes. 
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS 

Exchi:mge Rates and Exchange Controls 

An investment in Notes that are denominated in a Specified Currency entails significan risks that arc not 
assoc!atod witb a similar investment in a security denominated in U. S. dollars. Such risks include , without 
limitation, the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange between the U .S. dollar and the Specified 
Currency and the possibility of the imposition or modification of exchange controls by either the U.S. or foreign 
governments . Such risks generally depend on economic and polit ical event over which the Institute has no control. 
In recent years, rates of ex.change between U.S. dollars and certain foreign currencies have been highly volatile and 
sucb volatility may be expected to continue in the future. Fluctuations in any particular exchange rate th l have 
occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuations in such rate that may occur during the 
term of any Note. Depreciation against the U.S. dollar of the Sp cified Currency in whic 1 a Nole is payable would 
result in a decrease in the effective yield of such Note below i s coupon r e and, in c_,r ain circumstances , could 
resull in a loss to the investor on a U.S. dollar basis. 

THIS OFFERING ClRCULAR DOES NOT DESCRIBE ALL THE RISKS OF AN INVESTME T IN 
NOTES DENOMINATED IN A FOREIGN CURRENCY, OR A COMPOSITE CURRENCY, AND THE 
INSTITUTE DJSCLAlMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY TO ADVISE PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF SUCH 
RJSKS AS THEY EXIST AT THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR OR AS SUCH RISKS MAY 
CHANGE FROM TIME TO TIME. PROSPECTIVE LNVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT TIIEIR OWN 
FINANCIAL AND LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO THE RISKS ENTAILED BY AN INVESTMENT IN NOTES 
DENOMINATED IN SPECIFIED CURRENCIES OTHER THAN U .S. DOLLARS. SUCH NOTES ARE NOT 
AN APPROPRlA TE INVESTMENT FOR INVESTORS WHO ARE UNSOP!IlSTICATED WITH RESPECT TO 
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS. 

The information set forth in this Offering Circular is direct d to prospec ive pur hasers who arc United 
States residents , and the Institute disclaims any responsibility to advise prospective purchasers 1ho are residents 
of countries other than the United States with respect to any matters tbat may affec the purchas . holding or receipt 
of payment of p 'ucipaJ of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes. Such persons should consult their own 
counsel with regard to such matters. 

Governments have imposed from lime to ti me, and may in the future impose, exchange controls which 
cou1d affect exchange rates as well as the availability of a specified foreign currency at the tilne of payment of 
principal of, premium, if any, or interest on a Note. Even if there are no actual exchange controls, it is possible 
thal the Specified Currency for any particular Note would not be available when payments on Sltch Note are due. 
In that event, the Institute would make required payments in U.S. dollars on the basis of the Market Exchange Rate 
on tbe date of such payment, or if such rate of exchange is not then available, n the basis of the Market ~xchange 

Rate as of the most recent Record Date. See "DESCRI.PTION OF THE NOTES-Pay1nent Currency . w 

With respect to any Note denominated in a foreign currency or composite currency, the applicable Pricing 
Supplement will include information with respect to applicable currency exchange controls, if any, and historic 
exchange rate information on the Specified Currency. The information contained therein shall constitute a part of 
this Offering Circular and is furni shed as a matter of information only and should not be regarded as ind icative of 
the range of or trends in fluctuation.s in currency exchange rates that may occur in the future . 

Governing Law and Judgments 

The Notes will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. In 
tbe event an action based on Notes denomioated in a Specified Currency other than U .S. dollars were commenced 
in a court in the United States, it is likely that such court would grant j udgment relating to tbe Notes only in U .S. 
dollars. 
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UNITED ST ATES FEDERAL T AXA TJON 

lo !he opinion of Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Perris , Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., special counsel to the Institute, 
the following summary accurately d scrib certain Federal income tax consequences rel Cng to the purchase , 
ownersh_ip and disposition of Fixed Rate No es, Floating Rate Notes and Indexed Notes denominated and payable 
in U .S. dollars and Foreign Currency Notes, as defined below. This summary is based on the Internal Revenue 
Code of 19$6, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code "), and existing and proposed Treasury regulations , revenue 
rulings and court decisions now in effect. This summary assumes that the Notes will be held as "capital assets " 
within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. It does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be 
relevant to a holder in light of his particular circumstance or to holders subject to special mies , such as persons 
other than United States Holders, as defined below, life insurance companies, dealers in securities or foreign 
curr1;ncies , persons holding the Notes as a hedge against cum::ncy risks , perscns who have hedged the interest nne 
risks of ownership of a Note, or United States Holders whose functional currency (as d fined in cction 985 of the 
D:>de) is not the United States dollar. It also does not discuss C¢rtain of the tax consequences that may be relevant 
to Notes wbich are denominated ·n a cur ~ncy, or the pay m nt. of the principal of, premium , if any , or interest on 
which are to be made in one or more currencies, other than the U.S. dollar (the "Foreign Currency Notes "). If 
the lastitute procee s w "tb th<!- issuance of Foreign Currency Notes , a ditional discussion of the principal United 
States Federal income tax consequ nces of their purch e, ownership and d isposition will be provided in the 
ttccompanying Pricing Supplement. Persons considering the purchase of the Notes should consult with their own 
tax a visors with regard to the application of the Federal income tax laws to their particular situations as well as 
any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, local or foreign tax jurisdic ion. 

As used herein , the term "U-S. Holder" means a beneficial owne of a Note tbat is for United States 
Federal income tax purposes (i) a citizen or resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation, partnershi p or other 
enti ty created or organized in or under t e laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof, {iii) an 
estate or tru t I.he income of which is subject to United States Feder l income taxation regardles · of its source or 
(iv) any oiher person whose income or gain in respect o f a Note is effectively connected with the conduct of a 
United Srates trade or business . The term lso includes certain former citizens of the United St tes . As use 
herein, the term "noo-U.S. Holder" means a benefici 1 owner of a Note thac is not a U .S . Holder. 

U.S. Holders 

PoymenL'i of Inter sr 

Payments of interest on a Note generally will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as o rdinary interest i.ncome at 
the tine such payments are accrued or are received (in accordanc with the U.S. Holder' s r gtl r method of tax 
accounting). 

Original Issue Discoun: 

The following summary is a general d iscus,i on of the United Stat s Federal income t x conseq enccs to 
U.S. Hold rs of th., purchase, ownership and disposition of Notes issue<l with original issuu discount ( "Discounr 
Notes"). The following summar; is based upon fi nal Treasury regulations (tbe "OID Regul lions") issued by the 
lnt rnal Revc1 ue Service ("IRS ") on January 27, 1994 md r the original issue discount provisions of tbc Code. 

For United States Federal income tax purposes, original issue discount is the excess of the staled 
reckmption price at n. tur ity of a Note over it.s issue price, if such ex s equals or exc e s a e mi.nimis amount 
(generally ~~ of 1 % of tbe Note's s tated redemption price a maturity mul tiplied by th number of complete years 
to it maturi ty fro m its issue date or, in the case of a Note providing for the pay ment o f any amount other than 
qual ifi ed stated inte es (as hereinafter defined) prior to maturity , mulcipli by the weight d average maturi ty of 
such Note). The issue price of each Note in an issue of Notes equals the fust price at which a substantial amount 
of such Notes has been sold to the public (excl udi ng bond houses , brokers , or similar perso or organiz.ati ns 
acting in the capaci ty of underwriters or wholesal rs) . The st ted redemption price at maturi ty of a Note is the sum 
of all payments provided by the Note otber than "qualified stated interest " payments. TI1e tern1 "quali fied stated 
intt:rest " gene.ral ly means stated interest th t is uncondi tionn !y payable in ash or properly (other than dt;bt 
instruments of the issuer) at le st annually during the entire term of the Note at a single fixed ate. In addition, 
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uoder the OID Regulations, if a Note bears iuterest for one or more accrual periods at a rate below the rate 
applicable for the remaining term of such Note (e.g., Notes with teaser rate~ or interest holidays), and if the greater 
of either the result ing foregone interest on such Nole or any "true" discount on such Note (i.e., the excess of the 
Note's stated principal amount over its issue price) equals or ex.cee.ds a specified de minimls amount, then the stated 
inten~st on tbe Note would be treated as original issue discount rather than qualified stated interest. 

Payments of quali fi ed stated interest on a Note are taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest income 
at the time :;uch payments are accrued or are recei ved ( in accordance with the U. S . Holder' s regul r method of tax 
accounting) . A U.S. Holder of a Discount Note must include original issu discount in income as onlina _ int ·rest 
for United States Federal income tax purposes as it accrues under a constant yield method in advance of receipt of 
the cash payments attributable to such income , regardless of such lJ .S. Holder's regular method of tax accounting . 
In general, the amount of original issue discount included in income by the initial U .S. Holder of a Discount Note 
is the sum of the daily portions of original issue discount with respect to such Discount Note for each day during 
the taxable year (or portion of the taxable year) on which such U.S . H older held such Discoun t Note. The "daily 
portion" of original issue discount on any Discount Note is determined by allocating to each day in ru1y accmal 
period a ratable portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period. An ''accrual period" may be 
of any lengtb and the accrual periods may val}' in length over the term of the Discount Note, provided that each 
accrual period is no longer than one year and each scheduled payment of principal or interest occurs either on tbe 
final day o f an accrual period or on the firs t day of an accrual period . The amount of original issue discount 
allocable to each accrual period is generally equal to the difference between (i) he product of the Discount Note's 
3.djusted issue pri.ce at the beginning of sucb accrual period and its yield to maturi ty (determined on the basis of 
compounding at the close of each accrual period and appropriately adj usted to take into account tho length of th 
particular accrual period) and (ii) the amount of any qualified stated interest payments allocable to such accrual 
period. The "adjusted issue price" of a Discount Note at the beginning of any accrual period is the sum of the issue 
price of the Discount Note plus the amount of original issu discount allocable to all prior a. cmal p riods minus 
the amount of any prior payments on the Discount Note that were not qualified stated interest payments. Under 
these rules, U .S. Holders general ly will have to Uiclude in income increasingly greater amounts of original issue 
discount in succe:;sive accrual periods. 

Under the OJD Regula ions , Floating Rate Notes and Indexed Notes (hereinaf er collectively referred to 
as tbe "Variable Notes") are subject to special rules whereby a Variable Note will quali fy as a "variable rate debt 
instrument" if (a) its issue price does not exceed the total noncontingent principal payments due under the Variable 
Noto by more than £J. specified de minimis amo unt and (b) it provides for stated interest, paid or compounded at least 
annually , at current values of (i) one or more qualified floating rates, (ii) a single fixed rate and one or more 
qualified floating rates, (iii) a single objective rate, or (iv) a single fixed rate and a single object" ve rate that is a 
qualifi ed inverse floating rate. 

A "qualified fl oating rate" is any variable rate where variat ion in the value of such rate can reasonably 
be expected to measure contemporaneous variations in the co t of newly borrowe funds in the curr m~y in which 
the V ariabl.o Note is denominated. Although a multiple of a qualified floating rate will generally not itself constitute 
a qualified floating rate, a variable rat~ equal to the. product of a qualified floating rate and a fixed multiple that is 
greater than zero but not more than 1.35 will constitute a. qualified floating rate. A variable rate equal to the 
product of a qualified f\011ting rate and a fi xed multiple that is greater tban z ro but not more than 1. 35, increased 
or decreased by a fixed rate, will also constitute a qualified floating rate . In addition, under the OID Regulations, 
two or more qualified floating rates that can reasonably be expected to have approximately the same values 
throughout the term of the Variable Note (e.g., two or more qualified floating rates within 25 basis points of each 
other as determined on the Variable Note's issue date) will be treated as a single qualified floating rate. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a variable rate that would otherwise constitute a qualified floating rate but which 
is su~ject to one or more restrictions such as a maximum numerical limitation (i.e., a cap) or a minimum numerical 
Jim.it.atioo (i.e., a floor) may, under certain circumstances, fail to be treated as a qualified floating rate under the 
OI D Regulations unless such cap or floor is fi xed throughout the term of the Note. An "obj ective rate" is a rate 
that is not itsel f a qualified floating rate but which is determined using a single fixed formula and which is based 
upon (i) one or more qualified floating rates, (ii) one or more rates where each rate would be a qualified floating 
rate for a debt instrument denominated in a cun·ency other than the curr n y in which the Variab.le . ote is 
denominated, (iii) either the yield or changes in the price of one or more items of actively traded personal properly 
(other than stock or debt of the issuer or a related party) or (iv) a combination of object ive rat . The OID 
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Regulatio s al so provide hac other variable interest r tes ay be treated as objective rates if so designated by the 
IRS in the future. espi te tl1' foregoing, a vari ble rate of interest on a Variab le Note will ooc constitute an 
objective ra e if it is reasonably expected that the average value of such rate during the first half of the Variable 
Note's term will be either significantly 1ess than or significantly greater than the average valu of the rate duri.ng 
the final hslf of the Vari ble Nol ' s term. A "qualified inverse floating r te " is any objective rat.e where such rate 
is e ual to a fixed rate minus a qualified floating ate, s long as variations in the rate can reasonably be expected 
to inversely reflect contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds. The OID R gulations also 
provide that if a Variable Note provides for stated interest at a fixed rate for an initial period of less than one year 
followed by a variable r te that is either a qualified floating rate or an objective rate and if the variable rate on the 
Variablll Note's iss ie d~ e is intended to approx· mate the fixed rate (e.g., the va u~ of the variable r tc on the issue 
date does not differ from the value of the fixed ra e by more than 25 basis points), theo the fixed rate and the 
vari ble raLe together will constilut~ either a single quaiificd floating rate or objective rate, as the case may be. 

ff a Variable Note tha provides for stated interest at either a single qualified floating rate or a single 
o~j .::ctive r t · t roughout h · term thereof qualifies as a ttvari ble rate debt instrumen '' under t e OID _ egulations, 
then any s t d interest on s ch Note which is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt 
ins rum n ts of the issuer) at least annually will constitute quali fied stated interest and will be taxed accordingly. 
Thus, a Variable Note th, t provid for st ted interest at either a single ualified floating rate or a single objective 
rate througho t the term thereof and that qualifies as a "variable rat debt instrument" under the OlD egul tions 
will genvrally not be tre s h. ving been issued with origin issue d iscount unless the Vari, ble Note is issu 
at a "tru • discoun t (i.e., at a price below th Note's s tated principal amount) in excess of a specifi d de mini mis 
amoW1t. Origin I issue discount on such a Variable Note arising from "true " discount is allocated to an accrual 
period using the cons t yield method d cribed above by ssuming that the variable r t is a fixed r. tc equal to 
(i) in the case of a qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, the value Ms o the issue date of the 
q1 lified tloat'ng rn c or qualified inverse floating rat , or (ii) in the case of an objective rate (other than a qualified 
inverse fl~,atin g le) , a fixed · te that reflects the yield h l is reasonably expect' for the Variable Note. 

n gen r:l , any other Vari ble Note th .t qualifies as a "variable rate debt instrument" w· l be converted 
into , "equivaJcnt" fixed rat d bt instrument for purposes o detennining the amount and ecru I of or' gin I issue 
discount and qualified stated interes on the Variable Note . The OID Regulations gen rally require that sucb a 
Var ' blc Note be convertc into an " uivalent " fixed r te debt instrument by substituting any qualified floating rate 
or quali 1~d iover e flea ing rate provide for under the terms o f the Variable Note with a fixed f" l.c equ 1 to the 
valu e of the qualified floa ingrate or ualified inverse floating rate , as the case may be, as of the Variable Note's 
iss 1 dat , Any objective rate (o her th a qualifi inverse floating rate) provide for under the terms of the 
Variable Note is converted into a fixed rate that reflects the yield that is reasonably expec ted for the Variable Note. 
I the c se of n Vari b le Note that ual ifies . s a "variable rate debt instrument" and provides for stated interest at 
a fixed rate in ddi tion to either one or more qualifie<l floating tes or a qualified inverse floating rate, the ti ed 
rate is initially converted into a qualified floating rate (or a qualified inverse floating rate, if the Variable Note 
providt.:s for a q 1 Ii 1 inverse floating rate) . Und r ch circumstance., the qualifi floating rnte o r qualified 
inve~e floatrng rat that repla s the fi xed rate must be such that the fai r mark t value of the Va · ble Note as of 
the V riabl Note's issue d e is pproximately the same as the fair market value of an otherwise identical debt 
ins rmnc 1 th t pro'v.-des fore ' .er the qualifi d floa ting rate or qualified inverse fl oating rate rather than the fixed 
r te. Subseque t to converting the fix.ed rate into either a qualified floating rat or a quali 1e inverse floating rate, 
the V. ri, ble Note is then co verted into an "equivalenc" fix te debt instrument in he manner described above. 

Once the Variable Note is converted into an "equivalent" fixed rate deb instrument pursuant to the 
foregoing rules, lhe 1 mount of original iss e di .a unt and qualified stated interest , if any, are determu1cd for the 
"eq 1ivalent" fixed r: te debt, r s . iment by .'.lpplying the genera] original issue discount rul to the '\x t ivalent" fixed 
rntc debt inst 1menr and a U .S. Holder of the ariable No e will count for such o riginal issue discount and 
<J llnlifit:d s tc 'nte est as if the U.S. Hold r held the "equivale t" fixed r te debt instru ment. For each accrual 
period, :lpp ropri te a justments will be made to the amount of qualifi d stated interest or origin issue discount 
assun t:<l to a e been accrnl! or paid wi th respect to the "equivalent" fixed r t eb 'ns rumc tin the event that 
such n ounts differ from th tual runount of int st accrued or paid 01 the riable No e during the ac ual 
per' od . 
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lf a Variable Note does not qualify as a "variable rate debt instrument" under the OID Regulations , then 
the Variable Note would be treated as a con tingent payment debt obligation. It is uot enti rely clear under current 
law how a Variable Note would be taxed if such Note were treated as a contingent payment debt obli ation . The 
proper United States Federal income tax treatment of Variable No es that are treated as contingent pay1 ent debl 
obligations will be more fully described in the applicable Pricing Supplement. 

U.S. Hol ers should be aware that on December 16, .l 994, the IRS released proposed amendments to the 
OTD Regu at ions which would address the accrual of original issue discount on, and the character of gain realized 
on the sale , exchange or reti rom nt of, debt instruments providing for contingent payments. lf ultimately adopted, 
these amendments to the OTD Regulations would be effective for debt instruments issued 60 days or more after the 
d t on whicb such proposed amendments are fioalii.ed. Certain of the Notes (i) may be redeemable at the, option 
of the lnstitu te prior to their stated maturity (a "call option") and/or (ii) may be repayable at the option of the bolder 
prior to th~ir stated maturity (a "put option"). Notes containing such features may be subject to rules that differ 
from the general rules discussed above. Investors in tending to purchase Notes with such features should consu lt 
their own lax advisors, since the original issue discount coruequences will depend, in part, oa the particular tenns 
and features of the purchased Notes. 

U.S. Holders may generally, upon election, include in income all interest (including stated inter¢St, 
acquisition discounL, original issu discount, d minimis o riginal issue discount, market discount, de mini.mis market 
d iscou t, aml unstated interest, as adj usted by any amortizable bond premium or acquisition pr mium) that accrues 
on a debt instrument by using the constant yidd method applicable to origil1al issue discount, subject to c~rtain 
limi tations and exceptions. 

Short Temi Notes 

Notes that have a fixed maturity of one year or less ("Short-Term Notes") will be treated as having been 
issued witb original issue discount. In general, an individual or other cash method U. ' . Holder is not requi ed to 
accrue such original issue discount unless the U .S. Holder elects to do so. If such an electi n is not made, any gain 
recognized by tbe U.S. Holder on the sale, exchange or maturi ty of the Short-Term Note wi ll be ordinary income 
to the extent of the original issue discount accrued on a straight-line basis, or upon election under the constant yield 
method (based on daily compounding), through tbe date of sale, exchange or maturity, and a portion of the 
deductions otherw ise allowable to the U.S. Holder for interest. on borrowings allocable to the Short-Term Noe ill 
be deferr d until a corresponding amount of income is realized. U.S. Holders who report income for nited States 
Federal income tax purposes under the accrual method, cash method holders who so elect, and certain other holders 
including banks and e ers in securities, Rre required to accrue original issue discount on a hort-Te m Note on 

a straight-line basis Wlless an election is made Lo accrue the original issue discount under a constant yield method 
(based on daily compounding). 

Market Discount 

If a U.S. H older purchases a Note, other than a Discount Note, for an amount that is less than its issue 
price (or, in the case of a subsequent purchaser, its stated redemption price at maturity) or, in the case of a Discount 
Note, for an amoun t that is less than its adjusted issue price as of the purchase date, such U.S. Hold T will be 
lreated as having purchased such Note at a ''market discount." unless such market discount is less than a speci fi ed 
de miuimis amoun t. 

Under the market discount rules, a U.S. Holder will be required to treat any partial principal payment (or, 
in the case of a Discount Note, any payment that docs not constitut qualified stated interest) on, or any gain 
roaJizccl on the sat , exchange, retirement or other disposition of, a Note as ordinary income to !he ex.tent o f the 
lesser of (i) the amount of such payment or realized gain or (ii) the market discount which has not previously been 
included io income and is treated s havin0 accrued on such Note at the tim e of such payment or disposition. 
Market discount will be considered to accrue ratably during the period from the date of acquisition to the maturity 
date of the Note, unless the U.S. Holder el~ts to accrue market discount on the basis of compounding. 

A U.S. Holder may be required to defer the decluctioo of all or a portion of the interest paid or acc1ued 
on any indebtedoess incurred or maintained to purchas~ or carry a Note with market discount until the matu rity of 
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the Note or certain earlier dispositions, because a current deduction is only allowed to the extent the interest expense 
exceeds an allocable portion of market discount. A U.S. Holder may elect to include rnatket discount in income 
currently as it accrue-9 (on either a ratable or compounding basis), in w hich case the rules des ribed above regarding 
tbe lrt<ltment as ordinary incom of gain upon the disposition of the Note and upon the receipt of certain cash 
payments and regarding the deferral of interes deductions will not apply. Generally, such currently included !Ill.U'ket 
discount is treat d as ordinary interest for Uni ed States Federal income tax purposes. Such an election will apply 
to all debt instrument acquired by the U.S. Holder on or after the first day of the taxable year to which such 
election applies and may be n:woked only with the consent of the IRS. 

Premium 

If a U .S. Holder purchases a Note for an amount that is greater than the sum of all amounts payable on 
the Note after the purchase <la other than payments of quali fied stated interest, such U.S. Holder will be 
considered to have purchased the Note with "amortiz.able bond premium" equal Ul amount to such excess. A U .S. 
Holder may elect to amortize st1ch premium using a constant yield m thod over the remaining term of the Note and 
may offset interest otb rwise required to be included in respect of the Note during any tax ble year by the amortized 
amount of such excess for tbe taxable year. However, if the Note may be optionally redeemed after tbe U.S. 
Holder acquires it at a price in excess of its stated rcdempt.i n price at maturity, special rules would apply which 
could result in a deferral of the amortization of some bond premium until later in the enn of the Note. Any 
election to amortize bond premium applies to all taxabl ebt obliga 'ons then owned and thereafter acquired by the 
U.S. Holder and may be revok only with the consent of the JR S. 

Di.\posilion of a Note 

Except s discussed above, upon the sale, ex bange or retir ment of a Note, a U.S. Holder generally will 
recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale, exchange or 
retirement (other than amounts representing accrued and unpaid interest) and such U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis 
in t11e Note. A U.S. Holder's adjus ed tax basis in a Note generally will equal such U.S. Holder's ini tial investment 
in the Note increased by any original issue discount included in incom (and accru market discount, if any, if the 
U.S. Holder has included such market discoun in income) and decreased by the amount of any payments, other 
than qualified s t ted intures payme. ts, rec ived and bond premium amortized with respect to such Note. Such gain 
or loss generally will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Note were held for more than one year. 

Notes Denomin ted or on wh'ch Jnterest is Payable in a Foreign Curre cy 

As uso::d hereia, "Foreign Currency" means a currency or currency unit other than U.S. dollars. 

Payments of lnteresr in a Foreign Currency 

Cash Me1hod. A U.S. Holder who uses the cash method of accounting for Un' ted States Federal income 
tax purposes and who receives a payment of interest on a Note (other than original issue discount or market 
discount) will be required to include in income the U.S. dollar value of the Foreign Currency payment (determined 
on the date such payment is received) regardless of whether the payment is in fact cooverted to U.S. dollars at that 
time, and such U.S. dollar valu will be the U.S. Holder's tax basis in such Foreign Currency. 

Accrual Merhod. A U.S. Holder who uses the accrual method of accounting for United States Federal 
income tax purposes, or who o he1w's is reguired to accrue interest prior to receipt, w il b required to include 
in incom the U.S. dollar value of the amount of interest income (including original issue discount or market 
discount and reduced by amortiz.able bond premium to the extent applicable) that has accrned and is otherwise 
required to be taken into account with respect to a Note during an accrual period. The U.S. dollar value of such 
accrued income will be det rmined by tra.11Slating such income at the ave age rate of exchange for the accrual period 
or, wiib respect to an accrual period that spans two tax ble years, at the average rate for the partial period within 
the taxable year. A U.S. Hold r may elect, however, to translate such accrued interest income using the rate of 
exchange on the last day of the accTW?l period or, with respect to a p rtial accrual period, using tbe rate of exchange 
on the last d y of the tax ble year. If the la.st day of an ccrual period is within five business days of the date of 
receipt of tlte accrued interest, a U.S. Holder may translate such interest using the rate of exchange on the date of 
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receipt. The above election wi l apply to other debt obligations held by the U.S. Hol and may not be changed 
with.out the consent of the IRS. A U.S. Holder should consult a t x advisor before making the above election . A 
U.S. Holder will recognize exchange gain or Joss (whi h will be tr ted s ordinary incom or los ) with respect 
to accrued int rest inco me on the date such income is r ceived. The amount of ordinary income or Loss recognized 
will uiu I th difference, if any, betwe n the U.S. dollar value of the Fo ign rrency paym~ot receivod 
(determit ,cl on the date such payment is received) in respect of such a crual period and the U.S. dollar value of 
interest income that has accrued during such accrual period (as determin above). 

Purchase, ale and Retirement of Notes. A U.S. Holder who purchases a ote with previously owned 
Foreign Currency will recognize ordinary income or loss in an amount equal to the differeo e, if any , between such 
U.S. Holder's lax basi s in the Foreign Currency and the U.S. do lar fair m r · t val e o f th ' ·oreign Cu ency 1sed 
to purchase the Note, determined on the dat of purchase. 

Except as discussed above with espect to Short-Term Notes, upon the sak, ~xchangt; or retirement of a 
Note, a U.S. Holder will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the difference berween the amount realized on lhe 
sale, exchange or retirement and sucb U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in t e Not . Such gain or los · g'ncrally 
wiU be api tal gain or loss (except to the extent of any accrued marker discot nt not previous ly included in the U.S. 
Holder' s income) and will be long-tenn capital gain or loss if at the time of sale, xchange or retirement the Note 
has been held by such U.S. Holder for more than one year. To he extent the amou realiz:e.d represents accrued 
but unpaid interest, however, such amounts must be taken into account as interes income, with exchange gain or 
lu~~ computed as described in "Payments of Interest in a Foreign Cun-ency" above. If a U.S. Holder receives 
Fornign Currency on such a sale, exchange or retirement the amount re lized will be based on the U .S. dollar value 
of tl1e Foreign Currency on the date the payment is received or the N ote is disposed of (or deemed disposed of in 
the case of a taxable exchange of the Note for a new Note.) lo the cas of a o e tba: is de. ominated in Foreign 
Currency and is traded on an established securities m.arkel, a cash basis U.S. Holder (or, pon election, au accrnal 
basis U.S. Hold r) will determine tbe U.S. dollar value of the amount r Ii zed by translating the Foreign Currency 
paym<;)nt at th' spot rate of exch ge on th scltlement da e of the sak.. A U .S. Holder's adjus ~ tax basis in a 
Nore will equal the cost of the Note to such holder, increa ed by the amounts of any mar et discount or original 
issue discount previously included in income by Lhe holder with respect to such Note and redt ed by y amortized 
a quisition or other premium and any principal payments rec~ive<l by be holder. A U.S. Holder' s tax basis in a 
Note, and the amo nt of any subsequent adjustments to such holder's tax basis, w ill e the U.S. dollar value of the 
Foreign Currency amount paid for such Note, or of the Foreign Currency amount of the a~justment , detcnnjned 
on the date of such purchase or adjustment. 

Gain or loss realized upon the ale, exchange or retirement o f a Note that is attributable to tluctuations in 
currency exchang rates will be ordinary income or loss which will oot be lr t as interes income or expense. 
Gain or loss att1ibutable to fluctlJ.ations iu exchange r tes will equal the difference between the U.S. Jolla value 
of lhe Foreign Currency principal amount of the ot , determined on th ate ch payme t is r · eived or the Note 
is disposed of, and the U.S. dollar value of the Foreign Currency principal amount of the ote, determined on the 
dat the U.S. Holder acquired the Note. Such Foreign Currency ga.io or loss will be recognized 011..ly tot.he extent 
of the total gain or loss realized by lhe U.S. Holder on the sale, exchange or retirement of the Note. 

Original Issue Discount. In the c se of a Discoun Note or Sbor • rm Note, (i) origi I i>:s ic d iscount 
is deten n.iJ1e<l in units of the oreign Currency, (ii) accrued original issue discount js translate<l into U.S. doUars 
as described in "Payments of Interest in a Foreign Currency - Accrual Method" above and (iii) the amount of 
Foreign Currency gain or loss on the accrued original issue discount is d t rmin d by c mparing the amount of 
income received altributable to the discount (either upon payment, maturity or an earlier d isposition), as translated 
into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange on th date of such rec ipt, with the amount o f original issul: discount 
accrued, ru; translated above. 

Premium and Market Discou111. fo tbe case of a Note with m rket discoun , (i) market discount is 
determined in units of the Foreign Curr~ncy, (ii) accrued market discount taken into account upon the receipt of 
any pill'tia! principal payment or upon the sale, exchange, retirement or other dispo ition of the Note (other than 
accrued market discount required to be taken · to account currently) is translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange 
rate on such disposition date (and no part of such accrne<l market discount is treatc: as exchange gain or loss) and 
(iii) i\ccrned mar et discount currently includable in income by a U.S. Holder for any ace al period is ranslated 

27 



into U.S. dollars on the basis of the average exchange rate in eff~t during such accrual period, an the exchange 
gnin or loss is determined upon the receipt of any partial principal payment or upon the sale, exchange, retirement 
or other disposition of the Note in the mauner described in a "Payment of Interest in a Foreign Currency - Accrw.1 
Method" above wich respect to computation of exchange gain or loss on accrued interest. 

With respect to a Note issued with amortiz.able bond premium, such premium is deterrni.ned in the relevant 
Foreign Currency and reduces interest income in uni ls of the Foreign Currency. Although not entirely clear, a U.S. 
Holder should recognize exchange gain or loss equal to the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the bond 
premium amortized with respect to a period, determined on the date the interest attributable to such period is 
received, and the U.S. dollar value of the bond premium determined on the date of tJ1e acquisitioa of the Note. 

Exchange of Foreign Currencies. A U.S. Holder will have a tax basis in any Foreign Currency received 
as interest or on the sale, exchange or retirement of a Note equal lo the U.S. dollar value of such Foreign Currency, 
determined at the time the interest is received or at the time of the sale, exchange or retirement. Any gain or loss 
realized by a U.S. Holder on a sale or other disposition of Foreign Currency (including i s exchange for U.S. 
dollars or its use to purchase No es) will be ordinary income or loss. 

Non·U.S. Holders 

ln general, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to United States F ederal income taxes on payments of 
principal, premium (if any) or interest (including o riginal issue discount, if any) on a Note. To qualify for the 
exemption from taxation, the last Uruted States payor in the chain of payment prior to payment to a non-U.S. Holder 
(the "Withholding Agent") must have eceived in he year in which a p yment of interest or principal occurs, or 
in either of the two preceding cal ad r years, a statement th11t (i) is signed by lhe benefic ial owner of the Note under 
peaalties of perjury, (ii) certifies that such owner is not a U.S. Holder and (iii) provides the o me and address of 
tbe beneficial owner. The st em nt may be made on an [RS Form W-8 or a substantially similar form, and the 
beneficial owner must inform the Withholding Agent of any change in th.e information on the statement within 30 
days of such change. If a Note is held through a securities clearing organization or certain oth r financial 
institutions, the organization or institution may provide a signed statement to the Withllolding Agent. However, 
in sucb case, the signed statement must be accompanied by a copy of the IRS Form W -8 or the substitute form 
provided by the beuefi cial owner to the organization or institution. 

Generally, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to United States F ederal income taxes on any amount 
which con titutes capital gain upon retirement or disposition of a Note, provided the gain is not effectively connected 
with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States by the non-U.S. Holder. Certain other exceptions may 
be applicable. and a non-U .S. Holder should consult its tax advisof in this regard. 

The NoleS will not be includable in the estate of a non-U .S. Holder unless a the time of such individual ' s 
death, payments in respect of the Notes would have been effectively connecte wi h the conduct by such individual 
of a lrade or business in the United States. 

Backup Withholdin 

Backup withholding of U nited S ates Federal income tax at a rate of 31 % may apply to payments made in 
respect of the Not to reg'stered owners who are not "e.xempt recipients" and who fail to provide certain identifyiog 
information (su ch as the registered owner's taxpayer identification number) in the required manner. Generally, 
individuals are not ex mpt recipients, whereas corporations and certain other entities generally are exempt recipients. 
Payments made in respect of the Notes to a U .S. Holder must be reported to tbe IRS unless the U.S. Holder is an 
exempt recipient or establishes an exemp ion. Compliance with the identification procedures described in the 
preceding section would establish an exemption from backup withholding for those non- U.S. Holders who are not 
exempt recipients. 

In addition, upon the sale of a No to (or through) a broker , the broker must withhold 31 % of the entire 
purchase price, unless either (i) the broker determines that the seller is a corporation or other exempt recipient or 
(ii) the seller provides, in the required manner, certain identify ing information or, in the case of a non-U .S. Holder, 
certifies tbat such seller is a non-U.S. Holder (and certain other condi tions are met) . Such a sal must also be 
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n:portcd by th~ broker to the IRS , unless either (i) the broker determines th t the eller is an exempt r ipi1.mt or 
(ii) the seller certifies its non-U .S. sta tus (and certain other conditions are rnet) . Certifi tion of tic regis ccd 
ownds non-U .S. stalu would be made norm lly on an IRS Form W-8 under penallie · ofpc1jury, ult ugh in 
certain c~es it m:i.y be possible to submit other docurnentary evidence. 

Any amounts withheld under the ba kup withholding rules from a p yment lo a bene ici. I own~i vould 
be allowed as a refund or a credit against such beneficial owner's United States Federal income tax provid d the 
required inti nnation is fu rnished to the IRS. 

THE FEDERAL INCOME TAX DISCUSSION SET FORTH ABOVE JS INCLUDED FOR ENERAL 
INFORMATION ONLY AND MAY NOT BE APPLICABLE, DEPENDING ON THE NOTE HOLDER 'S 
PARTICULAR SITUATION . UNITED STATES HOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX 
ADVI SORS WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF THE PUR CHASE, OWNERSHIP 
AND Dl SPOSlTlON OF THE NOTES, INCLU DING THE TAX CONSEQUENCES UNDER STA' :, LOCAL. 
FOREIG N AND 011-IER TAX LA.WS AND THE POSSIBLE EFFECTS OF CH AN GES IN FEDERJ\L OR 
OTHE TAX LAWS . 

PLAN OF DISTRlBUTION 

The Notes are being offored on a continuing ba~is by the Institut tlirough the Agents , which 1ave agre d 
to u~e thdr reasonable e fores co solicit purchasers of the Notes. The Institute will have t e sole right lo cccpt 
offers to purchase Nolt)S and may reject :my proposed purchase of Notes in whole or in part. An Agent will h ve 
the right, in its discretion, to reject any proposed purchase of Notes t!irough it in whole or in part. Th . Institute 
will pay the Agents a commission ranging from .125% to .750% of the principal amount of Notes to be sold at p r , 
provided ihat commissions with respect to Notes maturing more than 30 years fro da e of issue will be negotiated . 

The lnstiluk may also sell Notes to an Agent as principal for its own accou t at discounl to be agr 'IX! 
upon at the time of sale. Such Notes may be resold to investors and o ther purchasers at p revailing markd prices , 
or prices related thereto at the time of such resale, as determined by such Agent or, if so agreed , at a fixed p tb i 
offenng price. In addition, an Agent may offer any Notes that it has purchased as princip l to oth0r <l • I rs. An 
Agent may sell Notes to any de.aler at a discount and , unless otherwise specified in be applicable Pri ing 
Supplement, s 1ch iscount allowed to any dealer will not be in excess of the di scount to be rec ived by such Agent 
from the Issuer. After the initial public off ring of Notes to be resol o investors and ot er purchas ' r ·, the public 
offering price (in the case of Notes to be resold at a fi xed public offering price) concession and disc unt may be 
changed . 

The Institute may accept {but not solicit) offers to purchase Notes through additional agents , d may 
a point additional ge ts for the purpose of soliciting offers to purchase Note , in either case on terms substantially 
identical to the terms contained in the Distribution Agreement. Such other agents , if any, will be named in the 
applicable Pricing Supplement. No commission will be payable by the Institute to the Agents 01 accot tt of sales 
of Noles mad directly by the Institute. 

Th.:: Agents may be eemed to be "underwriters " within the mea.n.ing of the e unties c of 1933 (the 
•·s~uri ties Act"). The Lnsti tute and the Agents have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities, 
including liabiliti · under the Securitie!i Act, or to contribute to payments made in resp t !hereof. The Institute 
bas also grce to rcimb 1rsc the Agents for certain expense-s . 

· he Jnsti ute docs not intend to apply for the listing of the Notes oo a national s urities excl :mgc . The 
lnstitut.e has been advised by the Agents that the Agents intend to make a market in the Notes , as permitted by 
applicable laws and r gulations. The Agents are not obligated to do so , however, and the Agents may discontinue 
o akiog a market at aoy f e without notice. No assurance an be given to the liquidity of any trading market 
for the Notes. 

Concurrently with the offering of Notes through !he Agents as described mrein , the Institutc may issue 
other Debt Securities pursuant to the IP.AA referred to herein. 
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The Agents and/or certain of their a ffiliates m?.y engage in transactions with and perform services for the 
Institute and certain of its affiliates in the ordinary course of bu iness. 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNT ANTS 

The Statement of Financial Position of the Institute as of Jun 30, 1995, and the related Statements of 
Activities, Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets and Cash Flows for the ye r then euded, 
included io l'he Treasurer's Report appended hereto as Appendix B have been audited by Coopers & Lybrand, 
L.L.P., independent public accountants, as set forth in their report dated September 27, 1995, which report is also 
included in Appendix B. 

VALIDITY OF NOTES 

The validity of the Notes will be passed upon for the Institute by its special counsel , Mintz, Levin, Coho, 
Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C. , One Financial Center, Boston, Massachusetts, aad for the Agents by Davis Polk 
& Wardwell, 450 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York. 

30 



APPENDIX A 

MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 

The Institute 

The Massachusetts Institu te of Technology ("lvIIT" or "the Insti tute" ) is 
a private, nonprofit, coeducational, nonsectarian institution of higher 
education chartered under the laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
There are 9,960 students attending the Institute of which 5,329 are full-time 
graduate students. The Institute's faculty numbers approximately 960 
members with other academic staff of approximately 2,410. The Ins itute is 
located on a 145-acre residential campus fronting the Charles River in 
Cambridge, Massachusetts, opposite Boston. In addition, MIT owns property 
in several suburban communities. 

The Institute is organized into five schools -- Architec ure and 
Planning, Engineering, Humanities and Social Science, Management, and 
Science, which contain 21 academic departments -- and a Colleg of Health 
Sciences and Technology. The academic programs are organized primarily 
along the lines of traditional disciplines and each department offers one or 
more degree programs. Increasing numbers of students choose fields of 
concentration that cross regular departmental lines. Among these are 
programs in fields such as plane ary and space scienc , communications, 
health sciences and technology, visual arts, transportation, urban studies, and 
energy. 

Teaching and research both fulfill MIT's purpose of advancing 
knowledge. Research makes special contribu tions to the Institute's 
educational program by providing both theoretical and laboratory experience 
for students and faculty and by assuring classroom teaching is a the cutting 
edge. 

Institute Facilities for Teaching and Research 

MIT's campus includes 148 buildings, wi th a total building area of 
approximately 9.5 million gross square feet. In addition to academic 
departments, these buildings include 27 major school laboratories w hich 
provide a focus for interdisciplinary research that crosses classical 
departmental disciplines. The Laboratory for Computer Science, the Artificial 
Intelligence Laboratory, The Center for Cancer Research, the Center for Space 
Research, the Laboratory for Nuclear Science and the Media Laboratory are 
examples of these major school laboratories. Ther are also 14 
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L erdepartrnen al laboratories such as the Research Laboratory of Electro ics, 
he Plasma Fu ion Center, and the Energy Laboratory. 

In addition, the Insti tute has three major off campus research facilities: 
Lincoln Laboratory in Lexington, H aystack Observatory located in Tyngsboro, 
nd t e Bates Linear Accelerator Center in Middleton. Lincoln Laboratory is 

opera ed by MIT as a Federally Funded Research and Developme t Center for 
performing research and development in advanced electronics. Haystack 
Observatory is a research center engaged in radio astronomy, geodesy, 
atmospheric science, and radar applications. The Bates Linear Accelerator, 
oper ed und the joint auspices of the Laboratory for Nuclear Science and 
the Department of Energy, supports a broad program of research in n c ar 
physics with tromagnetic probes. 

Accreditations and Memberships 

The New England Association of Schools and Colleges, Inc., is the 
m jor agency accrediting the Institute. Each professional school holds 
accreditation from its respective professional association. The Institut is a 

ember of the American Council on Edu ation, the Association of American 
Univer, iti s, t Na ional Association of Independent Colleges and 
Universities, he Association of Independent Colleges and Univ rsiti s in 
l\1a sachusetts, he Consortium on Financing Higher Education, the New 
England Association of Schools and Colleges, and the National Association of 
State Universities and Land-Grant Colleges. · 

.G.overnance 

The governing body of the Institute is a board of trustees known as the 
orpora ·on. Its membe s number approximately 70 active member , and 

approxim ately 25 Emeriti members and include leaders of sc·ence, 
ngi ing, industry, ucation, and public servic including s embers, 

ex- ffi iis, the Chairman, he Treasurer, the Secre ary of the orporati n, the 
President of MIT, and the President of the Alumn i r ssociation. Also 
·ncluded are the following representatives of The C mmonweallh of 
Massac usetts: the Governor, he Chief Justic of the Supreme Judicial Court, 
an the Commissioner of Education. The Corporation meets four times a 
y ar with addi 'onal meetings called by the Chairman as necessary. 

The Corporation elects the Executive Committee, which has 
respons'bility for the general administration and superin endence o all 
mat ers relating to the Institute. The Executive Cornrni t authoriz s officers 
to orrow mon y on behalf of the Ins · u e in sue amoun s as the 
Committee may de ermine. 
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The curren t members of the Executive Committee and heir principal 
business or other affiliation are as follows: 

Executive Committee Members 

Charles M. Vest, ex-officio 
(Chairman) 

Paul E. Gray, ex-officio 

Glenn P. Strehle, ex-officio 

W. Gerald Austen 

Samuel W. Bodman 

Edward E. David, Jr. 

Judy C. Lewent 

Robert M. M calf 

Raymond S. Stata 

Morris Tanenbaum 
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Principal Affiliation 

President of he Massachusetts Institute 
of Technology 

Chairman of the Corporation of the 
Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology 

Vice President for Finance 
and Treasurer of he 
Massachusetts Institu e of 
Technology 

Surgeon-in-Chief, Massachu setts 
General Hospital, Bos on 

C airman and 0, Cabot 
Corpor tion, Boston 

Retired President, Exxon Research 
and Engineering Company, 
C inton, New Jersey, and 
President, EED, Inc., 
Bedminster, ew Jersey 

Senior Vic President and Chief 
Fi ancial Officer, Merck and Co., Inc. 
Whitehouse Station, New Jersey 

Vi Presiden , Te h ology, 
International Data Group, Inc., 
Boston, Massachusetts 

Chairman, CEO, and Co-Founder, 
Analog Devices, Inc., Norwood, 
Massachusetts 

Retired Vice Chairman of the 
Board, AT&T, Short Hills, 
New Jersey 
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Administration 

The principal dministrative officers of the Institute are: 

Dr. Paul E. Gray, Chairman of the lVflT Corporation 

Dr. Charles M. Vest, President 

Dr. Joe _oses, Provost 

Mr. Glenn P. Strehle, Vice President for Finance and Treasurer 

Mr. William R Dickson, Senior Vice Presiden t 

r. ames J. ulliton, v· c President for Administration 

Dr. J. David Litster, Vic Presiden for Research and 
Dean for Graduate Ed cation 

Dr. James D. Bruce, Vice President for Information Systems 

Ms. Joan Rice, Vice Presiden for Human Resou s 

s. Barbara Stowe, Vice President for Resource Development 

Faculty and Staff 

The Institute has 938 full-time and 22 part-time faculty as well as 
approximate y 2A10 other academic staff, w hich include instructors, echnical 
instructors, ecturers, postdoctoral associates and fellows, and senior research 
scientis ·s and associates. Currently 73% of the facul ty are tenured. In addition 
to t e Institute's 960 facul ty and 2,410 other academic staff, there are 5,550 
research, administra ive and support staff employees and 1,360 service s ff 
employ s for a total of 10,280 mployees. 
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Student Enrollments 

The following tabl shows actual enrollments for the last five academic 
years based on fall term registrations: 

Academic 
Year 

1991-92 
1992-93 
1993-94 
1994-95 
1995-96 

Undergraduate 
Full-Time Part-Time 
Students Students 

4,303 22 
4,493 27 
4,489 20 
4,458 14 
4,481 14 

raduate 
Fu ll-Time Part-Time 
Students Students 

4,967 249 
5,019 259 
5,024 257 
5,090 212 
5,329 136 

Totals 
9,541 
9,798 
9,790 
9,774 
9,960 

Note: There is normally a decline in the undergraduate nrollment of ap roximately 3% in 
the course of an academic year due primarily to graduations at mi year. 

Undergraduate Applications 

MIT attracts students worldwide with representation in the 1995-1996 
freshman class from 49 states and 44 foreign countries. The following tables 
show information concerning undergraduate applications and admissions 
over the last five academic y ars: 

Academic 
Year A12121icants 

1991-92 6,481 
1992-93 6,662 
1993-94 6,410 
1994-95 7) 39 
1995-96 7,958 

Academic 
Year 

1991-92 
1992-93 
1993-94 
1994-95 
1995-96 

Acceptance 
Acce12ted Rate 

2,012 31% 
2,219 33% 
2,140 33% 
2,158 30% 
2,113 27% 

Freshmen Ran ing 
in the top 10% of their 

High School Class 
94% 
95 
97 
94 
97 
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Enrollment 
1,053 
1,147 
1,080 
1,104 
1,122 

Average 
SAT Scores 

1360 
1359 
1370 
1373 
1380 

Yie d 
52 % 
52% 
50% 
51% 
53% 
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Graduate Applications 

The following tables show information concerning graduate 
ap plications and admissions over the last five academic years: 

Acad mic Acceptance 
Year A1212licants Acce12ted Rate Enrollment Yield 

1991-92 9,994 2,.329 23% 1,272 54 % 
1992-93 10,685 2,381 22 1,165 49 
1993-94 10,081 2,140 21 1,116 52 
1994-95 10,739 2,331 22 1,100 47 
1995-96 11,207 2,490 22 1,251 50 

.wonsored Resean;h 

Sponsored research represents a substantial portion of the income and 
expenditures of MIT. The following table shows he total direc cos s of 
sponsored research in current and constant dollars or each of the fi e fiscal 
years ended J LUle 30th: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended Tune 30, 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

,. GDP deflator 1991=100 

Current Dollars 
$597,082,000 
573,639,000 
591,787,000 
584,849,000 
595,507,000 

Constant Dollars* 
$597,082,000 
555,983,026 
559,857,352 
542,864,652 
541,572,083 

Research revenues received from sponsors pay for both he direct cos s 
of researc m ntioned above, as well as that portion of Ins itut expens s 
jointly applicable to instruction and research which are attributable to 
r search activities, also known as. indirect costs. The following table presents 
the level of total sponsored research revenues at MIT, cov ing both direct 
and indirect costs, for fiscal years 1991 through 1995: 
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Fiscal Year Ended h:me 30, 
1991 1992 J.m 1994 199c. 

(in thousands) 
RESEARCH AT THE 
MIT CAMBRIDGE ~AMPUS 
Federal Govenunen t Sponsored Research: 

Health and Human Servict:s $59,025 $60,177 $64,882 $60,192 $61,066 

Department of Energy 60,625 57,355 57,325 63,180 67,114 

Department of Defense 49,104 48,539 66,769 61,601 55,866 

National Scien e Foundation 37,953 36,574 38,008 39,574 38,564 

National Aeronautics and Space 22,755 25,889 32, -4 37,449 41,292 
Administration 
Other Federal .. JU~? 9 773 .. ... / .. ... .... ~:~9.~ 8 722 ···-·'---.. .... ~1.f?4.1 

Total Federal 238,109 238,307 268,206 270,71.8 273, 3 

Non- · - eral Sponsurn R s - rch: 

Industry 48,360 53,578 62,068 59,117 ~6, 120 

Foundations and Other Non-profits 23,751 24,920 25,593 23,666 26,430 

O ther .},?.~.~ .. ~. ·:~_-?) 5 ~87 
••• • (• •• • v ._ .:,,]~ .. ~19.~7. 

Total Non-Federal 77,710 83,960 93,148 88,956 88146 

TOTAL CAMBRIDGE RESEARCH 315,819 322,267 361,354 359,674 361,689 

RESEARCH AT THE MIT LINCOLN 389.453 364212 355,198 341,929 344,657 
LABORATORY 

TOTAL RESEARC $705,272 $686,479 $7"16,552 FO~,t_)O~ $706J_1.Q --

Budget Proc~ss 

The Execu ive Committee of the Corporation approves and monitors a 
five-_ ear fiscal plan covering he curren fiscal year an four year in o l e 
future. The current-year portion of the plan is bas on d .. aile budgets 
submitted by each of e Institute's departments. The res onsibility for 
controlling expenditures wi thin an account rests with the supervisor of he 
account, usually a faculty member or departrnc t head. Mon hly account 
statements are issued which show both budgeted and actual harges. These 
accounts are monitored not only by the supervisor but also by a department 
head who has overall responsibility for the c ounls withi1 he depart 1 nt. 
Cer tain expenses are controlled centrally to assure conformance wi h the 
Ins itut 's fiscal policy, ontractual obligations to program sponsors, · donor 
restrictions. The Executive Committee r views the fiscal plan regular y 
throughou t. the year. In addition, t ere is a Budget Group that meets 
monthly to review the status of the operating budge . The Provost, Vic 
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President for Finance and Treasurer, and Senior Vice President are members 
of this committee. 

Agministration's Discussion of Current Operations 

The following table summarizes the Statement of Operations and 
Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets for fiscal years 1994 and 1995, 
Schedule C in he Report of the Treasurer, Appendix B of the Offering 
Circular: 

Total Unrestricted Revenues 

Operating Unit Expenses 
Other harges to Operations 
Change in Unrestricted 

Net Assets 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
1994 1995 

(in thousands) 

$1,186,244 

(1,070,546) 
(59.968) 

$55,730 

$1,230,846 

(1,117,182) 
( 64,982) 

$48,682 

The increase in unrestricted net assets for fiscal year 1995 of $48.7 million 
reflects a use o these assets for 1995 opera ·ons of $9.2 million (shown in 
Schedule C in the Report of the Treasurer in Appendix B of the Offering 
Circular). That is, expenses and other charges to opera -ions exceed ed 
unr stricted operating revenues by $9.2 million . This use of additional net 
asse s represents less than 1 % of the market value of unrestricted net assets. 
At June 30, 1995 the market value of unr stricted net asse s approac 1ed 
$1 .275 billion, an increase of $125 million from the June 30, 1994 lev 1 of 
approximately $1 .150 billion. 

In fiscal year 1996 operating unit expenses and other charges to 
operations will approach $1.2 billion. We expect that these expenses and 
other charges will exceed unrestricted operating revenues by about $3 million. 

The underlying financial strength of the Institute can also be 
d monstrated in the growth of the market value f he inves ments . The 
following able shows to al investments at marke for the five fiscal years 

de Jun 30: 
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Tuition and Fees 

Fiscal Year Ended 
Tune 30, 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

Investments at Market 
(in thousands) 

$1,m ,629 
$1,947,982 
$2,133,234 
$2,170,157 
$2,501,184 

APPENDIX A 

Tuition for full-time undergraduate and graduate students for the 1995-
1996 academic y ar is $21,000, except for students in the Sloan Master's 
Program for whom the tuition is $22,700. For the 1995 summer session, the 
tui tion for all full-time graduate students was $7,000. 

Residence f es for on-campus housing vary according o 
accommodations. For the 1995-96 academic year, room charges for the 
various undergraduate residen es range from $1,396 to $1,707 for each of the 
two terms. For the past five years the housing facilities, both undergraduate 
and graduate, have operated at full occupancy. Room rates are set so that the 
housing sys em operates on a break-even basis. 

The following table shows the fastitute's undergraduate tuif on {which 
includes a compulsory MIT Health Service fee), and average undergraduate 
room and board expenses for the indicated academic years: 

Average 
Acad mic Tuition Undergraduate 

Year and Fees Room & Board Total 
1991-92 $16,900 $5,330 $22,230 
1992-93 18,000 5,565 23,565 
1993-94 19,000 5,800 24,800 
1994-95 20,100 5,975 26,075 
1995-96 21,000 6,150 27,1 5D 
1996-97* 22,000 6,300 28,350 

""The Executive Commi ttee approved the 1996-1997 charges at their 
March 1, 1996 meeting. 

The Executive Committee of the Corporation has the power to alter or 
revise t e fees and charges. 

A-9 



APPENDIX A 

Student Financial Aid 

MIT has a policy of admitting undergraduate students without regard 
to financial capacity, together with a commitment to meet the full financial 
needs of those admitted. During the year ended June 30, 1995, 2,697 MIT 
undergraduate students (59% of the enrollment) received some form of 
Institute-administered student aid. The average award for the 1994-1995 
academic year was $19,636. 

The following table provides information on the extent to which the 
Institute has provided financial assistance to students and parents for each of 
the last five fiscal years: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
1991 1992 1993 1994 

(in thousands) 
1995 

Undergraduate Grants $20/927 $23,103 $25,984 $26,311 $27,892 
Loans Made to Students 8J24 8,969 8,215 6,734 8,402 
Total Undergraduate Grants 

and Loans Made to Students 29,051 32,072 34,199 33,045 36,294 

Student Employment 68,395 74,099 79,639 90,518 96,763 

Total Financial Assistance ~97,446 $106,171 m113,83~ ~123,563 ~133,057 

A substantial portion of financial aid funding is provided by federal 
and other programs in which the Institute regularly seeks participation. The 
Institute cannot be certain that the levels of federal support which existed 
during the five years ended June 30, 1995 will be maintained. All federal 
programs are subject to the judgments of the Congress and the 
recommendations of the United States Department of Education. 

Labor Relations 

Collective bargaining for service staff employees has been established at 
MIT since the first collective bargaining unit was organized in 1936. 
Approximately 1,400 service staff employees belong to unions. These unions 
include one international and three independent unions representing 
employees through five separate collective bargaining agreements. The 
occupational groups covered include trade and maintenance personnel, 
guards, campus police, and research technicians. More than 80% of these 
employees have had union agreements since 1946, during which period there 
have been three work stoppages; one in 1955, one in 1962, and one in 1974, 
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each of relatively short duration. At present all five bargaining units have 
contracts in place. 

The faculty, research and administrative staffs of the Institute are not 
represented by any union. 

Educational Plant Assets 

The lnstitute's land, buildings and equipment are shown at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation in its financial statements. When expended, costs 
associated with the construction of new educational facilities are shown as 
construction in progress until such projects are completed. Fully-depreciated 
buildings and equipment are removed from the financial statements. 

The book value of the land, buildings and equipment net of 
depreciation was $462,715,000 as of June 30, 1995 up from $431,083,000 as of 
June 30, 1994. This change includes $70,455,000 of net additions to the 
educational plant offset by $38,823,000 of net depreciation. 

The following table shows the book value of the Institute's educational 
plant funds, including land, buildings and equipment and temporary 
investments, for each of the last five fiscal years: 

Land, buildings and equipment at cost 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Construction in progress 

Subtotal 
Temporary investrnents(l) 

Total Educational Plant Assets 

1221 

$493,066 
(173,048) 

7573 
327,591 

2,581 
$330,172 

FiscaJ Year Ended Jure 30, 

$521,909 
(195,601) 

23.215 
349,523 

23.523 
$373,046 

(in thousands) 
$541,630 $651,328 
(213,704) (248,605) 

56,042 28,360 
383,968 431,083 
26,950 8,857 

H!QAill~ ~39,940 

$688,6l2 
(287,450) 
_ji1,553 

462,715 
(5,825) 

$4~t?i_890 

(1) Includes investments at cost and interfund payables. Plant funds borrow monies from current 
invested funds for the temporary financing of certain capital projects. 

For further information, please refer to Schedule A, Statement of 
Financial Position, and Note A, Accounting Policies, in the Report of the 
Treasurer in Appendix B of the Offering Circular. 
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The following table provides information on the recently completed 
major additions and renovations to educational plant: 

Property Fiscal Year Description Approximate Cost 

Biology Building 1994 New Construction $74 million 

Cogeneration Plant 1996 New Construction $51 million 

Jack C. Tang Center for 
f\.ianagementEducation 1996 New Construction $14 million 

Pappalardo Engineering 
Teaching Laboratory 1995 Renovation $2 million 

McCormick Hall Annex 1995 Renovation $2 million 

Other Current and Future Building Plans 

The Institute annually budgets approximately seven million dollars to 
upgrade its research, instructional and support facilities, including 
improvements to ensure reasonable access as stipulated in the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). These expenditures are in addition to normal 
maintenance expenses and will not require external debt financing. 

The Institute has several construction and renovation projects which 
are anticipated to be completed in coming years, including the renovation of 
the Whitaker and Dorrance buildings, the renovation of the Senior House 
undergraduate dormitory, and a series of renovation projects to provide new 
facilities for the professional programs in the School of Architecture. 

Litigation 

The Institute is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened 
which would materially affect the ability of the Institute to enter into the 
Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement or carry out its obligations thereunder. 

Contingencies 

The Institute receives funding or reimbursement from Federal 
Government agencies for sponsored research under Government grants and 
contracts. These grants and contracts provide for reimbursement of indirect 
costs based on rates negotiated with the Office of Naval Research (ONR), the 
Institute's cognizant Federal agency. The Institute's indirect cost 
reimbursements have been based on fixed rates with carryforward of under or 
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over recoveries. The Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) is responsible 
for auditing both direct and indirect charges to grants and contracts in support 
of ONR's negotiating responsibility. The Institute has final audited rates 
through the 1994 fiscal year. The audit for fiscal year 1995 is in progress, with 
no major audit issues anticipated. 

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has made certain claims against 
the Institute regarding Federal Income and Social Security taxes related to 
awards to teaching and research assistants. The claims total approximately 
$19 million, down from an original total of $30 million. The Institute has 
filed a protest with the IRS that contests all of the remaining claims. The 
Institute believes that it has meritorious defenses and that the ultimate 
resolution of this matter will not have a material effect on the Institute's 
financial position. 

For further information on these issues, please refer to Note F of the 
Report of the Treasurer, Notes to Financial Statements in Appendix B of the 
Offering Circular. 
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Report of the Treasurer 

1'o Members of the Corporntw11 

Introduction 

MIT hus implemented two new accounting standards in reporung its results for 199-1-JS. !11 •. ;l two starn.lartls p11 •• cnt the 
most significant changes in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for not-for-profit m[..<mrz·1uuns in over 20 years. 
l\s a result, the firmncial statements have a new look as well as udditionn! accounting 1..:quircnrc:nt .. St•rrrc new info• 1.1tion is 
presented and prior information is in a different formal. 

The two new Statements of financial Accounting Standards (FAS) issued by the Finan~ial 1\ccountiug St.111dards Boar<l 
(Fl\SB) h,tve a required implementation date in the 1995-96 year and the Institute has ckclcd to imph:ment om: )car early. The 
lim111cial statements for June 30, 1994 have been restated to the new sl:m<lards for ctin1µurison purµosr.:s. J111s reslutc111cnt l>i' rrior 
year balances is described in Note J. 

The standards introduce several new reporting requirements, but each has one major focus. F /\S Nl>. 116. ACl'.Ollllt111i_~ for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made, requires specifically verifiable pkdgi.;s from donor~ 10 be rc1.:mdcd a.~ rcvcrn1cs 
in the year plcugcd nnd the unpaid amount Lo be recorded in accounts receivable. FAS No. 11 7. Fi11,111i:1al Slatw1e11ls or 
Not-for-Profit Organizations, establishes standards for the display of financial statement~ thnt an: more simrlar tn Lhusc of for-pro lit 
corporutions. 

In prior Treasurer Reports, we have placed primary emphasis on the Revcnuc:> and Funds Used to /\k1:, th~ I ~.pcnSl'S ufCurri.;nl 
Operations. FAS No.117 puts more emphasis on the changes in the b:ilancc sheet Items and the c.; sl' llow star ~mcnt. I It" lnsl!llltc 
has rcluincd much or the prior information about operations through the new Schedule C-Statcm...:111 of Opcr:Uil•h.· .md Other 
Clrnngcs iu Unrestricted Net Assets. lntormation in past reports that we believe i!' s1f_nu11 .. anL hut 1~ not ind1 ... ku in tht. new 
statements, is provided either in the text or in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Schedule A - Statement of Financial Position 

The Statement ol"finnncial Position is the balance sheet of the Institute at June 30. 1995. The U!iSds arc reported :it book value. 
based on amortized cost, and do not reflect market value which is reported in the text :ind in utncr sdkJuks. The n:port111£_ of 
separate fund groups is not required hy FAS No. 11 7, but has been retained for purpust:s ot comparison. ·1 he J\::~cL~ lcs~ lhc 
Liabilities results in Net Assets which is roughly comparable to Stockholders' Equity in a for-profit corporation. 

The fl\SB requirement of the three diffon:nt categories of net ussets recogu1zes that in ClllC very ~igu!licant way 11111vcrsitics 
are diffore11t fro m a prolit-rnaking concern -- MfT receives contributions restrictcd u:, In purpu.~e ant.I ·1:•:rn1111;s a lid11ciary 
responsibility for their proper use. Net assets arc categorized into thn::e groups act:urdlllg lo thi.: 11.itu1i.: <JI the r cstricl ions plm:cd 

on gifts by donors. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets arc those gifts for which the original principal ran never be spent. They i.:0111prisc !!ifts 
to true endowment, outstanding pledges and assets held in trust which. when paiu or mu\un.:d. will go ll' the cmtowmcnt. ;ind i\i lt~ 
which arc required to be used for student loans. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets are those gifts which will ultimately become available for opcwtions or cJpital .:xpenditures. 
They require an event or lapse of time to take place before they are a-.nilablc for spending. llicy include pkd:,cs .. P l~ or real 
estate not yet sold, gifts for construction projects which have not bc:cn completed, and ccrt;un life income funJ~ which, upon 
maturity. will be available for spending. 

Unrc~Hricted Net Assets comprise all of the remaining economic resources available to the l:i-litulc. !"his tl . fin ion of 
unrestricted net assets is considerably broader than the definition of such assets in prror )i.;;us. 1\11 C' 1 rile nl the broaucr 
unrestricted net asset definition also relates to Endowment and Similar Funds. Endowmcm .i.nd Sim11..r h,11~~ i.;;1<.guri1.co..I IL'> 

unrc~tricted includes all those gifts received over the years which the Institute de.fined ns funds functioning as cndowmem and 
invested with the endowment funds. Such gifts often came in the form of large unrestricted l>cqui.;:;ts anu lht h:~lltuti.; IJ,•' sou!_,hl 
to cnriitalizc these gifts to produce income for the benefit of both prc~eni and future generations 1>f focult) and stl!d<.:uts. 
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ln all cases "net assets" means the assets remaining after all liabilities have been deducted. Note A provides a description of 
the classification of the three categories of not assets. Note K provides the detail by fund group of each class of net assets. The 
year-to-year change in the three categories of net assets and the composition of each category is explained in Schedule B - Statement 
of Activities. 

1n addition to the requirement for the classification of net assets F /\S No. 11 7 also required certain other reclassifications: 

'Federal student loan funds, previously reported as fund balances, are now reclassified as liabilities in the amounts of 
$26.596,000 and $25,G 19,000 at June 30, 1995 and 1994 respectively. 

An actuarial adjustment is required to reduce the portion of Life Income Funds by the present value ol'the expected income 
stream to be provided to the income bencfieiary(ies) for life or over a designated period. This amount is recorded a..~ a liabili ty. 
In prior years when gifts to such funds were received, the entire fair value of the assets at the date of gift was recorded as a gin 
and a fund balance. The difference between the fair value of the assets and the actuarial liabi lity to the beneficiaries equals the 
present value amount of the gift. $1,373,000 of the liability amount of $29, J 16,000 in the Life Income Funds column represents 
Agency Funds and the remaining $27,743,000 is for Life Income Annuity commitments which arc now required to be displayed 
as liabilities. 

Pledges receivable have been recorded as an asset as required by FAS No. 116 with the corresponding addition to Temporarily 
or Permanently Restricted Net Assets. Pledges have been reduced to present value as detailed in Note A. 

T he Institute continues to record and display its books on an amortized cost or book value basis; thus the total investments of 
$1 ,942,3 11 ,000 represents book value. Market value at June 30, 1995 was $2,501, 184,000 as presented in Table 4. 

Schedule B-Statcmcnt of Activities 

The changes in the balance sheet during the year for the three categories of net assets is detailed in Schedule B-Statemcnt of 
Activities. 

FAS No. 11 7 addressed the basic reporting requirements considered necessary for adequate financial disclosure. These include 
revenues and other auditions to assets, expenses and other deductions, and the net increases in each category ofnt:t assets. Beyond 
thul, the FASB said not-for-profit organi7.ations could choose to report details they considered necessary to provide the financial 
information they believed the readers of their statements needed. The Institute has retained columns for fund gronps ns reported 
in past years. The Statement of Activities is very similar, with the add ition of the three categories of Net Assets, to the Statement 
of Changes in Financial Position reported in the past (Schedule D in prior year reports). 

T he increase in Unrestricted Net Assets of $48,682,000 resulls primarily from an increase in Current Funds of$8,856,000 and 
an increase in Institute-designated Endowment and Similar Funds of$37,594,000. The increase in Current Funds results primarily 
from continued accumulation of expendable funds in accounts held for academic departments and other purposes. The gifts, 
investment income and other revenues received into these expendable accounts exceeded the expenses charged to such accounts 
and is one measure of the financial strength of the Institute. The increase in Endowment and Similar Funds for unrestricted 
purposes resu lts in part from Net Realized Gains on Investments which were reduced by the portion of such gains that were 
distributed for ::;pending. 

The increase in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets was caused almost entirely by the Net Realized Gains on Investments. The 
gains on in vestments resulting from endowment funds listed as Permanently Restricted are categorized ns Temporarily Restricted 
as they might be distributed for spending in future year:; for the purposes given. Such distributions would take pince under the 
Institute 's endowment income spending pol icies and be consistent with the Massachusetts Management of Institutional Funds /\ct. 
The Tnstitutc's internal records distribute income for spending based upon the full market value for each restricted fund including 
its share of capital gains and appreciation. 

The increase in Permanently Restricted Net Assets results largely from gifts to endowment funds which the donor has specified 
to be permanently retained. These gifts and bequests received totaled $21, 184,000, an increase of $6, 160,000 from the prior year. 

Pledges of gifts to be received in future years are recorded as permanently restricted if the gift is to be for a restricted endowment 
purpose. If, however, the pledge is defined as either expendable gifts for a restricted purpose or unrestricted gifts, then the pledge 
is categorized as temporari ly restricted. When the gift in the form of a pledge payment is actually received and its purpose 
restriction met, then the temporarily restricted pledge is reduced by the amount of the gift and the net asset is reclassified as 
unrestricted. 
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Schedule C-Statcment of Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 

This statement details the Jnstitutc's unresmcted revenues by source and the operating expenses by major function. In this 
schedule, we have sought to retain much of the financial information reported in prior years as the Statement of Revenues and 
Funds Used to Meet Expenses of Current Operations (Schedule A in prior years). It is consistent with past presentations other 
than the reclassification of certain capital items reported in prior years as operating expense. This statement is directly comparable 
to the unrestricted net asset section of Schedule B-Statemcnt of Activities. 

Total unrestricted revenues in 1995 were $1 ,230,846,000. Of these revenues $ l , 127,259,000 were used for operations, while 
$ I 03.587,000 were initially added to unrestricted net assets. $1,117, 182,000 of the operating revenues were used to support the 
1995 operating expenses, leaving $I 0,077,000 of 1995 operating revenues before other charges to operations. Of the total 
$64,982.000 expended for scholarships and fellowships, $19,248,000 was charged to 1995 operations and $45,734,000 was 
charged to unrestricted net assets. The result was total operating expenses and scholarships exceeded operating revenues by 
$9, 171 ,000. This necessitated the use of unrestricted net assets leaving a final net increase in unrestricted net assets of$48,682,000 
in 1995. 

Total unrestricted revenues used in operations in 1994-95 were $1 , 127,259,000. Total expenses were $1 , 136,430,000 
including Operating Unit Expenses of $1, 117, 182,000 and other charges to operations of $1 9,248,000. Total 1995 operating 
expenses and other charges exceeded unrestricted revenues by $9, 171 ,000. This amount was funded by current gifts. grants, and 
bequests of $5, J 38.000 and other fund balances of $4,033,000. 

Under the rt:porting method of prior years, operating expenses and other charges would have exceeded unrestricted revenues 
by $15.237,000 in 1994-95. The difference of $6,066,000, nearly al I applied or set aside to finance facilities, is no longer reported 
as an operating expense. 

The research volume of Departmental ond Interdepartmental Laboratories was $371,990,000 in 1994-95 compared to 
$355,024,000 in 1993-94, an increase of $16,966,000, or 4.8 percent. The largest increase among the major sponsors of campus 
research was the National Aeron:iutics and Space Administration, with an increase of I 0.4 percent. The second largest increase 
in l'unding wiu; the Department of Energy with an increase of 6.2 percent. The funding of projects by the Dcpartmt:nt of Uef'cnsc 
declined by 9.3 percent and Industrial Sponsor program funding declined by 5.1 percent. Lincoln Laboratory research volume was 
$340.711.000 in 1994-95 compared to $336,934.000 in 1993-94, an increase of $3.777,000. or. I. I percent. 

The Institute also continued its planned program of renovations and upgrading of existing academic <ind research fac ili ties. 
In 1994-95, $19,210,000 was charged lo operating units for renovations compared to $19,781 ,000 in 1993-94. 

In 1994-95, scholarships and fellowships were $64,982,000, an increase of 8.4 percent from the 1993-94 total of $59,968,000. 
Tomi undergraduate scholarships in 1994-95 were $35,896,000, an increase of7.0 percent over the 1993-94 total of $33,560,000 
while graduntc fellowships in 1994-95 were $29,086,000, an increase of 10.1 percent from the 1993-94 total of $26,408,000. The 
unrestricted funds to support these scholarships and fellowships in 1994-95 were $19,248,000 (S 16, 165,000 for undergraduates 
and $3,083,000 for graduate students), an increase of 2.4 percent from the 1993-94 tota l of $18,789,000 ($1 5,534,000 for 
undergraduates and $3,255,000 for graduate students). 

The lnstituce continues to contest certain claims against the Institute by the Internal Revenue Service regarding payments to 
graduate assistants in earlier years and strongly believes these claims are without merit. 

The 1995 Operations column includes those revenues from tuition and sponsored research used to support related expt:nses, 
primari ly instruction and unsponsorcd research, sponsored research and expenses jointly applicable to both activities. The 
unrestricted funds resources used to fund the cost of Scholarships and Fellowships is shown under Operations while the gifts and 
investment income designated for such student aid is listed in the Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets. 

The column Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets lists by source those revenues and funds which arc unrestricted. The Institute 
allocated Sl 73, 187,000 of these resources to meet Operating Unit Expenses, and $45, 734,000 to scholarships and fellowships. 
Of the remaining $57,853,000, an amount of $9 .• 171,000 was used to meet the cost of operations not covered by other revenues. 
The increase of $48,682,000 almost all resulted from net realized gains on investments, primarily related to fonds functioning ns 
endowment. 

It is important to note that the Institute reports its investments on a book value basis and as a consequence the Net Realiicd 
gains recorded during 1995 (or any future accounting period) can be misleading. The increase in Unrestricted Net Assets includes 
realized gains for the securities traded during U1c reporting period; many of which may have been held for scvernl accounting 
periods and thus the gain is a reflection of a longer holding period. Thus, realized gains are recognized in the accounting period 
in which they arc sold if on a book value basis (or as market changes occur if on a market value basis). Thus, a more accurate 
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n:lkction of current pcriod results would be a review of the net increase or decrease in the total book value of Institute funds 
cxt:lud111c. net gains on mvcstmcnts realized during the currcnr period. The followmg table displays the net increase in fund 
bnl.1m.cs m this 1·:c;hion. 

Increase in Net As.~.::t llalnn.:cs ·Sch 13 . 
f>cr111ct; 

H1.:t1l11.1:d Clu111s - Sch U . , . 
Ncl Increase (Dccn~asc) in lh1ok 

Vah11.: M Ncl Ass~tq ..... . 

~ hl'd nlc I>-Srntcmcnt of Cn~h !<' lows 

(111 thousands of dollars) 

Unrestricted 
$ 48,682 

(69,077) 

$(20,395) 

Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted 

$35,894 $ 38,146 

..J..!liQ) 

$36.806 

Total 
$122,722 

$ 12.773 

This srn1cm1.:nl is a new requirement under FAS No. 117. It explains the change in the cash balances of lhe Institute from the 
end of tin: p.-ccccling year 10 the encl of the current year. The statement startS with the overall change in m~t assets for the year, 
then adds back. expenses and other transactions which did not require cash, and then explains the changes in the specific balance 
shccl items. /\ 11 increase in 11cco11nts n:ceivablc during rhc year reflects the net increase in revenues thnt were recognized, but had 
not yet b~~·:n received. In a similnr manm:r, an increase in accounts payable reflects a net increase in expenses that were incurred 
iind had nol yL.l been puid. 

T he thrt>c catcg,nrics show how cash was used by or provided Lo the Institute. The change in net assets of $122.722,000 is 
l'rom Schcl.uk B-Stat.:mcnt of /\ctivitics. 

Distrihution or Inve.\lmcnl l nrome to I•'und s (3ee schedule immediately .following t he T reasurer' s discussion) 

This 1111.iuditcd schcd11lc (on pugc B- 13) is comparable to Schedule Bin prior years. rr describes lhe distribution of investment 
income in th ~~ General Invesuncms nnd Separately Invested Funds and the sources of earnings distributed. It also describes the 
purposes 111 which w c.h income was distribute<! and used. 

·I he rcpoi!ing of gt tis, grant~ and bequests by the Institute under FAS No. 116 is not comparable to the manner in which these 
items w1:rc repork,I in rrior years. ( iifts arc reported as either "Gifts and bequests'' or "Pledges" in Schedule B in confonnance 
with F/\S No. 116. Ciif!s anli l1cquests excludes paymcnls on pledges made in earlier years. Gilts are divided into the th1 ce 
lillcgoric~ of rh:ing,t.,, in n~·1 ;i.sscts and it is noted that all plt:dges to unrestricted net assets arc shown as rcmporarily restricted. 
rhc total of sud1 gins rcrcivcd aud pledges in 199-1-95 "as $97,548,000 as compared to $67, 187,000 in 1993-94, an increase of 

4 'i. 2°~. 11.is incrcns1· rcllcct.s a strong increase in pledges and new gifts following a period of reduced new commitments that 
l'o llo~cd tlW encl QfthC ( 'tllll/Hfig11jar thC!future in 1992. 

111 ron r<1rn11ng to I hi.! new accounting standard, the Institute added $ 14,003,000 in market value of irrevocable charitable trusts 
without life ,:omingcncics (pcrpclllal trusts) for the benefit of MIT, but held outside MIT, to the usscts on June 30, 1994 and 
pledges receivable with a present value of$90, 127,000. These pledges receivable include the actuarial present value of irrevocable 
Ii f'c i nconu; trusts lwld nu1.;1tl ~ MIT. Income and pledge payments in 1994-95 and future years from these assets are not reported 
os gi fls in Schedule B. ·niesc amounts are also described in Footnote J. 

i\lt.1ot16:1 the lnsmutc will no longer record payments on pledges as gifts for financial statement purposes, donors will continue 
10 deduct such 1:.1fts for clrnm .. lik w' purposes in the year that che pledge payment is made to MIT, not the year that the pledge is 
llHHlc. 

1:or compni i~on p t11 po:;cs. the table of gifts, grants and bequests that was presented in prior years is included below. The 
rc~u I ts f'or 19'>3-'H-;1re ! 1 l L' same<.:~ shown a year ago except that gifts to life income plans arc shown for both years at their actuarial 
pn·si.:nt v:1 lm: tll thr lnslitn tc after deducting the cxpoctcd present valuc of payments to life income beneficiaries. This table 
i nclmk~ hnth new gilh nnd gins received as pledge payments. The total for 1994-95 of $104,162,000 is an increase oi l!U 
pcrccnl uhovc the pnor year. Excluding gifts of equipment, the total was second only to the total of cash, securities and real estate 
received in 1989-~0 at the peak of'lhc Campaign. 
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Table J 
Gifts, Grants, and Bequests 

Gifts: 
for endowment 
for buildings . 
for life income plans 
for student loans . . 
for current funds-restricted 
for current funds-unrestricted 
of equipment ... 

Tot:il gifts to funds 

Grants-in-aid ... . 
Total ....... . 

1994-95 

$ 33,482,000 
2,790,000 
2,376,000 

81 ,000 
43,038,000 
12,963,000 
5,596,000 

$l00,326,000 

3,836.000 
Sl04,162,000 

1993-94 

$24,668,000 
3,649,000 
3,549,000 

15,000 
39,295,000 
6,246,000 
6.089,000 

$83,5] J ,000 

4.426.000 
$87,937,000 

Jn addition, there are $87 ,350,000 in pledges outstanding at June 30. 1995. 

The percentage increase in gifts using FAS No. 116 n:porting was significantly higher than the comparable increase in Table I 
primarily because the amount of pledge payments in 1994-95 was almost fully offset by new pledg~· co111111irmcnts. In the prior year 
there was a decline in outstanding pledges as pledge payments significantly exceeded new pledge commitments. 

The gifts reported by the Alumni/ae Fund were $21 ,308,000, a decrease of 7.3 percent as compared to the record results of the 
previous year. Gifts to the Fund arc recorded when assets are transferred by donors to lhe Institute, consistent with prior procedures. 

l<~ndowmcnt itnd Similar Funds 

The market value of all the endowment and similar funds totaled $2,093,216,000 at year-end as compared to $1 , 777, 777,000 at 
the previous year-end, an increase of 17.7 percent. The market value at June 30, 1995 includes $2,037,948,000 held in Pool A of the 
General Investments and $55,268,000 held in Separately [nvested Funds. These values include both lhe value of the investments at 
market nnd the other assets and liabilities related to these funds as shown on Schedule A. 

The endowment assets arc managed to maximize total investment return relative to appropriate risk. Income is distributed for 
spending to existing funds in a manner that seeks to match the growth rate of inflation over time. A continuous inflow of gi'fls to 
endowment funds is needed to increase the growth of income above inflation and help offset the slow growth of revenues from other 
sources. 

The lnstitute's decision to hold a relatively high percentage of the endowment in common stocks and other equities has created 
over time nn expansion of the gap between the market value of the endowment funds and the value of these gifts when received. 
This significant difference can be summarized as follows: 

Table 2 
Analysis of Market Value of Endowment Funds 

Book value of endowment funds for 
restricted and unrestricted purposes . . . . . . . 

Accumulated net realized gains from investments 
Investment income held for distribution to funds . 
Total endowment funds 

(at book value) 
Unrealized appreciation 
Total endowment funds 

(nt market value) 

June 30, 1995 

$ 802,441,000 
739,990,000 
25.751.00Q 

$1,568,182.000 
525.034.000 

$2,093,216,000 

The book value of the endowment funds by purpose totaling $802,441,000 is primarily the value of gifts to endowment fonds at 
the time received. It is moderately higher than the actual value of such gifts received during the 134 years of the lnstitutc's history. 
This occurred because some gifts uccumulated capital gains, unexpended income, and unrealized appreciation prior to being 
transferred to endowment from other funds. Such transfers ta.Ice place at market value, which becomes the new book value of the 
funds. 
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In reading the table. it should be noted that the book value of the endowment funds has increased by $201,699.000 or 33.6 
percent in just the past four years. These new gifts and transfers lo endowment funds have not had a long period of rime to 
experience the high kvel of appreciation of the older funds. 

Endowment funds in Pool A receive income based on the number of units held by such funds. Gills and transfers receive units 
based on current mark.:t value. As a result, it is the market value which is the appropriate measure of the proportion of endowment 
income that is distributed to each category of funds. The following table provides information on the endowment funds specified 
by the purpose supported: 

Table3 
Value of Endowment Funds by Purpose 

Unrestricted purposes (general) 
Departments and research 
Library ......... . 
Salaries (professorships, etc.) 
Graduati.: fellowships-general 
Graduate followships-departmcntal 
Undergraduate scholarships 
Prizes 
Misccllf'lncous 
Subtotal ... 

lnvcstmcnl income held 

June 30, 1995 
Book Value Market Vnlue 

. $ 135,738,000 $ 497.427,000 
150,678,000 314,675,000 

2,218,000 6,915,000 
285,564,000 633.097.000 

9,011,000 27,769,000 
41 ,833,000 70,022.000 

108,977,000 267,808,000 
3,332,000 6,471,000 

65,090.000 187,265,000 
$ 802,441,000 $2,011,449,000 

for distnbution to funds . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,751,000 81.767,000 
Accumuluted net realized gains from investments 739.990,000 
Total ............... ... ........ $1,568,182,000 S2,093,216,00() 

Table4 
Jnvestments1 

.June 30, 1995 June JO, 1994 

General Investment~ 
Ca.~h equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Fixed income . . . . . . . • . . . . . . ... 
Equities . . . . .... • ..•....... .. 
Real estate: 

Held for present or future ncnd~mie use . . . 
Held for invesummt or other purposes . . . . 

Tot11I ~cncral invcstmcnfs .......... ... . 
Separately invested .. . .. . .... . . . . . . . . 
Li fc i11co111c fonds . . . . . . . , • . , • . . 

Receivable/payables arising from securities transactions 

Totnl investmeuts .. . . . .. .... . .... . . . 

I nvestmcnts 

Rook Market 

$ 118,803,000 $ 118,636,000 
389,536,000 401,189,000 

1,193,827.000 1.705,435.000 

40,336,000 40,364,000 
73.976.000 86.369.000 2 

$1,816,478,000 S2,351,993,000 

60,028,000 70,152,000 
59,549.000 72,783,000 

6.256.000 6,256,000 

$1,942,311,(1003 S2,SOl,184,000 

nook l\-1ilrket 

$ 36,560,000 $ 36.714,000 
423,022,000 416, 798,000 

1,137,403,000 l.470.78 1.000 

32,234,000 32,234,000 
72.498.000 ll 1.383,000 2 

Sl,701,717,0110 ~;2,037,910,000 

55,239,000 60,836.000 
59,828,000 67..359,000 

41052.000 4.052.000 

s 1,1!20,8J<i,0011 1 $2,1 70, 157,000 

Tomi investments ul market vnlue were $2,50I , 184,000, an increase of $331,027.000 or 15.3 percent from last year. This 
increase compares with an increase of $26,045,000 in lhe previous year and represents the seventh consecutive year in which the 
murk ct value of totul investments has increased. Total invested assets al market value have now increa~ed approximately $780 
million over the last live years. Gifts received from the Campaign/or the.future and market appreciation huvc generated substuntiul 
incrcuses in the endowment and other funds over this period. 

The General Investments at market value were $2,351,993,000, an increase of $314.083,000 or 15.4 percent from last year. 
This increase compares with an increase of $17,249,000 in the previous year. General Investments n1 market value have now 

;·ni;~ tnble excludes students' notes receivable nmounts due from Educarional Plant Funds, cash, reec1vables and payables, nntl other Jonbllitit'$. 
At vnluc~ dc1c1mined by pnifc~ionnl uppruiscr$. 

1Scc !;chcdulc A, Statcmc111 ofl'i11nnci;il l'ositio11. "Investments, at cost."' 
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increm;e<l approximately $730 million over the last five years. This increase in lhc General lnve:;tmenis rcsulled substantially 
from gifts to the Campaign for the future, market appreciation, and from an increase of current funds relating to the growth of the 
l11stitutc's operations during this period. There were net borrowings in liscnl year 1995 of$ I 5.903,000, primarily for constru<.:tion 
financing of a cogcneration faci lity, as further detailed in Schedule D. 

The balance between fixed income and equity investments changed slightly during U1c year. Equity investments, at market. 
were 72.S percent of the General Investments at year end, an increase from 72.2 percent at the prior year end. Realized gains in 
the General Investments included S 106, 783,000 from equities and $1,459,000 from fixed income securitic.:s during the year. The 
$234,654,000 increase in market value of equities and the $66,313,000 increase in market value of fixed income securities and 
cash equivalents in the General Investments primarily resulted from market results which were positive for both equities und Jaxcd 
income securities. 

The increase of $8, 130,000 in real estate held for possible future academic use was due to the funding of new acquisitions 
($7 ,986.000). capital improvements ($116,000) and gifis ($28,000). The increase in book value of$ I ,478,000 in real estate held 
for investment or other purposes was primarily due to rna,jor capital improvements. ·me market value of real estate held for 
investment or otllcr purposes increased $4,986,000, or 6.1 percent, and resulted primarily from the changes in appraised values. 
The income from rcal estate increased more than 20 percent from the previous year. This increase primari ly resulted from the 
more stnblc market environment for Cambridge-area commercial properties. 

The Investment and Executive Committees of the Corporation have continued the practice whereby spending by funds in the 
General lnvesnnents may come from botll investment income and realized market gains, and in the Separately Invested Funds 
only from invc:;tment income. The investment policy for the General Investments of focusing on total investment return, a 
combination of both capital appreciation and investment income from interest, dividends and rents, is consistent with this spending 
policy. In 1995. the amount distributed from the General Investments Endowment Funds for spending totaled $89, 145,000, an 
increase of6.5 percent from the $83,683,000 distributed in 1994. The 1995 amount distributed to General Investments Endowment 
Funds included $41,505,000 from realized gains, or 46.6 percent of the total distributed to those funds. In 1994, the comparable 
amount distributed to General Invest merits Endowment Funds included $36,231,000 from realized gains or 42. 7 percent of the 
total. The 1995 amount available for total endowment spending (Pool A and Separately lnvcstcd Endowment Funds} was 
$90,394.000. a 6.4 percent increase over the $84,932,000 available in 1994. This is detailed in the schedule of Distribution of 
Investment Income to Funds on page 15. 

The investments held by the Separa.tely Invested Funds increased by $9,316,000 to a market value of $70, 152,000. This 
increase resulted from current year gifts transfers to General Investments and market appreciation. 

The investments held by the Life Income Funds increased $5,424,000 to a market value of $72,783,000. Amounts received 
from <lonurs were partially offset by the amount transferred for Institute use of $2,012,000. The mcrcuse in market value, net of 
gifts and transfers, was due to market appreciation. 

I nvcstment income in the form of dividends, interest and rents (after administrative expenses), was $67.6 I 6,000 as shown in 
the schedule of Distribution of Investment Income to Funds. This compares to $63,675,000 of investment income in the previous 
year. This was an increase or 6.2 percent. This measure of investment income docs not include any realized gains. The umount. 
distributed to endowment funds for spending included realized gains. The investment income earned by the cun-ent invested 
funds represented more than 87 percent of the amount distributed to those funds. The balance wns drawn from accumulated 
realized gLtins. 

Undistributed realized gains from General Investments at the end of Fiscal 1995 totaled $747,888,000 as shown in Note K of 
the Financial Statements. The comparable balance at the end of Fiscal 1994 was $702, 178,000. The increase of$45,710,000 
was due to gains realized during 1995 less amounts distributed for spending. 

The reserve of investment income held for distribution which is invested with the General l11vcstmcnts r unds was not availed 
of for distribution to endowment funds. This reserve has a book value of $25,751,000 and a market value of $81 ,767,000 on June 
30. 1995. 

The Investment Committee held three regularly scheduled meetings during the fiscal year. under the chairmanship of Samuel 
W. Bodr11u1 1. The Well ington Management Company continued as the primary investment manager and au visor for publicly traded 
securities. both domestic and international. The Investment Committee extended an invesunent program directed towards domestic 
public-equity investments in smaller capitalization companies by adding a founh investment management firm in this area. The 
Institute also continued its program of diversifying its assets with alternative investments in both U1e domestic and international 
markets. These alternative investments arc typically managed by several independent organizations through pooled investment 
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funds. Alternative investments include venture capital and other investments that are generally not publicly traded. 

Chnrlcs 11. Spaulding completed his term as a member of the Commlltee, having contributed to the governance of the Institutc's 
investment program. The advice and comment provided by Mr. Spaulding, especially in the area of real estate matters, is deeply 
appreciated. 

Pl:tnt 

The book value of the educational plant assets was $462, 7 15,000 at June 30, 1995 up from $431,083,000 at June 30. 1994. This 
change includes $70.455,000 of net addllions to educational plant offset by $38,823,000 of net depreciation charges. 

Major projccL~ completed during the year include the renovation of 311-312 Memorial Drive as an annex to McCormick I !all. 
the lnstitute's all-female dormitory, to house approximately 25 women; the renovation and upgrade of three undergraduate teaching 
lnborntorics and the student projects workshop for the Department of Mechanical Engineering, renamed The Pappalardo Engineering 
Projects Laboratory; and the renovation of 40 Massachusetts Avenue to accommodate the MIT religious counselors, the Kosher 
Ki tchen, and other student religious activities. The construction of the Cogeneration Pinnt on Vassar Street, including the upgrade 
of the electrical distribution and control systems in the existing plant, continucc.I during the year. Construc1ion of the addition to 
70 Memorial Drive, wh ich will be called the Jack C. Tang Center for Management Education and used by the Sloan School of 
Management. is ongoing. Th..: schematic design for the renovation and upgrade of the Dorranc..: and Unc11s A. Whitaker I3uildings 
was substantially completed during the year, and construction will begin in the Fall of 1995. 

Total indebtedness for educational plant at June 30, 1995 was $1 79,60 I ,000 of which $1 23,83 8.000 is tax-exempt de bl iimu1ced 
through the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority. 

General 

The implementation of FAS No. I 16 and FAS No. I 17 occurs at the same time that the operations of the lnstimte are changing. 
The outlook for either minimum growth or a decline in sponsored research on the campus has caused a reappraisal of mnny of our 
activities. The need for a downsizing of our activities that provide administrative and service support is obvious. We also need to 
assure thnt nll esscnrinl support activities are continued and that the needs of students nnd faculty arc fully met. 

The ne\\ accounting standards provide a view of the lnstimtc's oper;llions in its entirety with less emphasis on the sp~cilic 
sources of funumg for r.!Och activity. Ucc•msc of the financial constraints ahead. the lnstitute's leadership has also been looking 
<ll its opcrnlions in their to!cility. The effort to reengineer administrative processes is already achieving success in reducing cosl~ 
und much gr..:1111.:r i111provemcnts are ahead. 

Ouring this period, there is n continuing nei.;d to maintain a strong inflow of gift.~ and other resources from non-government 
sources to offset the Federal budget cutbacks. The Institute also has to offset the decline in government funding for indirect costs 
bcc11use of' the renegotiation of long-standing relationships. The effect of these renegotiations is Lo shift some costs to lnstitutc 
fu uds that, in the past, were 11ppropriately paid by government and other research sponsors. 

It is fortunate thnt these revenue 11nd cost pressures occur at tho same time lhat there is recognition by the public and the press 
or the continued very high quality of our education and research programs. Despite the problems, the financial strcugth of the 
Institute hns hcen maintained. The fu lll rc will greatly benefit by the quality ofwhal lnt..es place here and those who study here. It 
is our objective to assure that the lnstitule will continue its mission with vigor and optimism In the years ahead. 

I want lo expre!>s rny continued gratitude for the support of James Culliton who joined me in preparing this report for more thnn 
a decadi;: until his responsibilities changed last year; to Allan Bufferd who continues as Deputy Treasurer and Director of 
lnvcstmems: to Philip Kcohnn, Comptroller, who has had major responsibility for the preparation of this r..:port over more than 
t wcnty ycurs: and to John Currie, Dirnctor of Finance, who has provided wise counsel to us. 

During the year both Joseph Snyder, Treasurer for 25 years, and Stuart Cowen, Vie..: President for P'inancial Operations for a 
decade, passed away. Their high standards of quality and performance enriched the Institute. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Glenn P. Strehle 
Vice President for Finance and Treasurer 

September 27. 1995 
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MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
DISTRIBUTION OF INVESTMENT INCOME TO FUNDS 

for the year ended June 30, 1995 

Investment income bdorc distribution: 
Investment income held for distribution to 

funds. balance beginning of year . . ... . 
Jn vestment income, current year ..... . . 

Total before distribution ............ . 

Distribution: 
li1comc distributed: 

From current year's earnings 
From prior ycur's earnings 
from accumulutcd realized gains 

on investmenL' ......... . 
•Total distribution to funds ..... . 

Less: reduction in accumulated gains 
on investments 

Total distributed from investment income . . 
Investment income held for distribution to 

funds, balance end of year ... . ... . 

Balances include: 
Funds functioning us endowment 
Current invested funds 

Total ............ . 

•Total distribution to funds: 
Endowment funds: 

Used for operations . . . . . . . . . . . 
Used for scholarships and followships .. 
Used for other charges . . . . . . . . . . 
Atldcd to principal . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Added to (distributed from) unexpended 

balances of endowment income . . . . 
Transferred 10 other funds . ... . ... . .. . 

OU1cr funds: 
Life income fonds . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Student loan funds . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Building funds ... ..... ..... . 
Other expendable funds . . . . . . . . . 

Total distribution to funds ..... .... ... . 

with comparative totals for 1994 
(/11 tlt0llsa11ds of <lollars) 

(unaudited) 

Total 
1994 

Total General 

$ 25,751 
63,675 

$ 89,426 

(63,675) 

(36.231) 

(99,906) 

36.231 

$ 25.751 

$ 25,751 

$ 43,368 
12,706 
2,313 
3,749 

7,499 
15,297 

s 84,932 

4 
60 

5,283 
9.627 

14.974 

$ 99,906 

1995 Investments 

$ 25,751 
67,616 i 

$ 93,367 

(67,616) 

(44,329) 

(llt,945) 

-'4,329 

$ 25,751 

$ 25,751 

$ 51,351 
14,235 

508 
5,163 

(1.393) 
20,530 

$ 90.394 

5 

3,583 
17,963 

21,551 

$111,945 

$25,751 
64,966 

(64,966) 

(44.329) 

44.329 

$51 ,058 
13,947 

508 
4,322 

( 1,514) 
20,824 

s 

3,276 
16,869 

t Includes agency funds which are not reported on Schedule B. 
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$ 90,717 

{109,295) 

44.329 
(64,966) 

$_25,751 

$ 25,751 

$ 25,751 

$ 89,145 

20.150 

$109,295 

Separately 
Invested 

Funds 

(2,650) 

$ 293 
288 

84 I 

121 
(294) 

307 
l.094 

(2,650) 

$ 

$ ___ _ 

$ 1,249 

__!AQ! 

$ 2,650 
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Financial Statements and Additional In formation 

Finnnci:1I St:1tcments 

The financial statements summarize the finances of the Institute during the fiscal year 199-t-95 and at the close of the year on June 
30, 1995 with comparative totals for 1994. 

Sdwc111fe A 
f'he Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) at June 30, 1995 with comparative totals at June 30. 1994 
summari:t.cs the .isscts, liabilities Jnd net assets in the major fund categories. 

St'ltC'clule fl 
l'hc Statement of Activities for the year ended June 30, 1995 with comparable totals for the year ended June 30, 1994 
shows the changes in unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently rcsmcted net assets resulting from additions. 
applications, or appropriations during tht: year by major fund category. 

Sc/1etl11lt! C' 
The Statement of Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets for the year ended June 30, 1995 with 
comparative totals for 1994, displays the unrestricted revenues and runds used to meet operating unit expenses and 
other churges to operations. 

Sd1ed111<! IJ 
The Statement of Cash flows for the y1mr ended June 30, 1995 with comparative totals for 199 l e>..plains the change 
m the cash balances of the Institute from the end of fiscal year 1994 to the end of fiscal) car 1995. 

Nott•s to F11u111C·wf Statements 

UC'port of f11dc·111:nde111 Accm1mm11s 

(ifos.wry 

Univcr~·ity Fund Accounting 

A background dcscripuon of fund necounting. important in understanding college and university finances. 
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MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS 

Cash . . ..... . ............. . . 
lnterti.11Hl receivable (paynblc) .•. . .•.. • . 
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pledge.~ receivable, ncl ..... .. ..... • . 
Contnict:. in progress. principally 

U.S. Government ..... ... .... . .. . 
Ocfcrrccf charges and other nssets ......• . 
Students' notes receivable, net ......•.. 
Investments, at cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Land, buildings, :ind equipment at cost 

net of accumulated depreciation 

Totnl il~Scts . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 

LIABILITIES AND NET .ASSETS 

Liabil ities: 
Accoums pnyablc,Jccruuls 

and other liabilities . . . ........ . 
Withholdings. deposits und other credits . . . . 
Advance payments, primarily 

U.S. Government, induscrials and foundations 
norrowings - bonds and notes payable . . . 
Government advances for student loans . .. 

Totul linhilitics 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted (Note K) . . ..... ... .. . . 
Tempornrlly restricted (Note K) . . . . . . . 
Permanently restricted {Note K) . . . . . . . 

Total net assets ... .. . ... .. '. 
Total liubilitics and net assets ... • .. 

11 t June 30, 1995 
with comparative totals 11t June 30, 1994 

(i11 tliommmls of dollar~~ 

Schedule A 

Endowment 
Tomi Totnl Current and Similar 
1994 1995 funds l~unds 

$ 12,089 s 13,921 $ 6,771 $ 4,888 
53,1 14 380 

27,358 29,176 24,761 
90.127 87.350 32.269 36.025 

31,827 29,330 29,330 
46,189 46,169 46,169 
53,450 55,284 

l.820,836 1,942.311 268,238 1,563,059 

431.083 .i62,715 

$2.512.959 $2,666,256 $460.652 $1,604.352 

s 146,876 s 159,903 $130,787 $ 

34,121 36,419 36,419 

I l,707 10,077 10.077 
184,071 199,974 1,110 163 
25.619 26~'i96 

402.394 432,969 178.393 163 

998,179 l,O.i6,861 249,990 523,077 
518,754 554,648 32,269 479,989 
593.632 631,778 601,123 ---

2. 110,565 2.233.287 282.259 1,604.J R9 

52,512,959 S2.666,256 $460,652 Sl,604,352 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financia l statements. 
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Student Educational 
Loan Plant 

Funds Funds 

$ $ 
2,377 (55,871) 
4,4 15 

55,284 
50,046 

462,7 15 

$62.076 $456.890 

$ 

19,100 179.601 
26.5% 

45,696 179,60 I 

3,794 267,135 
10,154 

12.586 

~ 277.289 

$62,076 $456,890 

Life 
lnco1111; 

Funds 

$ 2,262 

19,056 

60,96R 

_$82.286 

$29.116 

29.116 

2.865 
32,236 
18,069 

53.17q 

$82,286 



MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
for the year ended June 30, 1995 
with comparative totals for 1994 

(1'1 tlwu.m11</s of dollars) 

Schedule B 

Endowment Student C:ducallonal Li le 
Total Total Current and Similar Loan Pinnt Income 
1994 1995 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

CHANGES TN UNRESTRlC:n.:o NET ASSETS: 
Revenues ond other additions: 

Tuilion and other income . ... .. .. '. $ 194,864 s 205,193 $ 205,193 $ $ $ $ 
Research revenues '' 0 o' 0 ' o I• ' o I 691,958 712,701 712,701 
Gills and bequests . . . . . , . . . . . . •• 28,452 44,367 35,494 2,682 5,805 386 
Investment Income ............ . 60.278 65,464 2,440 3,021 3 
Net rcolized gains (losses) on investments 91,156 69,077 (7 1) 68,706 (5) 447 
Fees. services, and miscellaneous receipts 67,064 73,253 68,200 (1 10) 619 3,355 1,189 
Auxiliary activities ...... . ' ..... 35,861 36,178 36,178 
Present vnluc actuarial adjustment . .... 168 (478) (478) 
Transfers and other opproprirllions . .. . . 35,452 (33,684) (1, 194) 197 (771) 

Net <ISSl!IS reclassifications ..... 16.443 25,091 20.510 4.536 45 

Totnl revenues and othc:r additions 1.186.244 1,230,846 1.176.097 37,594 (575) 16.909 821 

Expenses nnd other deductions: 
Opernting expenses .... ' .. ' . . . . . J ,070,546 1,117,182 1,102,259 14,923 
Scholurships and fellowships .. ... .. 59,968 64,982 64.982 ---

Total expenses .............. 1,130,514 1,182,164 1,167,241 14,923 

lncn~ase (decrcuse) in unrestricted net assets $ 55,730 s 48.682 $ 8,856 $ 37.594 s (575) s 1.986 $ 821 

CIJANG:ES IN TC:MPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Gifts and be11ucsts ............... s 2,284 s 2,586 s $ s s 2,581 $ s 
Pledges . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,281 17,063 14,762 2,301 
I nvcstment income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 718 561 561 
Net n:ul iiccJ gains (lusscs) on Investments ' . 86,612 39,532 38,871 661 
Present value nctuarial adjustment . . . . .. 754 1,243 1,243 
Net 11ssets rccl:iss ilications . .. ..... .. (16,443) (25,091) (20.5 10) (4,536) ~) 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets . ' $ 89.206 s 35,894 S (S,748) $ 38,87 1 s s (1,394) s 4,165 

CHANCTUS IN PERMANENTLY 
RESTRICl'ED NET ASSETS: 
Gifts nnd bequests . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . $ 15.024 $ 21,184 $ - $ 19,769 s $ 80 $ 1,335 
Pledges ..................... 6, 146 12,348 12,126 222 
Net rcn lizcd gains (losses) on investments .. 1,904 1,340 1,340 
I ntercsl income . . . . . . . . . 490 1,708 1,706 2 
Present value actuarial aqjustmcnl '' 602 82 82 
1 nvestnient income added to principal 1,077 1,484 1,484 
Tr.insfors and other appropriations '' 886 ~) 
lnereas.: (decrease) in permanently 

rcstri cted net assets ......... $ 25,243 s 38,146 $ - $ 35,605 $ 1,706 $ 80 $ ?SS 

Increase (d.:crcnse) in nci usscts . . .. . .• s 170,179 $ 122,722 $ 3.108 $ 112.070 $ 1.131 $ 672 $ 5,7'!.L 

Net assets at beginning of year. . . . . . . . . $1,940,386 S2,I 10,565 $279.151 $1.492.119 $15,249 $276.6 17 $47,429 

Net assets ul end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,110,565 $2.233,287 $282.259 $1.604,189 $16,380 $277,289 $53,170 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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MASSACHlJSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND OTHER 
CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

for the year ended June 30, 1995 
with com1n1rative totals for 199.i 

(in thousands of dollars) 

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES: 
Tuition nnd other income 
Rcs.:w-ch revenues: 

Campus ..... . . 
Lincoln Laboratory 

G itls and bequests . . 
Investment income . . 
Net reali;-.ed gains on i11vestmcnts 
Fees, services, nnd miscellaneous receipts . 
Auxiliary enterprises .. . . . . ... .. . 
Present value of actuarial adjustment . . . . . . . 
Asset reclassi ti cations . . . . . . . . . 
Funds used for operating unit expenses 
Total unrestricted revenues . . . 

OPERATING UNIT EXPENSES: 

Instruction and unsponsorcd research . . . . . . . . . . 
Sponsored research . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Expenses jointly applicable to instruction and research . 
Auxiliary activities ... .... . 
Operation of Alumni Association 
Other expenses . . ... . 
Depreciation (net) . . . . 
Total operating expenses . 

Increase (decrease) prior to ot11cr ehargc:s . 

OTHER CHARGES TO OPERATIONS: 

Scholarships und fellowships .. 

ChnJ1gc in unrestricted net assets 
from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Curren! gifts, grants, and bequests, and other 

fund balances used to meet operations 
Net change in unrestricted net assets . .. . . 

Schedule C 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Total 
1994 

$ 194,864 

355,024 
336.934 

28,452 
60,278 
91, 156 
67,064 
35,861 

168 
16,443 

i i.:.!!!6.244 

$ 226,084 
584,849 
199,974 
35,861 
6,801 
2,108 

14,869 
$1.070.546 

$ 115,698 

$ 59,968 

55,730 

$ 55,730 

Total 
1995 

$ 205,193 

371,990 
340,711 

44,367 
65,464 
69,077 
73,253 
36,178 

(478) 
25,091 

$1,230,846 

s 235,365 
595,507 
224,741 

36,178 
7,006 
3,462 

14.923 
$1:117.182 

$ 113,664 

$ 64,982 

48,682 

$ 48,682 

Changes in 
1995 Unrestricted 

Operations Net Assets 

$ 205,193 $ 

371,990 
340,711 

44,367 
65,464 
69,077 
73,253 

36,178 
(478) 

25,091 
173,187 (173.187) 

$j.J27,259 $ 103,587 

$ 235,365 $ 
595.507 
224,741 

36,178 
7,006 
3,462 

14.923 
$1.11 7.182 $ 

s 10.077 $1 03.587 

$ 19,248 $ 45,734 

(9,171) 57,853 

9.171 {9.171) 
$ $ 48,682 



MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OP TECHNOLOGY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended June 30, 1995 
with comparative totals for 1994 

(i11 tltousa11ds of dollars) 

Schedule D 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
lncrease(decn::•1sc) in net assets ... 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 
Dcpreciation . . . . . . . . . . ..... 
Student loan cancellations, change in reserve 

and G<>vt.:rnment reclassification . .. . 
Gifts of equipment and securities .. 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Pledges rncei vable . . 
Accounts receivable .. 
Contracts in progress . 
Deferred charges, inventories and other assets 
Restricted cash 
Accounts payable .. . . . .... .. . 
Wilhholdings, deposils and other credits 
Advances and unexpended grants ... . 

Reclassi(y investment income 
Rllclassify contributions restricted fo r long-tenn investment . 

Ner cash received from (used by) operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of land, buildings and equipment 
Purchase:; of investments . . ... 
Proc1;;1;;ds from sulc of investments 
Student notes issued . . . . . . . . 
Proceeds from student notes 

Net cush received from (used by) investing activities 

Cash flows rron]_.f.111ancing activit ies: 
Proceeds from contributions restricted for: 

Investment in endowment 
Investment in plant . 
Investment in other .. . 

Increase in invcstrncm income for restricted purposes 
Proi.;ceds from borrowings, bonds and notes payable 
Repayment of borrowings, bonds and note payable . . 
Increase in Government advance for student loans . . 

Net cash received from (used by) financing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year . .... . 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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1994 

$ 170,179 

35,795 

55 
(6,089) 

16,324 

2,026 
4,880 

(3,544) 
12,561 
6,831 
1,479 
2,968 

(3,554) 
(29,321) 

.l!.Q~59Q 

(76,82 1) 
(3,208,901 ) 
3,026,935 

(8,421) 
7 518 

(259,6~) 

23,879 
3.414 
2,028 

29,321 

3,554 
28,500 
(9, 195) 

873 
53,053 

-1z.953 

- 8,136 
$ 12.089 

1995 

$122,72'.? 

38,823 

436 

(5,596) 

2,777 

(l,818) 
2,497 

20 

13,027 
2,298 

(1,630) 

(3,753) 
_{_23,770) 

-~-6&3-~ 

(64,859) 
(2,912,424) 
2,790,949 

(9.551 ) 
7,281 

_{~8t~04) 

19,769 
2,661 
1,340 

23,770 

3,753 
25,100 
(9,197) 

977 

·- 44,403 

_ J ;832 
12,089 

$ 13,921 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. In fiscal 1995, MIT adopted Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Statements (FAS), No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Mude" und No. 117, "Financial Statements 
of Not-for-Profit Organizations." FAS No. 116 requires that unconditional promises to give (pledges) be recorded as receivables and 
revenues within the appropriate net asset category. FAS No. I 17 establishes standards for general-purpose external financial st<ltcmcnts 
of not-for-profit organiiutions, including a statement of financial position, a statement or activities and a statement of cash flows. FAS 
No. 11 7 requires classification of net assets and its n:venucs, expenses, gains and losses into three categories, based on the existence 
o r absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The categories arc permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and unrestricted net assets. 

Permanently restricted net ussets include only the historical dollar amounL~ of gifts, including pledges, trusLc;, and remainder interests, 
which arc required by donors to be permanently retained. Pledges, trusts, and remainder interests arc reported at their estimated present 
values. See Note on Gifts on puge B-22 for more information on pledges. 

Temporarily restricted net assets include g ifts, pledges, trusts. und remainder interests, income and gains which can be expended but 
for which restrictions have not yet been met. Such restrictions include purpose resU'ictions where donors have specified the purpose 
for which the net assets arc to be spent, or time restrictions imposed by donors or implied by the nature of the gift (capital projects, 
pledges to be paid in the future, life income funds) or by interpretations of law (gains available for appropriation but not appropriated 
in the current period). 

Unrestricted net assets arc nil the rc:maining net asset!' of the Institute. 

Sec Note K for further information on the composition of the net assets in these three categories. 

The Institute has implemented these two standards retroactively and accordingly financial statements of prior years have been restated 
to rcllcct these cha11gcs. Note J describes the effects of the cha11gcs on net assets (which were reported as "fund balances") as previously 
reported. Purpose or time rcst'rictions which management believes have been mel in prior period~ have been given effect in the restated 
financial statements. 

As permitted by FAS No.117. donor-restricted gifts which arc n:ccived and either spent or deemed spent within the same year are 
reported as unrestricted revenue. Gifts of long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted revenue. Gifts specified for the acquisition or 
construction of long-lived assets arc reported as unrestricted net assets when the assets are placed in service. 

The Institute has not altered the way in which it administers its various funds, including endowments, funds fonctioning as endowment, 
school or departmental funds and related accumulat1.:d gains 1md will continue to mamtain its accounts in accordance with the principles 
of "fund accounting." Gifts ore recorded in fund accounts and investment income is distributed to funds annually. Income distributed 
to funds may be a combination of capital appreciation and yield pursuant lo the lnstitutc 's total return investment policy. Each year, 
the Investment and Executive Committees of the Corporation llpprove the rates of distribution of investment income to the funds from 
the lnstitute's investment pools. Sec Note B for further information on income distributed lo funds. 

The Institute operates in accordance with a budget plan provided and monitored by the Executive Committe.:. Jn addition to tuitjon 
und research revenues received lo meet operating expenses, the budget contemplates the appropriation of approved amounts from 
available funds of the schools, departments and general Institute funds. Any shortfall is met by itlentilic.ation of additional available 
funds, including unrestricted current year gifts. 

In order to display the results of operations as described above, a Statement of Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net 
Assets is presented. The Operations column displays tuition, research and auxiliary activity revenues and approved funds availed of 
to meet operating unit expenses. The shortfalls of $9, 171 ,000 in 1995 and $4, 727,000 in 1994 were met by current girts, grants, and 
bequests and other fund balances used to meet operations. 

The gifts, investment income, and miscellaneous receipts for scholarships and fellowships is Jess than the total amount or expend iturcs 
for this student support. This difference which is funded by the lnstitute's operating budget is reported in the scholarships and 
fellowships -1 995 operations column. 
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CASH 
Current banking arrangements do not require outstanding checks to be funded until actually presented for payment. Outstanding checks 
in the amount of $2 1,485,000 and $12,653,000 in 1995 and 1994, respectively, are, therefore, recorded in accounts payable unti l such 
lime as the banks present them for payment. 

SPONSORED RESEARCH 
Revenue associated with contracts and grants is recognized as related costs arc incurred. The cnpital costs of buildings and equipment 
arc depreciated over their life cycle and the sponsored research recovery allowance for depreciation is treated as unrestricted income. 
The Institute has re.:ordcd reimbursement of indirect costs relating to sponsored research at predetermined fixed bil ling rates. The 
booked income generated by the predetermined rates is adjusted at the close of each fiscal year to reflect any variance between the 
predetermined rates and rates based on actual cost. The actual cost rate is audited by the Defense Contract Audit Agency and a final 
fixed rnte agrct:ment is signed by the Government and the Institute. The variance between the predetermined fixed rate and the final 
audited .rate results in a carryforward (over or under recovery). The carryforward will be included in the calculation of predetermined 
fixed billing rati.:s in future ycars. 

LAND, DUI L,DJN GS, AND EQUIPMENT 
Land, bui ldings, and equipment are shown at cost or fair value as of the date of a gift, net ofaccumulatcd depreciation. When expended, 
costs associated with the construction of new faci lities are shown as constrnction in progress unti l such project'S are completed. 
Depreciation is computed on a slraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of25 to 50 years for buildings and 3 to 25 years for 
equipment. Fully depreciated buildings and equipment are removed from the financial statements. These amounts totaled $297,000 
and $895,000 during 1995 and 1994, respectively. In addition, depreciation relating to various service facil ities and equipment are 
charged directly to the appropriate operating unit expenses. The depreciation expense related to these direct charges totaled $6,333,000 
imd $5,802,000 for 1995 nncl 1994, respectively. Land, buildings and equipment arc as follows at June 30: 

GIFTS 

Land 
Educational buildings 
Dormitories . . . 
Medicul, athletic and 

recreational bui ldings . 
Other 
Equipment . ...... . 
Total .. .. . ... . . 

I .ess: accumulated depreciation . 
Construction in progress . . . . 
Land, buildings and equipment 

Depreciation expense, presented net, comprises: 

Total depreciation expense 
Less: Depreciation charged directly 

to operating units . . ... . 
Capitalized equipment charged 

directly to operating units 
Net depreciation . . . . . . . .... 

1995 1994 
(in thousands of dollars) 

$ 28,328 $ 28,320 
254,707 230,563 
82,412 82,455 

72,292 
30,830 
22~Q43 
688,612 

(287,450) 
61.553 

$462.715 

1995 

72,292 
33,052 

204,646 
651,328 

(248,605) 
_ _£8,3~. 

$431 ,083 

1994 
(in thousands of doflars) 

$38,823 $35,795 

(6,333) 

(I 7.567) 
~14,923 

( 5,802) 

(15.124) 
$14,869 

Gifts, includ ing unconditional promises to give, are recognized when received. Gifts of securi ties are recorded at their fai r market 
value al the date of contribution. Gifts of equ ipment during 1995 and 1994 totaling $5.596,000 and $6,089,000, respectively, from 
manufacturers and other donors were put into use and recorded by the Institute during the respective fiscal years. Pledges in the amount 
of $87,350,000 and $90, 127,000 arc recorded as receivables with the revenue assigned to the appropriate category of restriction for 
1995 and 1994 re:;pcetively. Pledges consist of unconditional written or oral prom ises to contribute to the Institute in the future. 
Pledges are recorded after discounting to the present value of the future cash flows. 
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.. 
Pledges arc expected to be realized in the following time frame: 

1 n one year or less . . . . . . . . 
Between one year and five years 
More than five yt:ars . . . . . . 
Less allowance for unfulfilled pledges 
Pledges receivable, net of discount . 

$33,108,000 
34,130,000 
22, 112,000 
(2,000,000) 

$87,350,000 

/\ review of pledges has been made with regard to individual eolleetibility. As a resu lt, some pledges have either been canceled or are 
no longer recorded in the statements. There were no conditional promises received. 

The Institute records items of collections as a gift at nominal value. They are received for educational purposes and generally displayed 
throughout the Institute. They arc not disposed of for financial gain or otherwise encumbered in any manner. 

lNTERFUND BORROWINGS 
Tiu.: Current Funds borrow monies from the Student Loan Funds ($2,377,000 at June 30, 1995). The Plant runds borrow monies from 
the Current funds for the temporary financing of certain capital projects ($55,87 1,000 at June 30, J 995) and currently pay interest at 
7.5 percent except for those items cif deferred charges which are included in the total. Plant Funds borrowings from curre11t funds are 
expected to be repaid from operations, or gifts to or borrowings by the Plant Funds. The following schedule sets forth lhc composition 
<>f the interfund borrowings (in thousands of dollars): 

Endowment Student Educational 
Total Current and Similar Loan Plant 
1995 Funds Funds Funds Funds 

J ntcrti111d receivables (payables): 
Cum.:nt funds borrowing from student loan 

fonds. . . . . . . . . . . ... . ... . $ $ (2,377) $ $2,377 $ 

Plant funds borrowing from current funds ... .. 55,871 (55,871) 

Current funds borrowing from 
endowment and similar funds ... .. .. ... __Q!Q) 380 

s $53,114 $380 $2,377 s<ss,87D 

B. lNVI<:STMENTS 
Total rnurket value of investments approximated $2,501, 184,000 and $2, 156, 154,000 at June 30, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Such 
amounts include market values of certain real estate, which was determined by professional appraisers and cash equivalents invested 
in money market funds, commercial paper, banker acceptances and negotiable certificates of deposit, maturing within 30 day:;. 

General Investments 
ca~h l2quivalc11ts ........ ' . . . ' ' . . • . 
Fixed income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .• . 
Equi ties . .... ... ... . ... ... .... • . 
Reul cstat.: 

Hdd for possible future ;1cadcmic use .. 
Held for investment or other purposes . . . . . . . 

Total general investments ....... • ....... 

Separately invested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Li fc i 11comc fund~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Receivables/payables arising from securities transactions 

Total investments .. .. . ...... . .... .. . 

Investments 

,June 30, 1995 
Book M1nkct 

$ 118,803,000 $ 118,636,000 
389,536,000 401,189,000 

1,193,827,000 1,705,435,000 

40,336,000 40,364,000 
73.976.000 86,369,000 

s 1,816,478,000 $2,351,993,000 

60,028,000 70,152,000 

59,549,000 72,783,000 

6,256,000 6,256.000 

$1,942,311,000 $2,501!184,000 

June 30, 1994 
Uook Markel 

$ 36,560,000 $ 36,714,000 
423,022,000 416, 798, 000 

1,137,403,000 1,470,781,000 

32,234,000 32,234,000 
72)498,000 8UR31000 

$1,701,717,000 $2,0J7,910,000 

55,239.000 60,836,000 

59,828,000 67,359,000 

4,052.000 4,052.000 

$1,820.836,UOO $2, 170, 157 ,000 

The fnstitute pools a sub~tu.n tial portion of its investments into two major investment pools, Pool A principally for endowment and 
funds functioning as endowment and Pool C, principally for investment of current funds of the schools and departments and institute 
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temporary funds. Shares i11 Pool A, like a mutual fund, are pureha~ed and n:deemed at the fair value of the share uni ts as determined 
each nmnth end . The total market value of Pool A approximated $2,038,000 and $1 ,744,000 at June 30, 1995 and 1994 respectively. 
The unil market values at.lune 30, 1995 and 1994 respectively were $343.5059 and $301.5030. On a unit basis, the ownersh ip assigned 
10 each net a.~sct classification ar June 30, 1995 and 1994 was as follows: 

Unrestricted . . . .. . 
Temporarily Restricted 
Pcnrntnently Restricted 

Total units ..... 

1995 
1,352,735 

693,279 
3,886.774 
5,932,788 

1994 
1,342,112 

668,657 
3,773,368 
5,784,137 

Investment:; in Pool C arc at the dollar amount "deposited", like a bank, and earn income at rates as detenn incd by the Investment 
Com111i th:e, with reference to short-term money market rates. 

The Investment and Executive Committ..:es of the Corporation have approved the practice whereby spending by fu nds in the General 
Investments may come from both investment incomi: and realized market gains. The investment policy of focus ing on tot.al i nvestmen~ 
rc!urn, a combination of both capital appreciation and investment income fro m interest, dividends and rents. is consistent with this 
spend ing policy. Although a portion or accumulated realized gains and losses arc repartee.I as part of the lnstilutc's unrcsLrictcd 
resources, their use is availed of in a manner consistent with the Institute's spending policy and long term goal of preservation of the 
endowment. The distribution rate on Pool A is declared by the Investment and Executive Committees each March for the upcoming. 
new fiseal year. Pertinent information is as follows: 

Pool A - Distribution per unit . ... 
Puol C - Declared rate before other distributions 

1995 
$15,15 

4.5% 

1994 
$14.40 

7.5% 

The tota l distribut'ion to funds was $11 1,945,000 in 1995 and $99,906,000 in 1994 and included accumulated investment gains of 
$4 .. U29,000 and $36,231,000, respectively. 

The lnstit.utc in conformity with FAS No. 11 6 has recorded perpetual trusts held by outside trustees as an increase to invesLments ancl 
net assets. 

Rcalizctl gains nncl losses are recorded by lhe Institute using the average cost basis. Investment transactions an: rncorded on trade date. 
l~c;·d i zc.d gains and losses are classified a~ unrestricted net assets unless they are resiricted by the donor or the law. Realized net gains 
011 pr:nmu1ently restricted girts are c l a~sified as temporarily restricted until appropriated for spending by the Institute in accordance 
with the Massachusetts Management of Insti tutional fu nds Act. 

Al June 30, 1995 and 1994, the Institute had accumulated $25, 75 1,000 of income in excess of amounts distrihutcd to fu nds in prior 
years. The totul income earned has hi:en reported as revenue in prior years. The accumulated amounts arc held for distribution to the 
participating func.ls in ticcordancc with established methods. 

C. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 
The Institute ha'l entered into various forward currency exchange contracts solely as a partial offset of exchange rate movement'> 
affecting thi: U.S. dol lar value of portfolio holdings of bonds denominated in foreign currencies. These contracts obligate the lnstitutt: 
to del iver currencies at specified future dales in return for U.S. dollars at fixed exchange rates. At .lune 30, 1995 the Institute had 
eonf rnct!> maturing in fi scal year 1996 to deliver in various foreign currencies the equivalent of $72,585,000 at the fixed exchange 
rate~ . Net un real ized u..:prcciation rclall~d to these contracts was $2,085,000. 

D. STUIH:NT LOAN FUNDS 
Perkins/National Direct Student Loan Funds of $26,567,000 and $25,590,000 at June 30, 1995 and 1994, respectively, arc ult imately 
refu11dable to the United States Government, are classified as liabilities. The allowance for douhrful notes receivable was $1, I I 7,000 
and $1,117,000 in 1995 anti 1994, respectively. Due to the nature and terms of the student loans whieh arc subject to significimt 
restrictions, it is not practicable to determine the fair value of such loans. 

B-24 



E. BORROWINGS-BONDS ANO NOTES PAYABLE 
Borrowings-Mor1gug1: Donds and Notes Payable consist of the following at June 30, 1995 and 1994: 

EDUCATIONAL PLANT 
Massach~lb Ucalth and Educational Facilities Authority (MHEFA) 

Series A. lease purchase obligations (Note F) .. . ..... . ....•. 
Series n. 5%, due 1995-2003 ...................... . 
Series C, 5-6.2%, due 1995-2006 ... . . . . .. . .. . . . . .... . 
Series E. 11 %, due 1995-2000 ................•...... 
Series 1:. 7.8-8%, due 1995-1997 .... . ... .. .. .. . • ...... 
Series G, varioblc, due 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....... . 
Series H. 3-5%. due 1995-2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....... . 

Total Mll£FA ................. . .. . ........ . 

Notes payable Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA). 
variable percent, due 1995-2000 .. . ......... . . .. ... . . 
Tot:al Elluc:itionnl Pllmt . ..... . 

INVE!:>TMENT REAi. ESTATE 
Notes payable, 10%, due 1995-1996 .. . 
Notes paynhlc, 7%. due 1995-1997 . . . 

Tot:1l lnvcstmc11t Rc:1I Estate ... .. . . . .... . . ...... . 

STUDENT LOANS 
Notes payable SLMA. variable percent, due 1995 . . . . . . . . ... . . 
Notes pnyahlc cu hm1k. variable percent, due 1995 ... , . . . . ..•. 

Total Student Lu:1ns •..................•...•.. 

OTllt:R 
Mn.~achusctt:; I k alth und Educational Facilities Authority 

Series E, 8%, due 1995-2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total Borrowing~-Bonds and Noccs Payable .... .. ...... . 

1995 

$ 2.439,000 . 
4.620.000 ... 
3,610.000 ... 

1,890,000 
5,450,000 

25,000,000 
80.829,000 

$123,838,000 ** 

55,763,000 
$179,601,000 

$ 133,000 ... 
30,000 

s 163,000 

$ 16,000,000 •• 
_3.!.QQ,000 
s 19,100,000 

$ IJ 10,000 
$199,974,000 

1994 

$ 2.697,000 • 
5,(J65,000 ••• 
3,840.000 . ... 

2,268,000 
7,245,000 

25.000,000 
83.030~0Q 

Sl29,145,000 

_}_4, 178.000 
$163.323,000 

$ 267,000 ... 

49,0Q.Q 
$ 316,000 

$ 16.000,000 
3,100,000 

$ 19,100,000 

~ l.332,000 
s 184,071,000 

The aggregate amount of long-term debt payments and sinking fund requirements for each of the next five years is: 

1996 $52,700.000 
1997 10,400.000 
1998 6,800,000 
1999 6,400,000 
2000 7,500,000 

$43,700,000 of the long-term debt payment required in l 996 relates to a construction loan for the cogcncration faci lity. It is 
anticipated that pt:nnanent long-term financing will be arranged for this loan during fiscal year 1996. 

Interest cost incurred on long-term debt in m995 and 1994 was $10,333,000 nnd $7,636,000, respectively. In connection with the 
SLM/\ Educational Plant loans, the Institute maintains certain net asset, operating results and debt service ratios. The interest rates 
for the SI .MA notes payable were 6.3 J % to 6.46% at June 30, 1995. 

ln 1995 the Multi-Modal Variable Demand bonds through the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (Series 
G) were held in the Weekly mode. The interest rate at June 30, 1995 was 3.4%. 

In connection with student loans notes payable to bank, MlT maintains unused lines of credit totaling $ 13,400.000 at June 30, 1995. 
Interest rates at June 30,1995 approximate 6.5% and are based on the bank's prime lending rate. The lines are scheduled to become 
due in fiscal 1996. The Institute intends to renew these lines. 

The carrying vulue of the outstanding debt approximates fai r value based on estimates using current interest rates available for 
similarly rated debt of the same remaining maturities. 

•·1110 Institute receives interest ~upplcmcnts rrom the Depruimcnt of Housing illld Urban Development with r·espcot to this issuo, 
••At June 30, 1995 the Institute hnd pledged securities with a market value of $74,229,419. nnnunl unrestricted operating revenue ofSl 4.462,320, and ccrtnin other project 

roveuuc to comply with the tcnns of the bond indentures. 
• ' ' Ccrtnln ln11cl uml buildings are pledged as collntcrnl for MllEFA Series B nnd C bonds and the Investment Rc~I Llstutc note.~ payable. 
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F. COMMITMENTS AND CONTJNGENCIES 
I. The Institute receives funding or reimbursement from Federal Government agencies for sponsored research under Government 

!!rants and comracts. These grants and contracts provide for reimbursement of indirect costs based on rates negotiated with the Office 
of Naval Research (ONR), the lnstitme's cognizant Federal agency. The lnstitute's indirect cost reimbursements have been based 
on lixcd rates with e!lfryforward of under or over recoveries. 

The Dcl'cnse Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) is responsible for auditing both direct and indirect charges to grants and contracts in 
support of ONR 's negotiating responsibility. The Institute has final audited rates through the 1992 fiscal year. The Institute and 
Clovcrnment have reached substantial agreement on all outstanding audi t issues for the 1993 and 1994 fiscal years and final fixed 
rate agreements for those years arc anticipated. The Instirute's 1995 research revenues of $712,701,000 include reimbursement of 
ind ircet costs of $123,297,000 which includes the adjustment or the variance between the indirect cost income generated from the 
predetermined rates and rates based on actual 1995 costs. 

2. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has made certain claims totaling approximately $30,000,000 against lhe Institute regarding 
Federal income and social security taxes related to wages and tuition awards granted to research assistants and teaching assistanL<> 
during 1985 and 1986. Certain issues claimed by the IRS arc applicable to succeeding years. The Institute has filed a formal protest 
ond believes that it has meritorious defenses and that the ultimate resolution of this matter will not have a material effect on the 
l11s tit11t1.:'s financial position. 

3. The Institute is sub,iec1 to certain other legal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course of operations. !n the opinion 
of management, the ullimalc outcome of these actions will 1101 have a material effect on the Tnstirutc's linancial position. 

4. The Institute is commiucd under real estate leases. Rent expense was $14, 166,000 and $4,876,000 in 1995 and 1994. respectively. 
Certain leases expiring in 1996 arc subject to renewal or may be renewed. Future minimum payments under operating leases arc as 
follows: 

F!Yl996 
f'!Yl997 
F/Y1998 
F/Y l999 
f/Y2000 

17,400,000 
17,600,000 
l 7,900,000 
18.100.000 
18,400,000 

Commencing in fiscal year 1995 lease payments increased as a result of a lease commitment related to a building at Lincoln 
Laboratory. $12,800,000 per year is recoverable under U.S. Government conrracts including contract termination provisions through 
lhe lifo or the lease. 

5. The Institute is commitled to invest approximately $163.331,000 in private equicy and real estate investments to be funded over the 
next ti vc years. 

6. The Institute is eommirted for Educational Plant in the amount of $9,059,000 at June 30, 1995. It is expected that the resources to 
satisfy these commitments will be provided from unexpended plant funds, anticipated gifts, and unrestricted funds. 

G. RETIREMENT BENEFfTS 
The Massachusetts fnstitute of Technology Retirement Plan (the "Retirement Plan") has charactcrislics of both a defined benefit plan 
(the ''Core Plan") and a defined contribution plan. TI1e Retirement Plan covers substantially all employees of the Institute. The assets 
of the rlan ure invested primarily in equity and fixed income securities. 

The Institute contributes to the Core Pinn amounts which arc actuarially determined to provide the Plan with sufficient assets to me~l 
future benefit ri.:quiremcnts. The net pension expense for the Core Plan during 1995 and 1994 included the following components: 

Current service cost . . . .. ..... . 
Interest on projected benefit obligations 
Actual return on assets . . . . 
Net amortization and deferral 
Net pension cost . . . . . . . 
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1995 1994 
(in thousands of clol/ars) 

$ 26,230 
59,871 

(128,814) 
47,833 

$ 5,120 

$ 25.935 
53.394 
(24,4~2) 

...Q0..:.571) 
$ 4,335 



The following table summarizes the funded status of the lnsulute's "Core Plan" and the rc:luted amounts recognizc:d in the lnsll tute's 
Balance Sheets as of June 30: 

Vested benefit obligation 

Accumulated benefit obligation 

Projected benefit obligation . 
Fair value of plan a-;sets ... 
Plan assets in excess of the 

projected benefit obligation . 
Unrecognii'..Cd net transition asset . 
Unrecognized prior service cosL5 
Unrccogniii.:d net (gain)/loss 
Prepaid pcn~ion cost 

1995 1994 
(Jn thousands of dollar.1) 

$736.184 $662.785 
-
$784,317 !709.198 ----
796,173 720,738 

_895,711 777.51 () 

99,538 56,772 
(55,121) (61.246} 

418 
(-14.723) 4.586 

$ 112 $ l 12 ----

The discount rate and the average rate of increase in future compensation used to determine the projected benefit obligation as of June 
30. 1995 were 8.0 percent and 6.0 percent, respectively, as compared with 8.0 and 6.3 as of June 30, 1994. The expected nm1rn on 
plan assets was 9.25 percent in 1995 and 8.85 percent in 1994. 

The amount of costs recognized during 1995 and 1994 related to the defined contribution components of the Retirement Plan were 
$16.835,000 and $ 16,609,000, respectively. 

II. POSTRETIREMENT HEAL TH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BE:"fEFITS 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the Institute provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. 
Substantially all of the lnstitute 's employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach u qualirying retirement age while 
working for the 1nstitute. Retiree health plan~ are paid for in part by employee contributions, which arc adjusted annually. Rc11c!it:; 
urc provided through various insurance companies whose charges are based either on the bc111 .. fits paid during the year or annual 
premiums. Health benefits are provided to retirees, their covered dependents, and beneficiaries. Substantially all retiree life insurance 
plans arc non-contributory and cover the retiree only. In 1994, the Institute adopted Statement <lf financial /\ccounting Stnndurds 
No. I 06 "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions," which requires recognition of an accumulated 
postrctirement benefit obligation for retiree costs existing at the time of implementation, a-; well as incremental expense recoi;nilion 
for changes in the obligation attributable to each successive liscal year. The institute elected to amortize the past service amount over 
the allowable 20 year period. The Institute maintains a trust to which it has contributed the postrctirement health care and life insurance 
costs on the accrual basis. 

The following reconciles the amounts recognized in the lnstitutc's balance sheets as of June 30, 1995 nnd 1994: 

Accumulated Postrctirement Benefit Obligation 
Retirees . .. ......... ... .. .. . 
Active employees eligible for benefits ... . 
Active employees not yet eligible for benefits 

Total obligation . . ... .... . . . 
Plan assets at fair value . . . . . . . . . . 
Total obligation (in excess of) plan assets . 
Unrecognized net (gain)loss ..... . . 
Unrecognized net obligation at transition 
Prepaid postretircmcnt benefit . ... 
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1995 1994 
(in thousands of clollnrs) 

$ (80,042) 
(50,188) 
C)0.384) 

(150.614 
60,201 

(90,413) 
4,478 

85,961 
$ 26 

$ (67,::!21) 
(47.842) 

u~:w 
(134,734) 

~-19 
(92.885) 

2,150 

- 90,736 

~---' 



The net postrctircment benefit cost for 1995 and 1994 included the following components: 

1995 1994 
{in thousands of dollars) 

Service cost-benefits earned during the period . . $3,21 9 
Interest cost on accumulated postretircment benefit obligation 11 ,440 
Actual (gain) on assets . . . . . . . . (I0, 149) 
Net amortt1.ation and deferral . . . . 10.705 
Net postretiremcnt benefit cost . . . $15,215 

$4,209 
11 ,657 

(929) 
3,657 

$18.594 

The discount 1 utc used to dcti.:rmine the accumulated postrctircment benefit obligation was 8.0%. The expected long-term rate of 
return on trust usscts is assumed to be 9.25%. Medical health trend rates prior to age 65 were assumed to be I 0.0% in 1995, gradually 
declining to 5.5% in 1999 and thereafter. Medical heallh trend rates age 65 and nncr were assumed to be 9.0% in 1994, gradually 
declining to 5.5% by 1998 and thereafter. A one percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have 
increased the 1995 postretirement benefit expense by $ 1,329.000 and the 1995 postretircment benefit obligation by $13,061,000. 

The Institute adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 112 (FAS 112), Employers' Accounting for Postemployment 
Benefits, in 1995. f /\S 112 requires that benefits to be paid for former or inactive employees after employment but prior to retirement 
must be accrued if certain criteria arc met. The impact of adoption was not material to the financial statements. 

I. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 
The lnstitutc's liabilities consisted of the following at June 30 (in thousands of dollars): 

Accounts payable and accruals .. . 
Accrued vacations ...... . .. . 
Accounts puy11blc U.S. Government 
Life interest and agency funds . .. 

Tomi . . ...... •.. .. ... . . 

1995 
$ 95,707 

14,495 
20,585 
29,116 

$159.903 

199.J 
$ 76,218 

14,227 
26,915 
29,516 

$146,876 

The Tnstitutc is currently self-insured for Long Tenn Disability and unemployment compensation and provides reserves totaling 
$5,657,000 to cover claims. 

J. RECONCILIATION OF FlJNDS 
Fund balances reported on June 30, 1994 have been restated to reflect the adoption of FAS No. 116 and No. 117 (in thousands of 
dollars). 

Total Institute fund balances, as previously reported at June 30, 1994 
Add perpetual trusts for the benefit of MIT held by outside trustees 
not previously included in Institute assets ............. . 

Add pledges rcceivublc not previously included in Institute assets . . 
Reduction for student loans provided by and ultimately refundable 
to Lhe U.S. Government and therefore reclassified to liabilities ... 

Reduction to recognize as a liability the actuarial presem value of the 
estimated income stream payable to life income beneficiaries . 

Reclassify agency tunds to liabilities 
June 30, 1991 restatcd 11..:t assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 
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$2,056,339 

14,003 
90,127 

(25,619) 

(22,900) 
( 1,385) 
g~ 



K. COMPON~-:NTS OF NF.T ASSETS 
The follow ing table presents the three categories of net assets by purpose as of June 30, 1995 (in thousands or dollar!)). The amounts 
listed in lhc unn:stricted column labeled Endowment Funds Principal are those gifts received over the years which the Institute 
designated as fonds function ing as endowment and invested with the endowment funds. The larger component~ of temporarily rt:stricted 
net a.ssets are ( I) pledges, which will be reclassified to unrestricted net assets when cash is received and (2) accumulated net gain!> on 
investments of gifts which the donor required to be permanently retained; such gains will be reclassified to unrestricted net assets when 
appropriated for spending in accordance with the Institutc's spending policy and the Massachusetts Management of lnstnutional Funds 
Act. 

~~.s.12.~'."11l_eE_t f..t•fldS Princi~: 
General purposes 
Departments and research 
Library .. .. . . 
Salaries und wages . . 
G raduatc general . . . 
G raduale departmental 
U ndergraduatc 
Pri~cs .... . 
Pledges ... . 
Miscellaneous 
Investment income held for distribution to fonds 

Total endowment principal 

Other Invested Funds: 
Student loan funds 
Bui lding funds .. . 
1.>csignated purposes: 
Departments and research 
Other purposes .. 
Reserve funds . . 
Lifo income funds 
Pledges .. . . . . 
Accumulated net rcali;~ed gains/losses on investments 

Total other irwested . . . . . . . 

found~ available lhr current expenses 

Total funds . . . . . . . . . . . . 
founds expended for educational plant 

Unrestricted 

$ 78,648 
48,220 

517 
38,935 

375 
3,368 

12,192 
867 

54,222 
_ _lP5l 
$ 263.095 

$ 3.794 

48,857 

97,715 

24,254 
30,204 

2,865 

267,899 

$ 475,588 

$ 89.905 

$ 828,588 
2 18.273 

$1,046,86_! 

B-29 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 

$ 

$ 
10,154 

13.180 

5 1,325 
479,989 

$554,648 

L ___ 

$554,648 

----· 
$554,648 
---·--

Permanently 
Restricted 

$ 57,090 
102,458 

I. 70 I 
246,629 

8.636 
38,465 
96,785 

2.465 
36,025 
10,869 

$ 12.586 

18.069 

~ 30.65.? 

~-·-·-·-· 
$631 ,778 

$6~1.77§ 

Total 

$ 135,7:\8 
150.678 

'.!,218 
285.5(>4 

9,011 
41,83.1 

108.977 

$ 

3,332 
36,025 
65,091 
25,751 

16.380 

59,011 

97.715 
211.~5,(. 

30,204 
J1l,l l tl 

5 1.325 

~47.888 

'.$ 1.0_~ll?J. 

$2,0 15.014 
218.273 -···-- --

$2J~3.287 
~·-·---



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Auditing Committee of Massachusetts Institute of Technology: 

We have audited the following financial statements of Massachusetts Institute of Technology: 

Schedule A - Statement of rinancial Position at June 30, 1995, with comparative totals at 1994. 

Schedule B - Statement of Activities for the year ended June 30, I 995, with comparative totals for 1994. 

Schedule C - Statement of Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets for the year ended June 30. 1995, with comparative 
totals for June 30, 1994. 

Schedule D -- Statement of Cash Plows for the year ended June 30, 1995, with comparative totals for 1994 . 

Wu previously audited and reported upon the financial statements of the Institute for the year ended June 30, 1994, based upon which 
condensed statements are presented for comparative purposes only. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the lnstitulc's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 5talemcnts based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finMcial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit inelnrJe:i 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial stutcmcnt 
presentation. We believe that uur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Massachnsctt:-: 
lnstirutc of Technology as of June 30, 1995, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Notes A and J to the financial statements, during 1995 the Institute changed its method of accounting for contributions 
received and adopted newly established financial reporting standards for not-for-profit organizations. These standards were ndoptcd 
retroactively and the summarized comparative financial information presented for the year ended June 30, 1994 has been rc.:statcd. 

13oston, Massachusetts 
September 27, 1995 
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GLOSSARY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Agency Funds·-Arnounts held as custodian or fisca l agent for affiliates such as alumni und student organil.'.alion:;. 

Appropriations Among Funds-authorized transfer of resources between fund groups. 

Auxiliary Activities- refers to the operations of Dining and Housing and MIT Press. 

Book Value- the cost of investment. Bonds purchased at a premium over the value at maturity have a book value of amortized 
cost. The cost of real i::statc investments includes both th..: original cost and the capitali%ed cost of any improvements. The book 
value of gift~ and other receipts is the cash or fair markt:t value at the time of receipt. 

Borrowings- represent mortgage bonds and notes payable to external agencies, institutions. and others. 

Current Funds- expendable resources held for meeting current restricted or unrestricted expenses. 

Endowment and Similar Funds-encompasses both endowment funds and funds function mg as endowment .. Endowment funds 
arc gifts and bequests where the donor has Slipulated, as a condition of the gift, that the principal is to remain inviolate in perpetuity 
and is to be invested for the purpose of producing present and future income. Funds functioning as endowment are gifts, bequests, 
and other receipts that had no restrictions as to the expenditure of principal, which the Institute designated as additions to 
endowment for the present. See Net Assets. 

E ducational Plant Funds- funds invested and those available for investment in educational plant. as well as applicable mortgage 
bonds and notes payable . 

. Fund- an entity consisting of assets, liabiJities, and fund balance. The assets and income must be 111w~led or spent in u..:cordancc 
with the designated purpose of the fund. 

General Investments- assets of funds that have been pooled for investment purposes. These pools are Pool J\ (en<.lowment and 
s imilar fu nds) and Pool C (current invested and operating funds). 

Life Income Funds-gifts for investment with income payable to one or more beneficiaries during their lives. Upon the 
term ination of life interests, the principal becomes available for Institute purposes, which may be designated by the donor. 

Market Value- "thc fair market value on the statement date. Real estate held for investment is carried al appraised value, and 
certain assets arc carried at book value or nominal value when value cannot readily be dctermine<.I. 

Net Asscts--.thc assets remaining after all liabilities have been dedi1cted. Net assets arc categorized into three groups according 
to the nature of !he restrictions placed on the gifts by donors. Permanently RestrictctJ Net Assets arc those girts for which the 
o riginal principal can never be spent. They comprise gifts to true endowment, outstanding pledges trnd assets held in trust which, 
when paid or malun:d, will go to the endowment, and gifts which are required to be used for student luans. Temporarily Restricted 
Net Assets are those gifts which will ultimately become available for operations or capital expenditures. They require some event 
or lapse of time to take place before they arc avai lable for spending. They include pledges, gifts of real estate not yet sold, gifts 
for construction projects which have not been completed and certain life income funds which, upon maturity, will be available for 
spending. Unrestricted Net Assets comprise all of the remaining economic resources available to the lnslilutc. 

Permanent Funds--funds designated by t he donor as unexpendable. 

J>lant FuntJs-~ee Educational Plant Funds. 

Pledge- a written or oral agreement to contribute cash or other assets to the In~titute . A pledge may be either conditional or 
unconditional. Conditional Pledge specifics a future and uncertain event whose occuranct', or failure to occur. releases the 
promisor from its obligation. Unconditional Pledge is a promise to give that depends only on the passage or lime or a demand 
hy the promisce fo r performance. 
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Restricted- resources, the use of which has been designated by a donor. 

Separately Invested Fu nds-funds held by the Institute and maintained in separdte portfolios for investment purposes. 

Student Lo:1n Funds-resources loaned to students or available for such loans. 

Unrestricted-resources that arc available for the general purposes of the lns1i1u1c, and are not restricted by donors as to use. 
Unrestricted Net Assets in audited schedules include expendable donor-restricted gifts as defined in Note A. 

B-32 



UNIVERSITY FUND ACCOUNTING 

The financial reports of a university arc presented using the principles of net asset classifications and fund accounting. /\ fund is 
an accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. While a business corporation will usually report its balance sheet as 
a smgle entity. the balance sheet of MIT is also divided into several balance sheets, which are defined us fu nd groups. The purpose 
of having such fund groups, and lhc individual funds thal comprise them, results from the many purposes for which gills and other 
revenues arc received. 

Fund Accounting by MIT 

The accounting for each fund includes both the balance sheet and the statement of income and expenses. The use of individual 
fund accounting assures the donors and others who provide these financial resources that the stated purposes of lhe fund arc being 
met. Ml r has thousands of individual funds that have been established, including many durmg the past year. For reporting 
purposes in the Statement of Financial Position, these are divided into five major fund groups: Current Funds, Endowment nnd 
Similar Funds, Student Loan Funds, Educational Plant Funds, and Life lncomc Funds. Each separate fund group has net assets 
thal arc equal to the difference between assets and liabilities. For reporting purposes, the fund balances are shown at book value, 
which is the vulue of the gift or other fund revenue when received. Endowment and similar funds often have market values of 1be 
related invested assets that significantly exceed lhe value of the gift when received. 

Restricted nod Unrestricted Net Assets 

The nel assets arc divided into permanently restricted, temporarily res tricted, or unrcstrictc<l. These 11.strictions ar..: determined 
by the donor or by the source of the revenues. Those net assets available for unrestricted purposes cnn be allocated as to purpose 
by the President and Executive Committee of the Corporation. It should be noted that most of the direct and indirect expenses 
of instruction and unsponsorcd research and a significant portion of scholarships and fellowships depend upon unrestricted 
revenues. /\s •1 result, the resources actually available for allocation without either donor restriction or prior commitment arc very 
small relative to the size of MIT. 

Repor t ing on the Use of Funds 

The "ovnilcd or' method of accounting is used to report the revenues and expenses relating to each fund . This method of aeeounting 
makes a distinction between the recording of gifts and investment income at the time it is added to funds and the subsequent use 
of these funds to met:t expenditures. The result is that gifts and investment income arc shown in lh.: Statement of Operations and 
Other C.:haugcs in Unrestricted Net Assets only when they are availed of to meet expenditures. For exwuple. a gift that cw1 be 
expended for a specific educational purpose may be received in one year and expended in the next. At the end of the year received, 
this gil'l would he reported with Currclll Funds in the Statement of Financial Position. In the next year, it would appear in the 
S tatemcnt of Operations and Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets as Gifts and bequests. The appropriate operating expenses 
would arpear in Instruction and llnsponsored Research. lf the gili had not been fully availed of in the next year, only the amo1rnt 
so availed of and the related expenditure would appear in the Statement of Operations and Other Changi:s in Unrestricicd Net 
Assets. The rcmninder of the fund would be included in the Statement ofFinancinl Position each ycu.r until expended. 

Fund accounting is also used to report the income distributed for spending to both endowment and expendable funds. Endowmi:nt 
income, which is unexpended at the end of a fiscal year, is listed with Unresmctcd net assets in the St:ilt:.mcnt ofFinancial Position. 
Endowment funds that are restricted as to purpose may, from time to time, have two fund balance:. at year-end, the first relating 
to the endowmcnl fund resulting from gifts and the second, usLially much smaller, relating to any unexpended income. This income 
is availed of in future years to meet related expenses. For expendable funds, any unexpended investment income is not separately 
reported, h11l may be added to the balance of the fund at each year-end. 

Scholarships and Fellowships 

The reporting of revenues and funds used to meet the cost of scholarships and fellowships requires detailed explanation. 
Universities report both tuiticin nnd dining and housing revenues at the gross amount received, including those amounts that arc 
actually met by the university. By contrast, corporate accounting would usually report fee incom..: on u net basis aHer deducting 
any price reductions given to users. University accounting provides full disclosure of the MIT expense~ related to providing such 
scholarships and fellowships and the flow of such student support from outside sources. These latter amounts arc included in 
revenues and other additions and arc reported in gifts and bequests, investment income, or fees, services and other receipts The 
operating expenses reported in the Statement of Operations and Other Chungcs in Unrestricted Net Assets include all the direct 
and indirect expenses related to the instruction, housing, and <lining of students as well as the charge for scholarships and 
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fellowships. It should be noted that the gifts, investment income, and miscellaneous receipts for scholarships and fellowships is 
less than the total amount of expenditures by MlT and outside sources for this student support. This difference is reported in the 
scholarships and fellowships -1995 operation column. Other unrestricted revenues and funds must be expended each year LO meet 
this need. 

This method of accounting provides fu II disclosure of the flow of funds relating to scholarships and fellowships, although ii doi.::; 
record both the payment of tuition and the source of that payment in revenues and funds used. As a result, M!T reports higher 
revenues, and equally higher expenses, if an undergraduate receives an MIT or outside scholarship grant for part of tuition than 
if the student paid the entire amount. 
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